RESOLUTION NO. 2017-65
RESOLUTION NO. PFA-03
ORDINANCE NO.  2017-01

AGENDA

MISSION STATEMENT
"Our team is dedicated to protecting, enhancing, and developing our rich water resources to the
highest beneficial use for Calaveras County, while maintaining cost-conscious, reliable service, and our
quality of life, through responsible management."

Regular Board Meeting Calaveras County Water District
Wednesday, November 8, 2017 120 Toma Court, (PO Box 846)
1:60 p.m. San Andreas, California 95249

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting,
please contact the Administration Office at 209-754-3028. Notification in advance of the meeting will enable CCWD
to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. Any documents that are made available to
the Board before or at the meeting, not privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure, and related to agenda items,
will be made available at CCWD for review by the public.

ORDER OF BUSINESS

CALL TO ORDER /PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1. ROLL CALL

2. PUBLIC COMMENT
At this time, members of the public may address the Board on any non-agendized item. The
public is encouraged to work through staff to place items on the agenda for Board consideration.
No action can be taken on matters not listed on the agenda. Comments are limited to three
minutes per person.

3. CONSENT AGENDA
The following items are expected to be routine / non-controversial. Items will be acted upon by
the Board at one time without discussion. Any Board member may request that any item be
removed for later discussion.

3a Approval of Minutes for the Board Meetings of October 4, October 11, and
October 25, 2017

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Jeff Davidson, President Scott Ratterman, Vice President
Terry Strange, Director Bertha Underhill, Director Russ Thomas, Director



3b Review Board of Directors Monthly Time Sheets for October, 2017

3c Approve to Ratify Claim Summary #548 Secretarial Fund in the Amount
of $1,574,004.65 for October, 2017

(Jeffrey Meyer, Director of Administrative Services) RES 2017-
4, NEW BUSINESS
4a Review and Direction of the FY 2017-18 First Quarter Investment Report
(Jeffrey Meyer, Director of Administrative Services)
4b Designate District Voting Representative at ACWA Fall Conference
(Dave Eggerton, General Manager)
4c Information / Discussion Regarding Update of District Employment Policies:
Section 4000 — Hours, Meals, and Rest Periods, and Section 7000 - Leaves
(Stacey Lollar, Director of HR and Customer Service)
4d Discussion / Action Regarding Approval of the Amended and Restated Eastside
Eastern San Joaquin Groundwater Sustainability Agency MOU Allowing
Calaveras County to Enter as a Member Agency
(Peter Martin, Manager of Water Resources) RES 2017-
de Update on Winter Storm Disasters - FEMA Reimbursement Projects‘
(Teresa Tanaka, Director of Operations)
5. OLD BUSINESS
Nothing to report
6. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
7.% BOARD REPORTS / INFORMATION / FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
8. NEXT BOARD MEETINGS
* Wednesday, December 13,2017, 1:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting
= Wednesday, January 10, 2018, 1:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting
9. CLOSED SESSION
9a Conference with Real Property Negotiators
Government Code §54956.8
Property: APN’s 046-019-051, 073-042-127, and 073-042-129, Valley Springs, CA
District negotiator(s): Dave Eggerton
Under negotiations: price and other terms
*No information included in packet 11/08/17 Board Meeting

Page 2 of 3



9b Conference with Real Property Negotiators
Government Code §54956.8
Property: APN 067-015-003, Copperopolis, CA
District negotiator(s): Dave Eggerton
Under negotiations: price and other terms

9¢ Conference with Real Property Negotiators
Government Code §54956.8
Property: APN’s 044-032-012 and 044-032-005, San Andreas, CA
District negotiator(s): Dave Eggerton
Under negotiations: price and other terms

9d Conference with Real Property Negotiators
Government Code §54956.8
Property: APN 048-003-190, Burson, CA
District negotiator(s): Dave Eggerton
Under negotiations: price and other terms

9¢ Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing Litigation

Government Code § 54956.9(a)
La Contenta Investors, LTD vs. CCWD (Calaveras County Superior Court #11CV37713)

10. REPORTABLE ACTION FROM CLOSED SESSION

11. ADJOURNMENT

*No information included in packet 11/08/17 Board Meeting
Page 3 of 3



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

Board of Directors

District 1 Scott Ratterman
District 2 Terry Strange
District 3 Bertha Underhill
District 4 Russ Thomas
District 5 Jeff Davidson
Financial Services

Umpqua Bank

US Bank
Wells Fargo Bank

CCWD Committees

*Engineering Committee
*Finance Committee

*Legal Affairs Committee
Executive Committee (ad hoc)

Joint Power Authorities

ACWA [ JPIA
CCWD Public Financing Authority

Calaveras-Amador Mokelumne River Authority (CAMRA)

Calaveras Public Power Agency (CPPA)

Eastern San Joaquin Groundwater Authority

Tuolumne-Stanislaus Integrated Regional Water
Management Joint Powers Authority (T-Stan JPA)

Upper Mokelumne River Watershed Authority (UMRWA)

Other Regional Organizations of Note

Calaveras LAFCO

Calaveras County Parks and Recreation

Committee
Highway 4 Corridor Working Group

Mountain Counties Water Resources

Association (MCWRA)

Mokelumne River Association (MRA)
Tuolumne-Stanislaus Integrated Regional Water
Mgt. JPA Watershed Advisory Committee (WAC)

Legal Counsel

Matthew Weber, Esq.
Downey Brand, LLP

Auditor
Richardson & Company, LLP

Membership**

Strange / Davidson (alt. Underhill)
Underhill / Thomas (alt. Ratterman)
Davidson / Ratterman

Davidson / Ratterman

Ratterman (alt. Dave Eggerton)

All Board Members

Strange / Ratterman (alt. Davidson)
Peter Martin (alt. Dave Eggerton)
Russ Thomas

Strange (alt. Thomas)

Davidson (alt. Strange)
All Board Members
Ratterman (alt. Thomas)

Underhill / Thomas
All Board Members

All Board Members
Peter Martin (alt. Metzger)

* Standing committees, meetings of which require agendas & public notice 72 hours in advance of meeting.

** The 1* name listed is the committee chairperson.

Revised: 04/12/17
Board/Committees Listing/2017



UNAPPROVED — SUBJECT TO CHANGES

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-59
ORDINANCE NO. 2017-01

MINUTES

JOINT BOARD MEETING

CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS

And

CALAVERAS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Directors Present:

Director(s) Absent:

Staff Present:

Calaveras Public
Utility District

Board of Directors:

Director(s) Absent:

Calaveras Public
Utility District
Staff Present:

Others Present:

OCTOBER 4, 2017

Scott Ratterman, Vice President
Bertha Underhill, Director

Terry Strange, Director

Russ Thomas, Director

Jeff Davidson, President

Dave Eggerton, General Manager
Peter Martin, Manager of Water Resources
Mona Walker, Clerk to the Board

Cliff Overmier, Chair

J.W. Dell'Orto, Director
Richard Blood, Director
Dave Ortegel, Director
John Lavaroni, Director

Donna Leatherman, General Manager
Kate Jesus, Secretary

Jeff Meyer, ECORP Consulting, Inc.
Dick Underhill

Supervisor Dennis Mills

Vickey Mills

Ryan Gunstream, Honeywell

10/04/17 Board Meeting
Page 10140



UNAPPROVED — SUBJECT TO CHANGES

ORDER OF BUSINESS

CALL TO ORDER /PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1. ROLL CALL

Calaveras County Water District's (CCWD) Vice President Ratterman called the meeting to
order at approximately 6:00 p.m. CCWD's Board Director Jeff Davidson was absent. The
following Calaveras Public Utility District Board Members were absent: John Lavaroni and Dave
Ortegel.

2. PUBLIC COMMENT

There was no public comment.

3. DISCUSSION / ACTION ON THE CALAVERAS COUNTY
MOKELUNMNE RIVER LONG-TERM WATER NEEDS STUDY

e Presentations by CCWD’s Peter Martin, Manager of Water Resources, and
Donna Leatherman, CPUD’s General Manager

Mr. Jeff Meyer of ECORP Consulting, Inc. indicated the Mokelumne River Long-Term Water
Needs Study (Study) was prepared in partnership between Calaveras County Water District
(CCWD) and Calaveras Public Utility District (CPUD) and will be provided to the CA Secretary
of Natural Resources for a report to the Legislature pursuant to AB 142 (Bigelow) regarding the
suitability of portions of the Mokelumne River for wild and scenic designation. The Study will
also be a planning document of the future water needs for the County. Mr. Meyer presented
maps of existing service areas of CCWD and CPUD indicating the Study included projected
demands for use of the Mokelumne River water in Calaveras County for both existing and other
service areas. Potential water service areas include the Wallace, Burson and Valley Springs
areas. These areas are served by groundwater and may be considered at some future date to
be served by surface water. CPUD and CCWD have water rights for 27,000 acre-feet of
Mokelumne River water, and the Study concluded the water right is sufficient to meet the
projected demands. He discussed the simulation modeling and baseline studies in developing
the Study. Mr. Meyer provided conclusions and potential alternatives within the Study to meet
future water demands and highlighted the need for additional upstream storage in the future. Mr.
Meyer responded to questions from the Board Members.

¢ General Discussion / Public Comment Regarding the Mokelumne River Long-
Term Water Needs Study

Mr. Martin provided handouts of supplemental documents on feedback received on the Study
and CCWD and CPUD'’s responses and/or changes made to the Study. CCWD's Director
Strange requested the Lilly Valley Water Company service area be included in the Study as a
potential area to be served with Mokelumne River water in the future. Mr. Martin responded to
questions from Board Members. CCWD and CPUD Board Members thanked Jeff Meyer, Peter
Martin, and Donna Leatherman for their efforts in preparing the Study.

10/04/17 Board Meeting
Page 10141



UNAPPROVED — SUBJECT TO CHANGES

e  Consideration of Approval of the Calaveras County Mokelumne River Long-Term Water
Needs Study:

Calaveras County Water District Board of Directors RES 2017-59

MOTION: Directors Strange / Underhill — Adopted
Resolution No. 2017-59 Approving the Calaveras County
Mokelumne River Long-Term Needs Study

PUBLIC COMMENT: There was no public comment.

AYES: Directors Strange, Underhill, Thomas and Ratterman
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Director Davidson

Calaveras Public Utility District Board of Directors RES 2017-

MOTION: Directors Overmier / Dell’Orto — Adopt Resolution No.
2017-___ Approving the Calaveras County Mokelumne River
Long-Term Needs Study

PUBLIC COMMENT: There was no public comment.

AYES: Directors Overmier and Dell’Orto
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: Director Blood

ABSENT: Directors Ortegel and Lavaroni

The motion failed to pass.

4. ADJOURNMENT

With no further business, the meeting adjourned at approximately 7:35 p.m.

By: ATTEST:
Dave Eggerton Mona Walker
General Manager Clerk to the Board

10/04/17 Board Meeting
Page 10142



UNAPPROVED — SUBJECT TO CHANGES

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-60
RESOLUTION NO. PFA-03
ORDINANCE NO.  2017-01

MINUTES

CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
REGULAR BOARD MEETING

OCTOBER 11, 2017

Directors Present: Jeff Davidson, President
Scott Ratterman, Vice President
Bertha Underhill, Director
Terry Strange, Director
Russ Thomas, Director

Staff Present: Dave Eggerton, General Manager
Matt Weber, General Counsel
Mona Walker, Clerk to the Board
Jeffrey Meyer, Director of Administrative Services
Teresa Tanaka, Director of Operations
Jesse Hampton, Plant Operations Manager
Joel Metzger, Manager of External Affairs, Conservation, and Grants
Randy Scheidt, Senior Distribution Worker

Others Present: Vickey Mills
Bud Andrews

ORDER OF BUSINESS

CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

President Davidson called the Regular Board Meeting to order at 1:04 p.m. and led the pledge of
allegiance.

1. ROLL CALL

Director Strange arrived at 1:05 p.m.

2. PUBLIC COMMENT

There was no public comment.

10/11/17 Board Meeting
Page 10143



UNAPPROVED — SUBJECT TO CHANGES

3. CONSENT AGENDA

MOTION: Directors Ratterman / Thomas —~ Approved Consent Agenda ltems:
3a, Minutes for the Board Meeting of September 27, 2017; 3b, Board of
Directors Monthly Time Sheets for September, 2017; and 3d, Board
Meeting Schedule in November and December, 2017

3a Approval of Minutes for the Board Meeting of September 27, 2017
3b Review Board of Directors Monthly Time Sheets for September, 2017

Director Strange pulled Item 3¢ from the Consent Agenda
3c Approve to Ratify Claim Summary #547 Secretarial Fund in the Amount
of $1,320,329.82 for September, 2017
(Jeffrey Meyer, Director of Administrative Services) RES 2017-_____

3d Approval of Board Meeting Schedule in November and December, 2017
(Dave Eggerton, General Manager)

AYES: Directors Ratterman, Thomas, Underhill, Strange and Davidson
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

OFF CONSENT AGENDA

Director Strange pulled Item 3¢ from the Consent Agenda

3c Approve to Ratify Claim Summary #547 Secretarial Fund in the Amount
of $1,320,329.82 for September, 2017
(Jeffrey Meyer, Director of Administrative Services) RES 2017-60

MOTION: Directors Strange / Ratterman — Adopted Resolution No. 2017-60
Ratifying Claim Summary #547 Secretarial Fund in the Amount
of $1,320,329.82 for September, 2017

DISCUSSION: Director Strange inquired about purchase of tools, auto supply parts, and other
miscellaneous items. He commented that he would like to see more centralized purchasing for
CCWD supplies. Mr. Eggerton responded that staff is developing a more centralized purchasing
program.

PUBLIC COMMENT: There was no public comment.

AYES: Directors Strange, Ratterman, Thomas, Underhill and Davidson
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

10/11/17 Board Meeting
Page 10144



UNAPPROVED — SUBJECT TO CHANGES

4. NEW BUSINESS

4a Recognition of Jon Ingebretsen for 9+ Years of Service with CCWD
(Teresa Tanaka, Director of Operations) RES 2017-61

MOTION: Directors Ratterman / Underhill - Adopted Resolution No. 2017-61
Recognizing and Honoring Jon Ingebretsen for his 9+ Years of Service
with CCWD

DISCUSSION: Ms. Tanaka announced the impending retirement of Jon Ingebretsen, Water
Treatment Plant Operator Ill. A resolution recognizing Mr. Ingebretsen for his 9+ years of service
was read into the record. Board Members thanked Mr. Ingebretsen for his service to the District.

PUBLIC COMMENT: There was no public comment.

AYES: Directors Ratterman, Underhill, Strange, Thomas and Davidson
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

4b Recognition of Steve Goff for 13+ Years of Service with CCWD
(Teresa Tanaka, Director of Operations) RES 2017-62

MOTION: Directors Underhill / Ratterman — Adopted Resolution 2017-62
Recognizing and Honoring Steve Goff for his 13+ Years of Service
with CCWD

DISCUSSION: Ms. Tanaka read a resolution recognizing and honoring Steve Goff for his 13+
years of service with CCWD.

PUBLIC COMMENT: Mr. Randy Scheidt, Senior Distribution Worker, spoke about Steve's efforts
during the 602 Fire in the Valley Springs area in 2004 where Steve Goff worked tirelessly to keep
the water pumps running and the water flowing for firefighting purposes. The Board thanked Mr.
Ingebretsen for his service to CCWD.

AYES: Directors Ratterman, Underhill, Strange, Thomas and Davidson
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

4c Update Regarding Service Line Breaks and High Pressure Issues Affecting
Rancho Calaveras Distribution System
(Dave Eggerton, General Manager)

Mr. Eggerton discussed using resources from the Capital Renovation and Replacement (R&R)
water fund to replace the current Bluebell waterline in the Rancho Calaveras service area and
address the high pressure areas. He reviewed the Jenny Lind water distribution system and
challenges with 85 miles of pipeline in the service area. Mr. Eggerton discussed the pressure
zones in the Jenny Lind water service area and the impacts to waterline pressure systems. Staff

10/11/17 Board Meeting
Page 10145



UNAPPROVED — SUBJECT TO CHANGES

will have consultants and engineers look at installing more pressure reducer valves (PRV’s) to help
reduce the high pressure areas. Director Davidson commented that he would like to review an
engineering model of the pressure zones of the area. Mr. Schiedt, Senior Distribution Worker
addressed the Board indicating that waterline pressures in the Jenny Lind area have not changed
over the years. He went on to describe the Jenny Lind water pressure system, giving stats of leaks
and waterline repairs in the Jenny Lind area during a 5-year span.

Mr. Eggerton suggested recommendations to assist in the high pressure areas, and will include the
recommendations into the current water master plan update. Staff will bring further updates to the
Board. Director Strange suggested adding to the District’'s website recommendations of PRV's to
purchase for residential use and differences in the types of PRV's. Director Davidson made several
comments and requests to staff including: water leaks in the Jenny Lind water service area are
identified on GIS; he would like to include the schedule of long-term pipe replacement on the
quarterly engineering report; and have future customers signing up for water service in the Jenny
Lind water service area receive a more prominent high water pressure alert. There was some
further discussion.

PUBLIC CONMMENT: There was no public comment.

This item was for information only; no action was taken.

4d Discussion / Action Regarding Amending the Rules & Regulations
Governing the Furnishing of Water and/or Wastewater Services, Atticle lll,
Section 21, Application for Service Rates and Billing, adding Domestic Well
Assistance Program Policy
(Jeffrey Meyer, Director of Administrative Services) RES 2017-63

MOTION: Directors Underhill / Strange — Adopted Resolution No. 2017-63
Approving Amendment to the Rules & Regulations Governing the
Furnishing of Water and/or Wastewater Services, Article lll, Section 21,
Application for Service Rates and Billing, adding Domestic Well
Assistance Program Policy and to include Additional Changes
as Proposed

DISCUSSION: Mr. Meyer described the District's current bulk key lock water program (Lancha
Plana Program). The program originated in the Burson area to provide water to non-CCWD
customers who were served by domestic wells that were failing and/or have poor quality water.
People can sign up with CCWD and pay a $10 monthly charge for water they retrieve from a hose
bib from one of CCWD's water treatment plant sites. The Lancha Plana water program expanded
over time and currently the District has 55 customers. The water is to be used for domestic
services only and the District cannot guarantee that the water is potable after it leaves the hose
bib. A Board policy has been proposed for consideration along with a fee schedule for
consideration and adoption.

Director Strange shared his concerns including a recommendation to limit the size of containers to
be filled and road safety requirements for the type of vehicles used to transport the water. Director
Thomas voiced his concern. Staff responded to questions from Board Members. After some
further discussion, Board Members requested the following amendments be included in the policy
to be adopted: 1) language as it relates to providing unauthorized access to water or sharing
and/or duplicating of access keys is prohibited; and 2) changing the Fee Schedule for the Deposit
Fee to $50, and Lost Key Charge to $50.

10/11/17 Board Meeting
Page 10146



UNAPPROVED — SUBJECT TO CHANGES

PUBLIC COMMENT: There was no public comment.

AYES: Directors Underhill, Strange, Ratterman, Thomas and Davidson
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

5. RECURRING BUSINESS

There was nothing to report.

6. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT

Mr. Eggerton reported on the following activities: 1) CCWD will hold a dedication ceremony at 1:00
p.m. on Oct. 25th to celebrate the completion of the Ebbetts Pass Reach 3a Water Transmission
Line Replacement Project, the Board will convene after the ceremony to the Ebbetts Pass Fire
Station at 2:00 p.m. for a Board meeting for consideration of one item; 2) CCWD will hold
stakeholder town hall meetings in the coming months and will convene an ag water roundtable with
local stakeholders with the assistance of the Chamber of Commerce; 3) the Hwy. 4 Water
Workgroup will meet at the CCWD office on Dec. 7th; 4) staff will schedule a Board workshop on
hydro relicensing in early 2018; and 5) staff provided an update on work performed by District
construction staff to address erosion to Wilson Dam.

7. BOARD REPORTS / INFORMATION / FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Director Underhill asked about the status of the bridge installation on Blagen Road in White Pines.
She will be attending the Finance Committee on Oct. 16", and the Mokelumne River Association
meeting on Oct. 20™.

Director Thomas reported on his attendance at the Oct. 11" Eastern San Joaquin Groundwater
Authority JPA meeting; and he expressed his concern that CCWD should make it easier for
contractors to acquire water from hydrants.

Director Strange reported on a recent fire in West Point; he reported on his attendance at the Oct.
10" Calaveras Public Utility District meeting where their Board adopted a resolution approving the
Calaveras County Mokelumne River Long-Term Water Needs Study; and he commented on the
responses received on the Mokelumne River Long-Term Water Needs Study.

Director Ratterman reported on the upcoming Calaveras-Amador Mokelumne River Authority
meeting on Oct. 18", a Mokelumne River Association meeting on Oct. 20" to be held at the Hotel
Leger; and a Mountain Counties Water Resources Association symposium on Oct. 27" in Auburn.

Director Davidson — nothing to report.

10/11/17 Board Meeting
Page 10147



UNAPPROVED — SUBJECT TO CHANGES

8. NEXT BOARD MEETINGS

= Wednesday, October 25, 2017, 1:00 p.m., Ribbon Cutting Ceremony, Cedar Center
Parking Area, 1225 Oak Circle, Arnold

= Wednesday, October 25, 2017, 2:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting, Ebbetts Pass
Fire District, 1037 Blagen Road, Arnold

=  Wednesday, November 8, 2017, 1:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting

= Wednesday, December 13, 2017, 1:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting

9. ADJOURNMENT

With no further business, the meeting adjourned at approximately 3:26 p.m.

By: ATTEST:
Dave Eggerton Mona Walker
General Manager Clerk to the Board

10/11/17 Board Meeting
Page 10148



UNAPPROVED — SUBJECT TO CHANGES

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-64
RESOLUTION NO. PFA-03
ORDINANCE NO.  2017-01

MINUTES

CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
REGULAR BOARD MEETING

SPECIAL MEETING PLACE AT
EBBETTS PASS FIRE DEPARTMENT
1037 BLAGEN ROAD, ARNOLD, CA

OCTOBER 25, 2017

Directors Present: Jeff Davidson, President
Scott Ratterman, Vice President
Bertha Underhill, Director
Terry Strange, Director
Russ Thomas, Director

Staff Present: Dave Eggerton, General Manager
Charles Palmer, District Engineer
Mona Walker, Clerk to the Board
Joel Metzger, Manager of External Affairs, Conservation, and Grants

CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1. ROLL CALL

President Davidson called the Regular Board Meeting to order at approximately 2:00 p.m. and led
the pledge of allegiance. All Board Members were present.

2. PUBLIC COMMENT

There was no public comment.

3. CONSENT AGENDA

There were no consent agenda items.

10/25/17 Board Meeting
Page 10149



UNAPPROVED — SUBJECT TO CHANGES

4. NEW BUSINESS

4a Discussion / Action Approving Submittal of Hazard Mitigation Grant Application
DR-4301-0022, Funding Match Commitment Letter, and Designating Authorized
Agent to CalOES for the Ebbetts Pass Water Tank Replacement Project,
CCWD CIP #11095
(Joel Metzger, Mgr. of External Affairs, Conservation & Grants) RES 2017-64

MOTION: Directors Underhill / Thomas — Adopted Resolution No. 2017-64
Approving Submittal of Hazard Mitigation Grant Application
DR-4301-0022, Funding Match Commitment Letter, and Designating
Authorized Agent to CalOES for the Ebbetts Pass
Water Tank Replacement Project, CCWD CIP #11095

DISCUSSION: Mr. Metzger informed the Board that the District was notified by CalOES that its
Ebbetts Pass Redwood Tank Replacement Project Notice of Interest was determined to be an
eligible project under the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program and was invited to submit a grant
application. The grant application to CalOES is for a potential $2.4 million in federal grant funds for
the replacement of five redwood tanks in the Ebbetts Pass area that are vulnerable to wildfire. If
awarded the grant, the District would have a 25 percent local match of $800,000 that has been
identified to come from the District’s Capital Renovation and Replacement Water Fund, Fund 125.
Staff's preliminary total costs to replace five redwood tanks are estimated to be $3.2 million. Mr.
Palmer fielded questions from the Board Members relating to demolishing the redwood tanks, and
selling of redwood.

PUBLIC COMMENT: There was no public comment.

AYES: Directors Underhill, Thomas, Strange, Ratterman and Davidson
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

5. BOARD REPORTS / INFORMATION / FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Director Underhill stated that she was very pleased with today’s ribbon cutting ceremony
celebrating the completion of the District's Ebbetts Pass Reach 3A Water Transmission Pipeline
Replacement Project. She also reported on her attendance at the Oct. 20" Mokelumne River
Association meeting held in Mokelumne Hill.

Director Thomas reported on his attendance at the Oct. 20" Mokelumne River Association meeting
held in Mokelumne Hill.

Director Strange reported that the Tuolumne-Stanislaus Integrated Regional Water Management
Joint Powers Authority is seeking projects related to the Stanislaus River to submit for grant
funding eligibility.

Director Ratterman reported that he will be attending the Mountain Counties Water Resources
Association meeting in Auburn on Oct. 27"

10/25/17 Board Meeting
Page 10150



UNAPPROVED — SUBJECT TO CHANGES

Director Davidson reported on the CCWD / County Board of Supervisors Coordination mesting on
Oct. 23" and thanked staff for its participation at the County Board of Supervisors meeting on Oct.
24" regarding the cannabis issue.

6. NEXT BOARD MEETINGS

*  Wednesday, November 8, 2017, 1:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting
= Wednesday, December 13, 2017, 1:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting

7. ADJOURNMENT

With no further business, the meeting adjourned at approximately 2:22 p.m.

By: ATTEST:
Dave Eggerton Mona Walker
General Manager Clerk to the Board

10/25/17 Board Meeting
Page 10151



DATE: November 8, 2017

TO: Dave Eggerton, General Manager £2=
FROM: Mona Walker, Executive Assistanjcfyy\v)

SUBJECT: Review Board of Directors Time Sheets for October, 2017

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

For information only.

SUMMARY:

Pursuant to direction from the Board of Directors, copies of the Board's monthly time
sheets from which the Board is compensated from, are included in the monthly agenda
package for information. Attached are copies of the Board’s time sheets for the month
of October, 2017.

Board Members can be reimbursed for mileage cost to travel to meetings/conferences
and are paid at the current IRS rate.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

Monthly compensation and mileage reimbursement costs are included in the FY 17-18
budget.

Attachments: Board of Directors Time Sheets for October, 2017

171



SIX'(£102 '} "uer) wio4 ssuadxg Jopaing

1deq eoueuly o] buo

Z \wwm\%\ S3eq

1. efieyg

%& {MSIASY SAIJRLSIUIIDY

=

;Juediel) jo auneubis

Allenjoe sem aoiAl8s B J8Y) '20-G

‘ani} Apsn| ee uidse (s)junowe sy} 18Y) pue ‘patspusal
L0Z souBUIPIO 10UISIQ pue ‘bes 19 00Z0z uoRoes apon
I81BMA BiLOMED JO adoos o ulyym pue sadoud s wieo siy} jey) ‘sueye Jousicy o} Alesssoau
.2 Pjonpuod sseuisng pue papusye sbussw ‘paunou; sesuadxs ey} 1081100 pue any
8le UlaJey YlIo] 18s swiay sy} pue wielo siyl :sayeys Ainfiad jo Ajjeusd Japun ‘paubisiepun ay |

I~ ha$ £ Q\w\% $ (a181 8beajw S} osn) .m..\m.wo .N ‘pauinbad sjeuazews piodad fpalnbas spdieoas ‘pgpy Aaljog pseog o juensing
£h = G A §£5°0$ UL ‘1l SM] 9y Aq sepiw Ajdiyinw ‘auif sjejo] 104
o LN 2
RN
SEY
7 027 ) MAES - A._s.\\u«ut\ u&w\ . %\«\,,QO §2 -0/
l ~02/ HITYR AT XNT]O 509 /o SAW | S - 07
4 ~"02) 00D #7 VLRI e ) | B - o)
V2 -0/ P wsv\uvv?\ = oMV o~/
/ 072/ v\%v\\{,ash %n&o\ GIDN Aol
2 -072] S tropms ,XQ\Q\NQU L2-]
7 T, T A TS0 [ SFR| 21
SO asusdxy Buneapy ON STA ON SBA ON STA uonduossqg ssusdxy a3 J0 Bupesyy s3eq
1ejoL 1509 feaosddy Joug 3517 uUoneIoOSSY “dey pajeubisaq iAoy
TR T ewen[ T emeda e WHOH INFWISINGWITY HO193HIa
\QQ \ \& < ST Aduop [ nosked _of]  LOIMLSIA ¥FLVYM ALNNOD SYHIAY TV



(2102 'L "uer) wio4 asusdxy Joj0aig

‘1daq souell 0} BLO

| abey

Jﬂ N\l V7% 193eQ

«I\&\V&W\ Nw IMIIADY SAIBASIUILDY

=,

)

/
\K :Uw\

Jueliero jo smmeubis

"anu} Ajjsnf aJe GsTay (s)junowe ay) 18y pue ‘palapua;

Ajlenjoe sem soines aU} JBY) 'Z0-G1.0Z 99UBUIPIQ JouIsIg pue ‘hes 18 00z0z uoloes 8pon
181 Blulolie) Jo adoos ay; uiyym pue Jadosd s wieo sy jey shieye Josic] 01 Alessassu
/8 p2jonpuoo ssaulsnq pue papusie sBujisall ‘paLnou; sesuadxa ey ‘081100 PUE ani
SIE Ulalay yHoj 195 swusy sy) pue wielo siy | sejeys Ainfiad jo Ajjeusd Jepun ‘pauBisiepun syl

oe. QLTS ¢ mb. oS $ «mw& abeayw Sy asn ) S \mk 0O uN. , ‘pasinbal s|eLIvzRWy J10del ipasinbal sydiasal ‘0g0p Ao1j04 preOg 01 JUBNSIN
Slrar 3@\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ S8508 LML opet SYJ ouyp Aq ssjiu Ajdpnu ey sjeo] 1oq §
. )

VAV (] A~ WHIW AV Grogo|
£7 — INGINTL = (T4 L) PR AWy [ LSE]]
Es — {7~ = SN ) WA T RG] T ) L7610

g 0] IR AL eIy (LET
17  — W AN o RIWHD [ 2773179
il %4 NS - WNMIT (IS L[ ZJZT]Y)
< % n YU W DR 10D [ 2]
g= 0c | guIEs s MO G090 2]
2 0?) [ SEL T - W e E [ 2779777
35 U TR STEC PN AVRISIL - oo

. M2 d0d) M am) F9=| LITHG

Wmu\wn_uv.d_. umoOmEumme _Mmo.aad‘ uMMM umw.% :oam_uowMM( .QMM nm«mcmwwmro nonduossa S U0 o Pueom 3wwww<

[/ J ) i
ToVUFS NAADL owey[ ] eweda e WHOH INFWFSYNTNITY HOLOTMIT
[x]  loshed oy LOIMLSIA §FLVM ALNNOD SYHANYTVD

L10e] R raeen




(£102 ') "uer) wiog asusdx3 Jojoal(

1da@ aoueul 0} BLO

N\ VQN\%\ vleq

1 abey

>

IMBIASY BAlJRHSIUILIPY

ST |

‘Juewel) Jo ainyeubis

"an1y Alfsh{ sue ulsisT (S)junoWwe oLy Jey) pue ‘palepual
Aljenjoe sem soin1as 8} JeU ‘20-G 10z SOUBLIPIO ousI@ pue ‘bss 18 00z0Z Uoi0ag apon
Jeyepn BlulolleD Jo adoos ey LM pue tadold si wieo Siy} 1By} lsiege Jou3sig 03 Alesssosu
5I8 pSjonpuod ssauisnqg pue papusyie sBugeswu ‘painoul sesuadxe jeu) 1081100 pue ang

SJe Uisisy yioj Jes swayl ay) pue wiep sty :ssjels Ainfiad jo Ayeusd Jepun ‘paubisispun sy

Om.\uP Cs $ ob. O.n\\\\ $ (o1t 8besju S¥j esn) N \ka K. ‘pauinbal sersyewy podas fpeambal spd1soas ‘pgop Aaljod pleog o} ensing
strvgzs §§\\\\\\§ SES0$ LML 199RI Y] ouy Aq sejw Ajdpinus ‘suy sjezol oy §
=y O/ N Ivod| L)-S0-0/
°9 g _ OUSEY} 20 BIOW [ )07~ 0)
. A} \) v\//w T .
D ozl Q \\\w/ﬁmwmv o/ SRULTWNIDD BoNGNIS [ 217 97-03
N
2 0% | & FTVLEZSI\O 8 ﬂﬁuéﬂwu Li-[1-0])
LO] = s v M S AR
3 oY ] O ReT SONBSE Qavog, IN0T| L 501
- — THEGY ™ DOA2 | L1-%70]
7D ol SONSZ2 W L= LT
S9N asuadxy Bunjsay oN EEIN ON SaA ON SBA uolduossq esusdxg JayiQ 1o Bugespy T aleQg
12301 380D leaosddy Jorid 3817 uoneIoOSSY ‘day pajeubisag K1Anoy
TGS SMIEY quiey| [ ] ssuedxa W0 WHOH LNIWISHNGMITY HO1DTHId
LYOZ TR i/yuop [x] nosfed 04| LOIMLSIA YFLYM ALNNOD SYHIA VIvO




(£102 ‘T "uer) wiog ssuadx3 Jo1241q

1 9884

"1daq aoupulf 03 [DUIBLIO

n\\@\&\m\

@18 IMBIADY BAIIRIISIUILLPY

by &M_M_

2upwipp) fo aunipubis

'anly pue payiisnf ase uplay

(s)iunouwle ay3 pue passpual Aj[enioe sem so1AIBS 9Y3 38Ul 'Z0-STOT 2UBUIPIQ 1013sIQ pue ‘bas 18
0020Z Uoi103g 3p0) 1818 BIUIOJIED JO 2d0DS 3yl UlyIM pue Jadoud si wie)d siy3 18yl ‘Siieye 1913sIg
03 Alessa0au ale Pajonpuod ssauisng pue papuslie suiles ‘palindul sasuadxe 1843 1034400 pue
SNJ1 348 Ua13y Y140} 18s swiayl ay3 pue wiep sy :saiels Anfuad jo Ajjeuad Japun ‘paulisiepun sy

86°50ZS - S n OcA $ (3104 abpajjw sY| asn) s|p10] "paiinbau sjplaipw/1i0das {palinbai sydiasal 0oy Ad1j0d pavog o3 jupnsing
G8¢ SES0S | LT/T/T :310. SHI 3Y1 Aq safjw Ajdnw ‘auyy sjpio ) 1o
PN
/NN
NN
N
A
SL 01T plouwty ul Suppeaw pieoq gmddl  100-52
178 0zt 19397 [210H 18 Bl Uo[IR0SSY JaAlY suwnayon]  190-0z
214 ott aajjiwwo) soueUl AMID] 100-9T
174 ott: 3upesw pieoq gMmII!  1PO-IT
88 YMO[ST 40§ UOO01SE  100-TT
1514 7A) dNndd yum Bunssw pieoq juioff  100-¢
S|l | asuadxy | Bunesy ON SBA ON SOA ON SaA a1eQ
uonduosaqg asuadx3 Jayio 40 Supasiy
jejo]. 1507 jenotddy Jond 1517 UOIIRIS0SSY ‘dey pajeudisaq AAIDY

SOWOY | SSNY WD

£T0Z 4390100  JA/yruopy

J
)

asn WHOA hZ.stmmmDm.S:mm dO1274Id
uwpy

104 LIIHLSIA ILYM ALNNOD SYHINVTIVD

asuadxy
ljoiAed




(2102 '} "uer) wiod esusdxg 10308 | 8bed

1daq eoueUl 0} BLO <. 7/ Q&\Q o ereq > N\ IMBIABY SAIRHSIUILPY
T

\\\ 74 "an} Apsniale uigiay-(S)junowe ey Jeu) pue ‘palopual
== \ 2 Allenjoe sem soiues au Jey 'z0-G L0z SoUBLIPIO Joussiqg pue ‘bas 18 00Z0Z UOROSS Bpo
- \ \\\\«S 19y BlulojieD Jo adoos auj ulyim pue tadod s Wie|o siyj jey) isieye j013s81g o] Aiessaoau
.8 pajonpuod ssauisng pue pspusjie sBuiesw ‘painou) sesuadxs Jey} 1981100 pue any
ueLeD J0 a1mpeubis 8Je UldIsy Yuioj 19s sWwa)l sy pue wiejo siy :sejeys Anfiad jo Aeuad Japun 'paubisiepun sy
N A $| pp O8 8 (o321 ebeajui Syl 81) S1BJO | 'Pasnbad setiezewly piodai ipaiinbe. sdjeoss ‘ggop Ao1jod pieog o3 juensing
L/ . . [; 7
N
@D
INESS
L7
[ ,
T mu,rﬂ\.mm Grb,&n@m,\\ﬁ \\w\. 220 <f MN\D\
~ Vi
o O/ rtm\ﬁ ef [y F 202/ a7
o= T Poff AIOT) DUV LIIILTT T bl oy
== TE7A e A =1 WRLLY,
SEN asuadxy Bunespy ON SBA oN SaA OoN SaA uonduossq ssuadxg Jayip 1o Buneay a1
1ejol 31800 feaosddy Jorig ISI7 uoleIsoSSY ‘day pajeubisag Aianoy
ISR FF A owen| ] esuedxa ueh WHOL INFWNFSHNGNIFE HOLOFHIT
L]2Z L) ippuopy [X| noshed oyl LOIMLSIA ¥FLYM ALNNOD SYHIAY TV




RESOLUTION NO. 2017 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

RATIFYING CLAIM SUMMARY NO. 548

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
has reviewed and considered Claim Summary Number 548 at the Regular Meeting held
on November 8, 2017; and

WHEREAS, Board Members have resolved questions, issues, or concems by
consultation with District staff during said meeting.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER
DISTRICT Board of Directors hereby ratifies Claim Summary Number 548 in the
amount of $1,574,004.65 for the month of October, 2017.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 8" day of November, 2017 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:
CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Jeff Davidson, President
Board of Directors

ATTEST;

Mona Walker

Clerk to the Board



Calaveras County Water District
Claim Summary # 548

Certificate of Administrative Officer

The services listed on the within schedules were actually rendered by the
close of the current month. The articles listed on the schedules within and the
supporting invoices were actually delivered, or payment therefore is properly due
prior to delivery. To the best of my knowledge all claims made are in accordance
with adopted Board policies and/or other Board actions and are in compliance with
all applicable laws. The claimants named on the within schedules are each entitled
to the amount set opposite their respective names.

QY-

Jeftfey Meyer '
Director of Administrative Services

1. October 2017 payroll checks issued on 10/13/2017 150,239.10
2. October 2017 payroll checks issued on 10/31/2017 166,656.10
3. October 2017 compensation to Directors 2,776.51
4. Vendor payments for October 1 through 31, 2017 938,031.93
5. Other payroll related costs 316,301.01

Claim Summary Total $1,574,004.65




€6'TE0'8E6 S sjuawAed |p10]

66'SYE'T {4) Aepno jeude)
69 TE9LT (3) s13foid ¥y jeuded
96°070°0ST (@) JUBWBSINqUIRY |Bllied
79 €V0'vT )] (aan3ipuadxa 01 Jowd pPa123]j0d spuny) syuawAed Atepnpy
6T 7SLEY (9) Sjuswizalde Juel3 WO pasinquial aq 03 salnjipusdxy
00°000°st (v) $31ouase JaY30 Wouy pasingquiial aq 03 saniipuadxy
99°LET989 $ saunyipuadx3y Sunessdo gD

L10T ‘L€~ 1890100
Aewwng juswesingsiq 4y
10UISIq J91BAA AlUNOD) selaaBED




(@
o)

to)

(@

E)

8401

leegee L102/1e/01 B2S# SI0IUIA - J9xo0|peaIY | AUB[RDS/EZSBMIUY/I0jEIPEY/SBPE|g JadIM AlddNS OLNY JTONYY  9908Zi
86'¥00'L £10¢/1e/0) CTSH# DPIYSA - Jojeulsljy/sollalieq AlddnsS OLNY TONYY 98082l
ov'iee L102/1E/0) 0S 1# 9]oIyaA - Ued Ull(/sa|qe) Jadwnr/jue|oo)/suleyO/io/sioNld AlddNs OLNY JTONYY  9908¢)
Sice £102/1e/0L SEL# SIOIIA - PInj4 auibug jesaiq AlddNs OLNY ATONYY 88082l
00'€69'L 2102/02/04 llonasay [iwmes - Jleday U0IS0.I0D ANVAINOD HO3L VDY £00824
08'062'8 £2102/90/0L Hwmeg - yue | ebeiolg sejem ues|D/osdsuy| ANVJWOO HO3L YNDVY 688121
6€'817L'8¢ £102/50/01 L1/0} 838y ‘9oueInNsU| YljeaH SSOHO ANTE-WAHLNY 143
SZ'LZ6' L LL02/50/0L L1101 seakojdwiz ‘soueinsuj yjesH SSOH0 INTI-WIHLINY 143
00°LLL L10e/1e/01 spidey JoAiS 68EE - Buiquinid Jawoysny Jledey ADIAGES NIVHG ® J3M3S ST3ONY §908¢)
00°004 L102/1€/0) L1/0) dwoD pausjeqg i ANVJNOD LSNYL 3AVHLIMINY  #90821
€0'046'L L10Z/EL/0L L1/60 S0inBg UlIoHUN ONI'STOINY3S JAIYdIYINY  ¥S6.L21L
00'898‘¢ £102/0¢/0L 81/Z1-81/L0 [emauay diysiaquiaiy O0SSY SHHOM HaLVM NVOIMIWY 200821
0008 L102/1E/0) 809# 2[01UaA - (¥) S8l L aouejegAuUNON IOINGIS WL 8V €908¢E
00°05 £102/0¢/01 81.L# SIOIUBA - (y) bueyy aul] |euoseag JOIAGES FHIL SV 000821
L1869 L10g/EL/0L dIMM - L1/01 18j007 J8jepp HILVM ONDINIKG YHENVHTY  €66421
(AU Zi0zg/eliol dLMMOT - L1/60 18]007 J9JBAA HILYM ONDINIKA VHEWYHTY - 266421
9e'/82 L102/02/0) d3 - sBumi/a|ZZON/3SOH/AUIRd/MES/|aSILD/Wo0Ig AlddNS ANV SSV1O TVOTY  1008Z)
[AA4 L102/EL/0L dLMMY - Jswild/sBuinid adid/edid OAd AlddNS ANV SSY19 VOV LG6L2E
¥ieoc'e £10¢/90/0L L1160 SBlY ovVidv  $88L21
£8°EVS’L £102/1E/0L 2102 101des 801Mag jjloihed ONI dav  ¢o082)
6€°06€'82 £102/1e/0L L1/60-21/20 ®oueInsu| uoljesuadwoy SI9NIOM VIdI/ VMOV 180821
89 L¥¥'L 210¢/90/01 £10Z AONASO S384119Y ‘8duBINsU| UOISIA VIdIVMOV  €88.¢L
09'GL6'y £102/90/0) 2102 AON/SQ sealijey ‘soueinsyy fejus( VIdIVMOV  288.¢)
G8°.L0¢ 11.02/90/01 £102 MONARO dvd VIdI/VMOV  €88/21
25'6e9'C £102/90/0L L10Z AONARO sookoldwiz ‘soueinsu| UoisIA VIdI/VMOV 28812}
A At A £102/90/01 £10Z NONARO seakojdwz ‘soueinsuyj [ejua(Q VIdI'YMOVY 288421
po'gee’oeL  L102/90/0L 81/01-L1/01 weiboid Aliger] [elsuso/oiny VI VMOV 188421
00°¢06'1e £102/02/0L 810z seng diysiequiajy VMOV 666421
66°GvE'L L102/1€/01 Jojoel) d MM YHomyinog - Adouegpyiedesog xog  Hivd3Y INIONT TIVINS B ONINIJHVHS LV 09082}
le'es L102/90/0L umolg - L1/60 suoyd 1190 ALMEONW L8 LY  088.C)
yZvol 2102/1€/0L LU0} @ulf-1L ELINTVO LR LY 68082L
£G'8LL 2102/ el0L OH dO - £1/60 suold ELIANTVOL® LY 850821
yXAra L1021 e/0L ASHMOD - LL/QLauoyd CLONTVO LR LY  L1S08TL
1ol L1L0Z/LE0L S/ eejeay - L1/0) suoyd ELINTIVO LR LY 95082
VA 4 £10¢/1E/0L souelsiq Buo - £1/01 suoyd EIONTVO LR LY  G508¢2)
oeery'l £L102/1€/0L o177 - LL/GL suoyd CLINTVO LR LY  +508CL
6¥'0¢C L102/LE0L S/d uoyBupioq - £1/0} duoyd ELINIVO LR LY 29087}
Sy'6.lc LL0z/eL/oL llouuoD dwed - £1/60 Jamo | oipey jousiq CIANTWWO LR LY 6v6iCt
A A L10¢e/1e/0l xa|dwo) 97 - L1/01 89I1AI9S Joulaiul 1l®LV 15082t
00°LE L10¢/eLi0L 07 - L1/60 @21nisg Joulaiu] L31lY  8y6lZl
0669 2102/EL/0L L1/Q} saul7 pasean 1%LV /v6lCL
junowy ajeq uondilosag uonjoesuel |} saAojdwizg/iopuaa "ON 3oayD

2102 ‘L€-1 18qo300
Juswesingsi( dv
(IAADN



g8io0¢

06'62 LL0ZIELIOL OH dO - dn oeg jeusiyj SADIAYIS ANVYD 143
9.°€02 210zZ/ELiol Bingnq - Buibpo] 8s1n0) meinay v opelo ‘uolnqulsiq Jeie SIDIAMIS AX¥VD 143
92'€02 2L0Z/ELIOL uealng - Buibpo] 8siN0D Mainsy ¥ apelo ‘uolNquIsi( Jelem SADIAYIS aHVO 143
00'66 LLOZ/EL/OL yHeMOH - Jeuiwag saulipes(]/siosiold sidiynpy Buibeuepy SADIAYIS ANV 143
00°/6G LL0Z/eL/0L UUemoH/asing/uoldweH - Jeuilusg [8oX3 paouerpy SIDIAYIS AuVD 143
00°65S LLOZ/EL/OL uousB63 - uonensibay 20UBIBJUOD JIBd VMDY SADIAYIS YV 143
0008 LLOZ/ELI0L uewIsley - uopesibay WnsodwAg Jajep) SSRUNCD UIBILNON SIADIAYIS ANVYD 143
9.°¢8 L102/LE/0L L1/0}. @oueusutepy Joidoy/seidod ONI AdOD NOGYVYD  £408Z)
oLoLL 2102/90/01 11160 @oueuBlUiEl Joidon/seido) ONI AdOD NOgMVYD 168421
129 210zZ/02/01 " ®0BjjEM - £1/01 suedoid YHOdWYD 900821
$5'692°L Z10Z/LE/0L L1/80 saui auoyd JHLVO 20821
0£'651 2102/02/0L doys r - sped Jlieday Jepiop 09 A1ddNS ONIQTIM VINYOHITYD 500821
(@ 10626 L102/EL/0L L LO# BIOIUBA - S950H/sBSRD) BUIPIOAN/SISPUIAD 00 AddNS ONIATIM VINYOLITYD 656421
85°0£0'L L10Z/ELi0L BPIM JOLISIC - LL/0L [BSOdSIF 8snyey  SINFLSAS AMIACOTY TLSVYM VINYOLITYD 856221
ZreLL 2102/90/0} S/d eliiniesiip - sequinT - ONI 0O ¥3gNNT SYHIAVIVD  068.2L
£6°8/ 21.02/90/01 spleiAelds OLOAN/HQ - ;Bwld/BaeA lleg/sbuiiid adid ONI 00 YIFNNT SYHIAYTIVD  068/2)
80'vL2 £102/90/01 SIOIWYA(] - SBYOUBIANIBWIIBH/Y [IHC/SISS 183008 ONI 0D Y¥3FNNT SYYIAVIVD 068221
96'ere 2102/90/01 dIMMINS - sBumid/siien/sdie | /seyousipy/esoHysaliddng ONI 00 ¥3gWNT SYHIAVIVO  068.21
LO°SY 1102/90/01 dLMM OLOA/HQ - stadding aiipay feuiwa ] [eowos|g/Buign . ONI 0D ¥3gNNT SYHIAVIVO 068421
00091 LL0Z/ELioL pY Juswiinioey JojesedQ jueld Jusuiesas | Ja1ep ONI ANVAINOD 1S4 SYHIAVIVD  LG6/2)
(@) ¢o'goe's 110Z/90/01 wefoid VE yoray d3 - S80S JUBJNSU0Y 20In0say [eIn)ind aAleN SNYIAONI MNM-IIN 40 ONVE SYHIAVIVO 688421
LO°ESP'L LLOZ/LEIOL SPIM JouIsI( - SI9)ji4 JojRIouaD) A1ddNS 01NV SYHIAYTYD L0821
(@ o96°1€8 210Z/LE/01 L LO# BI01UBA - SBUDUBIAN/SIBYDIBY/SIN00S Islewiny onsoubeig AlddNS OLNY SYHIAVIVD  L2082)
8502 L10Z/LEI0L 9T L# BIOIYBA - SI8llId IV/IO AlddNS 01NV SYHIAVIVO 120821
oy ov LL02/1e/01 JuswesINquiey 1eARL] JBUILSS [80XT paouBApY ANVSHdIL ‘IMYNg 020821
GL'8p 2102/90/01 L1/60 JusweasINquIRy [9ABI] 810 150d ANVH4IL ‘3MENG  888.21
00°80% 210Z/LL/0L : L1/60-21/L0 Xe1 98N NOILYZITVNOF 40 ayvod 143
06748 L10Z/Le/0l B2G# SIOIUBA - sleag Jalsjoydnay AY3LSTOHdN O %9 890821
¥9'L2h L10Z/\ei01 Z1.9# 9IDIUSA - paouefeg/pajunoly (2) salil JUVYD OLNY ANV JHIL IONYY 290821
00°2Z¢El LL0Z/EL/0L 61.L# SI0IYSA - peouejeg/pajunop (v) saurl VYO OLNV ANV IHIL TONYY 956721
G1'928'L 2102/90/01 L2/# BIOIUBA - (P) SBUI) JSJUIA IYYO OLNV ANV 3MIL QTONYY  988/21
00°G1 2102/90/01 61.L# BOIUaA - sreday Je4 IUYD OLNY ANV JYIL QTIONYY  988/21
€L'9P6 2102/90/01 Z0G# 2IoIUBA - (¥) S8UIL JSJUIM YYD OLNY ANV JHIL CIONYY 98821
95°66%'L 2102/30/01 LZL# 9OIUBA - (9) salL JUYD OLNY ONV 3MIL TIONYY 98821
¥20L LL0Z/LE/0L dLMMY - Ususipyiepueg sgn AlddNS OLNY GTONYY 99082}
918y L10Z/LE/0L Jossaidwod dIMdM - Lodeag QI71/S8S0H AlddNS OLNY ATONYY 990821
0g°g L10Z/LE/01 SUBIoH}0B|T - SJoWWolD) AlddNS OLNV GIONYY 990821
11°020'L 210Z/1e001 Jojesousg Juowmopes d3 - 10/SI8)id AlddNS OLNY GTONYY 990821
9821 LL0Z/LE/0L doys d3 - 198 |00} aur jend AlddNS OLNY GTONYY 99082}
Sy 0LL 2102/18/01 J0jeIBURD) d1IMMM - JuBjooDlieg N/eless auibug AlddNS OLNY AIONYY 990821
66'99 2102/LE/01 L2 /# S|0IUaA - 3o0H adoy/sisuiqued/pinid Jeysepyede | AlddnS OLNY TONYY 99082}
junowy ajeq uonduosaq uonoesues} safo|duwig/iopuap "ON Yo9LD

2102 ‘1 €-1 4990100
JUBWIBSINGSIT dV
OIANAND



840 ¢

107292 L102/90/014 OH dO - 21/60 201183 181N ando 106zt
¥8'8v0'20L  LLOZ/ELIOL L1/60 Jamod vddd  $96/Z1
00°020'c £102/90/01L 8L/0L-2L/LL OO/ - suonoadsu) yue ] aBeI0ig 18jep O¥dHY0OD 006221
v9'661 L102/LE/0L OLZ# 2PIYBA - J0)sisex/AIquIassy Jemo|g/oIZZON/SSOH/PIN|d JSUSEAA ANV B OLNY ¥3dd0D 080821
G6°201 2102Z/LE/01L B0L# SI0IUBA - Sped ayelg INIYVIA B OLNY ¥3ddOD 080821
89°GS LL0Z/LE/0L SEGH DIOIUBA - PINj4 suibuz |esaiq ANREVIA R OLNY H3dd00 080821
9e'g L10Z/LE/0L P21 SIOIUBA - feutwie | Ateyeg ANV B OLNY ¥3dd0D 080821
6698 2102/1E/01 €ZL# S[OIUBA - JOUIN ANIYVIAL B OLNY ¥3ddOO 080821
11708 L10Z/LE/0L ISHMOD - Pinjd JaYse/[BUUNJ/USBAA JBD INIVA 8 OLNY ¥3dd0D 080821
007280t 1102/90/01 £1/01 sedieg poddng sinonysesu) 1 ONI SNOILNTOS HIINOD 668721
(@ osvve'L 1102/0Z/0} jo8loid suljadid Vg yoeay 43-seoines uojoadsul/Bulse | sjelelen ONI SFIDOTONHOIL HIY¥YI HOANOD 210821
o8'LLL 2102/18/01 dLMIM - 2102 AONAOO 8o1uag jeuisiul 1SYOWOD 60821
£6'G8 2102/02/01 D1 - 21L/0) 80iniag Jouisu| 1SVYONOD 110821
£6°68 2102/90/01 OH dO - 21/0} 801neg jausei| ISYOWOD  /68/2Z1
£6'GL 2102/90/01 dLMM OLOA/HA - L1/0} 8dIAIg Joulsu] LSYOWOD  968.2L
€668 2102/90/01 JLMIP - 2101 8o1es jeue) LSYOW0OD  g68/2L
00°069 £102/90/01 21160 ®2IMBSG PRO|D BJoIUBA SNOLLYOINNWIWOD VIGWNT00  ¥68.21
00°008'S LL0Z/LE/0L 854N07 J{09) JUOWMOPEBI 3 - PeOY $5800y Alelodwa] JO jerowsy NOILONYLISNOD VINYOOSIL I100  22082)
00°'8.¢ 2102/LE/01 dLMMDT - £10Z 100AdeS [o1u0) 1sad TOYINOD 1S3d MHVID  9.082L
00 L¥L 2102/1€/0L dLMIF - 21/60 [oJjuoD ised JOHLNOD 1S3d MHV1D  92082L
0o0'szlh 210z/02/01 OH dO - LL/0L loaue) 1s9d TOYLINOD 1S3d MHv1D 010821
00°0%2 210Z/ELI0L ooejlep - 210 dag/Bny jonuo) 1sad TOYINOD 1S3d MUVID  €96.2L
00°00} £102/90/01 dLMMM - 2160 104ju0D 188d JOYLNOD LS3d MHVID  £68.21L
£2'669'Y LLOZIELIOL abeliA BIIN XIS - L1760 1ameg STHONY 40 ALID  Z96.21L
0v'0.2 2102/02/0} 10]R13UBE) S/ OJI0B[BA - SBUOIMS aimeiadws | HOLYHINTO VINHOAMYD TVHINID 600821
05°500°} 2102/02/0) Jojessuag z# jue| seal] Big - Jledey Joyorde) HOLVHINIO VINYOLITYD TWHINIO 600821
ZLers'y L102/1E/01 Pl S/1 0D - pBlysIaylespiewiosuRl | LiaIy¥o gad  so8zl
£0'660'L L102/02/01 d1Mr - Hun [euusy Jeue)s 1aayo gIo  go0szt
86'¥00'L £102/90/01 dLM SJ8juny - 8|qBD/SISNSEDAINPUOD/BIIM Laayo aao  zesszt
¥9'¥¥9 210Z/LE/0L 40018 ISHMOD - 8V |1 888D p/E S1ONAOHd MOo0d TIIH NOSHYD  #2082L
62695 L102/0Z/01 we( UoS|ipy dM - pusig snuin 2/1 S1ONA0¥d 0O0Y THH NOSYVD 200821
89°861 210Z/ELI0L S/d SllIMBS|IM - 300y UlRI( p/g S1ONA0Yd MO0Y TIIH NOSHVYD 196221
9Lv0l LL0T/EL/0L sBoT spiyep SIDIAYIS QYYD 143
90°/6¢ LL0Z/EL/0L seljddng Buesyy sakojdwz S3DIAYIS YV 143
78686 L10Z/ELi0L dLMP - 198N JuelpAy SIDINYIS QHVD 143
00°00Z'L 2102/81L/01 d1IMM OLONAQ - Jemolg SIDIANMIAS QXY 143
0066 L102/ELi0L Bue - usweoe|day suoyd j[@ SIDIAYIS aHvD 143
566 L10Z/EL/01 Sdo oipey - a:emyog oysoubei( SIADIAMIS aXVD 143
9/'896 L102/EL/0L Zi# S 00 - yeg/dwind jand/seson/duind Jajem SIADIAYIS AV 143
15°16 LLOZIELIOL dLM sJejuni - 8oiaeg Jeuse) SIADIAYIAS AUV 143
LY LY LLOZ/ELIOL £1/60 9bueyox3 pajsoH jeN-3 SIDIAMYES ANVD 143
unowy ajeq uopjduiosaq uopgoesuel ] saAojdwigliopuap "ON ¥28Y)

2102 ‘L€-} 189010
JusWssSINgsI(] dv

FUYTARLNIN



(@

(a)

)

giot

G621 2102/02/01 dLMTP - JojeinofeD HIONIVHD  $2082L
82°¢19'L 1102/80/01 dIAMM YHomUinos - duind sjqisiswigng HIAONIVHD  808.21L
16 2L 2102/90/01 d1M BoBl[BA - 9SBBID/UNG BSBRID HIAONIVHO  806.2)
89¥E £102/0Z/01 sueioo9|g - Y PBULED ONI ‘NOILO3NNOOAOD  £2082ZL
88928 1102/02/04 Juswaoeidey dIMIM - SdN ONI ‘NOILOINNODAOD  £208Z1
6¥°29G L102/EeL/0L siedgrielies ] OLOAUIEG dMN - (P) seulyoen Xe4 ONI ‘NOILOINNODAOD  228.21
¥¥'92S 2102/LE/01 spieyAelds d1Mmm UHoMUINoS ~ gy |t sseld ONI 0334 394039 060821
L8ELY'S 210Z/Le/01 ISHMOT - sdwejd-ipey ONI 00 A1ddNS ONIGNNTd IVHINID 680821
GZ'16S L10Z/LE/01 Ayjioe Jusunes|-ald LM - uonebiseay; [eoibojseyoly SILVIOOSSY ANV VIOUVD 880821
00°599 210Z/Le/04 dIMMY - [erowsy splog-olg "ONI TYSOdSIA IgNYD 280821
56'L2 L102/E1i01 BEL# SIOIUYBA - USeM 18D 39N % HSYM OLNY SADD0HS  L26/2L
GZ'9./¢ 210Z/€1i0) sadojeauz SOIHAYHO 2 ONLINIYd TIIHLOO4 046421
0028 2102/02/01 youey desyg - £1/0} lelusy 1810 ajgelod S13T0L F18VLIH0d TIHLOO4 220821
61°65¢ L10Z/LE/0L splayAeids d1MM UHOMUINOG - Bseg PeoY/[BLaiel (ioeg STIVIYILYW THHLOOS 980871
L0'EBY'Y 2102/90/01 dLMM OLOA/HA - 18X ejqisiswigng ONI'ADOTONHOIL INIT-014 206424
§9'/62'L L10Z/LEI0L S/d Aeny - spy plingay [BABID ONI 'SISINCYILINT NOSNOYId 80821
£6°'665 LL0Z/1E/01 Ir - ade | ue|eeg/JUBdLIGNT]/SISUBS|D/SOA0|D/SBSSEID Ajajeguled IYNILSVY4  $808Z1
¥6'¥69 L102/0Z/01 d3 - ade 1/sbnid teg/sanologuled/saeneg/sisaym Bupuun TYNILSVY4  L208el
0.°89% 2102/02/01 L LG SIOIYDA - 8]9S YouaIp ONI A1ddnS OLNY ANV WYY+ 020821
00'6.2'% LL0Z/LE01 21/01 Bunsa sojepn ONI “IYOILATYNY NOLva SNIJ0oYN3  £8082L
00°'¥80'F 2102Z/1e/0L L1/01 Bunsa seiep oisep ONI “IVOILATYNY NOLY3 SNIJOYUN3  £8082L
00%20'C 210Z/90/01 L1160 Bunss ] Jsjepn ONI "TYJILATYNY NOLV3 SNIJ0¥NT  906.¢h
007252 £102/90/01 21760 Bugsa] iejepn sisep ONI "IVOILATYNY NOLVE SNIJ0YNa 906421
00°8¥ 2102/90/01 1o8foid Jusweoe|day auljedid ve uoeey d43 - Bulidues {-oeg ONI "IVOILATYNY NOLV3 SNIJ0YNT 906421
8v'¥L2 2102/02/01 juawysiwes bowg wooz 1430 INIWJOTIAIA INFWAOTJIWE  8108ZL
0S'6LY'LL 1102/90/01 v Apnig ‘Aiddng Jeiepn JeAlY suwiniayop ONI 'ONILINSNOD dY003 5064221
Z5zl0'ce 2102/90/01 g Apnig 'Alddng Jejepn JoARd suwneyon ONI'ONILINSNOD 44093 606421
8561 £102/90/01 sJojoadsy| - s1ejdnogyedid HIgNNT SSYd S1134993 v06.21
ov's8l 2102/90/01 d1M sJepuny - Buign /sBunyd/ade ) /sdweld d3gNNT SSYd S113893  v06.21
4% 72 2102/90/01 Joslold Jusweoeday sulfedid YE Yoeay d3 - SIBUSBANSISO4/MequinT JIGWNT SSvd SLi3dasd ¥06.21
G1€9 210Z/90/01L dLMMINS - MeS pueH/salialjeg/ansst ] /S|amo | J39NNT SSYd 8113893 v06.¢2)
oL2LL'e L10Z/ELI0L £1/80 19n4 JOINY3S SYO SSVd SLiAgad £96/2L
007092 2102/0z/01 L1/80 seo1usg jeba dTT SAINYOLLY ONVYE AINMOAQ 910821
€9'/65'le  LL0Z/90/0L L1/80 seojnieg [eber dTT SAINYOLLY ANVYE AINMOA  €06.21
9L 0L¥ £102/90/01 OH dO - (9) siexoeig Bulumy wnujwnjy SIVIAN JAILONILSIA  206.2)
Z6'6% LL0Z/LE/01 LL/OL [eneIL 443r ‘NOSQIAVG 280821
$5'S. £10z/0z/0L €1LL# 9IOIYBA -3GO dOHS OLNY d01S Lid S3anvad 610821
¥8L6L'Y 210Z/€1/01 £1/60 Buisssooid juswiorels gn ISOYdVYIvYa 996421
8£°968'2 210Z/EL/0L ue|d poddng atemyog pedyono/dXo S3aND  §96/2L
00°05. L102/02/01 () pers Aunn - ubisaq llom Jo sINO/sul ayL YMHED  £108Z1
G5'6LT L10Z/1E/01 OH dO - LL/0) 8o1muag Jejep andd 180821
unowy ajeqg :O_un:._ummm uopoesuel mm>o_aEmtOUcm> “ON 094D

2102 'L€-1 J8qojo0
Juswesingsiq dy

[u1.¥.Salal



te)]

@)
@

@

840G

62'856 £102/90/01 d1MOD - 8jliojyoodAH wnipos IVOINTHO YVLISHINON 226421
91062'L 2102/EL10L L1/60 @oueinsu| 8y I MHOA MAN  €86221
60928 21028101 L1/} | 190G I8p|0 Juswaslby soueusiulepy ONI VSN 1SOdOaN 28621
00°000'L L10Z/LE/0L 21/01 eBejsod 1SOdO3N A8 SANN4O3IN  S6082L
0002 210zZ/€L/01 8EGH# SOIUBA - seday aui] NOYAIHO HSYN 186421
LO'SPL'9 L102/30/01L Z1/0L soueInsUl Q.L/ARAV/RNT VHVYWNO 40 IvN.LNA [ XATAA"
06°9€9 2102/02/01 GEL# SpPIYeA - Uno Aesdg/e|zzon/eleld JBap dINDT IONYNIALNIVIN TVdIDINNIN - €£08ZL
09251 £102/90/01 21/60 ssyjddng/iaiepm HILVYM SISVYO NIVANNOWN  026/Z1
09¥09 LL0Z/ELI0L L1101 901neg Bupiemsuy IDIAYIS ONIYIMSNY 301 H3HION 086421
0066 2102/eL01 L1/60 lejuay topujAo ¥Y3O B SYO OOMIV OLSIAON 626421
Z6'696' 2102/02/01 d1MTP - uebBAxp pinbi ONI 'SYO-1HL NOSIHLYIN  Z£0821
eLps 2102/02/01 LE L# BIOIUBA - SUld YoUH SIHOSSIOOY MONYL VOIINYIN  LEOSZL
00'¥6L'S L10Z/LEI0L L1/60 saonieg jeben JHOWLIHM AQISSYD 1838317 v60821
62126 2102/02/01 suonerousy g1'gl §,8/1 0O-seoieg ubiseq/bunsauibug ONI'OY %337 620821
08126 210z/02/0L ssedAg ulely 82104 % £1°21'8 8.8/1 DO-seomiag ubiseq/Bulssuibuy ONI'OY %337 82082
66°902 2102/02/01 ISHMOD - senoj/sBugiduewnd/ede | jwooigydie | /sjpmo | fanssi | INIVA INYL HOOTINL IMV1 820821
G1'€26'yl  110Z/90/01L ue|d JajseiN MM 8A00 Jaddoy - seoieg Buussuibul SINVLINSNOD SHUNIMVAGINNIY 81621
00'066 2102/90/0L dM - Busa ] mojpjoeg "ONI ‘STDIAYIS MOTIMOVE SATIIN 16421
L0$09'2 £102/90/01 I - Bugsa ) mojpioeg "ONI 'STOINYIS MOTIMOVE SATIIM 216421
0.'96¢'L L102/90/01 00 - Bupsa | moppjoeg "ONJ 'STDIAYIS MOTIMOVE SATIEN 216221
008826l Zl0Z/LE/OL 10901 Juswaoe|day suljedid | yoesy d3 - seomeg Bunesuibug SHIINIONT ONILTNSNOD ISV £608ZL
Loes LLOZ/ELIOL L1/60 uoonysaq uawnoog NIVINNOW NOYI 92621
¥€'$0G £102/90/01 ISHMOD - J0}e00 Ui Jeday "dH0D ADOTONHOIL INFWNHISNI 916421
06'€28'L 2102/1E/01 Jaddoy - jeng ONI'SNOS % INNH 260821
¥2'290't £102/02/0L dM - 18n4 ONI'SNOS % INNH 220821
$6°08 LLOZ/ELIOL dLMMY - £1/0L 8olAI8g Jaulaul 13aNsaHoONH  s/6.21
£2'e8 2102/90/01 JdLMMINS - Z1L/0) 80183 1auIsiu| 1INSIHONH  vi6l2l
0g°96¢ 1102/90/01 £1/01 Bupesiy UOBIOOSSY JaAY sulLnieoN H3IOIT1ALOH  ZL6Lel
0£'988 L102/LE/0L Joofoid spaydelds dIMM YHOMUINOS - [gjusy Jayoual | VINYOAITYD 40 LTOH L8082
89'608'} Li0g/eLioL 1o8{oid spayhelds d 1L MM UHOMUINOS - [eluay souyoeg VINYOLITYD 40 L1OH /6421
¥6°L05'e 2102/90/01 1o0fo1d spiayhelds d1MM UHOMUINOS - [ejuay JOJBABIXT Ul VINYO4ITYD 40 LTOH L1621
£v'2ol 2102/ELI0L 9Z1# SPIYBA - Josusg aunssald 110 VINYOLITYD 40 L1OH  ¥/6421
00686'L L102/0Z/0L L1/0} sedInBg jelojuepr ONINVITO SA009d0H 920821
§5°82¢'6 2102/0zZ/0L L1/60 ApmS 801188 J0 Js00)/sIsAjeuy [eioueul ¥aH  sz08zi
L2'¥86 L102/ELI0L dLMTP - 198 Juabeay/uoln|og/OBANODY SUOZO/UIZBULIO ANYVAINOD HOVH  €26421
0s'eLl 210Z/ELI0L dIMdM - [ed]gelS ANVAWNOO HOVH  €26421
67 cEh 1102/90/01 S,dLM HS/SJBIUNH - 188 usbeay ANVANOO HOVH 60642}
00°16€'S 210Z/90/0L 81-L1l Ad joenuo) soiusg jusudinbg ANVAWNOO HOVH 60621
61086 £102/02/01 dLM SJ8JUNH - sI0yduY/sI0}0auu0/sdwWelD/siy 8oljdg/shel] ajqeD HIONIVHD  $2082L
£9'691 2102/02/01 d1M @9B[[BAA - SBA0|D) [BDjWBYD YIONIVED  +2082)
JAN ¥ 2102/02/01 0Z/L# SIIYBA - spasul/xog 001 YIADNIVHD #2082
unowy ajeq co_uatuwmc uonoesuel ) mm>ouQEm\chcm> ‘ON %o8yD

2102 ‘1€-1 4890100
uswasingsi(] dy

FIAAMY



(@

{q)

8409

00°Z8L') L102/90/014 [eroway o6pNIS dIM SI9JUNH - [BIUSY JojoRI | "ONI ‘S3VS ® STVINIY VHONOS  +€642L
0L€50'9 L10Z/LE/0L useg sauld ayum - sBulidnogysbuiniy/sadid/sdweid NOSMOVT - SOHE ATMVIS 201821
rAsRos £102/90/01 8EL# BPIYAA - 8GN0 SHOLOW vHY3IS  ££6/2)
6261 L102/90/01 d1MOD - sanjeA (leg ONI LIMYVIN SYIANIS  2€6.2)
L9vE 210Z/90/01 doyg r - sayddng/deog ONI LIMHVYIN SY3ANIS  2e6421
0e0cL 2102/90/01 ISHMDT - sbunii-eong/sbeg/sde 1 /senojo/sionoys ONI LaMHUVvIN SHAANIS fAMYAAS
06°261 £102/90/01 dLMMDT - steusise/sbegysiesyg/duing dung ONI LIMYVIN SYIANIS 286421
9L'ze 2102/90/0}4 siapeay 188 - selddng Buiues|d ONI LIMHVIN SYIANIS 28621
VUL £102/90/0}4 suoposjjo) - Ajquiessy aaleA @soH/dwnd J8jsoog ONI LIMHVYIN SHIANIS 28621
8°09%'L L102/90/0L  dLMM UHOMUINOS - UBD Se/uswa)d DAC/SBUI4/RuY ojeld uopelgin ONI LIMYYIN SHIANIS  2€6.42)
9£'969'Z L10Z/LE/01 £1/01 seng uolun LZ0L VD01 NIIS  90lseL
00°6Z1L LL0Z/ELIOL Z2G# BIOIYBA -~ 0BG MO L ONIMOL I¥Y3g WVS 686421
002 LL0Z/LE/0L dLMAM UHomynog - [esodsiq ysnig THHANYTMIIHO MO0 S0182L
9L'6t LLOZ/LE/OL LLIOL 18l ] 11008 ‘NYWYILLYY  $0182ZL
vz 192 £102/90/01 d1IMMY - [esodsiq spljog-oig THHANYT STUH O¥I™LOd 086421
YO'6LL'82  LLOZ/LEN0L Ayioe uswiesl | -a1d d1MIP - S80IMIeg Hoddng pig ONI QviSNyd NOSH3ILId  20182)
08°0v0'e LL0Z/LE/0L ajepdn ueld RSB Jojepn 800 Jaddo) - seoialeg Buussuibuz ONI QVLSNYd NOSH3LId 20182t
08 0LL'Y L1L02/LE/01L ajepdn ueld J8isep Jeje pur Auuer - seoieg Bupssuibug ONI QV.LSN¥E NOSY3Lad  20L82L
00°€0L'S LL0Z/ELI0L 21/60 Buissaoold juswAed ONI dNOYD SNININAVL  286.2)
00°005'2 L10Z/ELI0L uonels dwnd dIM SJejunH - jooy siedsy ONIJO0Y L1LOOS SIHdvYd  986/2)
GL'0/0'% 2102/02/0L Jreday AHd VE UoeaY d3 - 9ARA B1BD)/SIeS Jjog/sieysen dH00 A1ddNS 30Vd  ££082)
N WA A 2102/02/01 ISHMDD - sBuiidnogysanjea 4O Inys/sdweld dHOO AlddNS I0Vd  L£082L
0Z'LL 2102/90/0} SUOHOBJ|0D) - S}aYSBD) dY¥0D ATddNS 30vd  226.2L
ZL6lL LLOZ/LEIOL OH dO - 21/0} Jemod Ivod Loigel
86°02 2102V E/0L spjald Aeidg 80B|[BM - L1/0} Jomod 3%9d 00L82L
zLoee'e L102/Le/01 @PIA 1OHISI - L1/0} Jamod 399d 66082l
G8'6 2102/02/01 9z AMH - Z1/01 Jemod I%9d 9£08¢CL
£9°Gl LLOZ/ELIOL OH dO - 21/60 Jemod 3%9d 686.21
80°9¢ LL0Z/ELI0L Nuej JBjep 0D - L1L/60 Jemod 3%9d ¥86.2L
Zr'6l 2102/90/01 S/ 81eBpooM - £1/60 Jemod 399d 92621
gell £102/90/01 S/ POOMULIBAA - / L/B0 Jemod I%9d 6z6l2L
6°GL2 2102/90/01 0471 - L1/60 Jemod 3%9d 2621
Zr'9e L102/1E/01 doyg d3 - sieuee|D/siaur Jemel/siemo /abnes S1Yvd OLNY ATHIHO 860821
682V L1L0Z/LE/0L L0/ BIOIYBA - 1Y AN0ag YoyH S1Yvd 01NV AT3HO 860821
zioze LL02/LE0L 0Z1# BIOIUaA - siojosuuo)/shejay/iesyseld/sepelg Jodipyiio S1YVd OLNY ATH3IYO 860821
0G°/86'% 210Z/EL/0L L1160 Butuue|d sounosay Jejep oibsjeng ssoag Buginsuo) STUW 'S NHOP 40 S30I440 246421
00°000'% £102/02/01 11/60 AoeooApy aajjelsibe] [esepa seoinieg Bupinsuo) 0711 ‘A3SdINIA ® TIINNOD.O  6£0821
00'096'g £102/90/01L d0¥00 - sjeying ouie ONI SFIDOTONHOIL NIN  £26.21
18'¥18'L L102/1E/0L JLMI - @jlojyoodAH wnipog TYOINIHO UVLISHINON 960821
2£'890'2 L102/02/01 d1MMDT - 8pIxolpAH wnipog TYOINIHD YYISHINMON  PE08ZL
£9°26G 2102/02/04 dLMMJM - 8j0jyo0dAH wnipos TVOINTHO UVLSHLMON  $€08ZL
junowy ajeq uoiduiosaq uojoesuel] sokojdwigIopuap ‘ON Y¥oaUus

L102 ‘L€-} 1890100
uswissINgsi(y dv

IAAMA



(v)
to)

(@)

810/

99'650'9 L10Z/90/01 d1MTI - SISeD/sURI0S Jauejey BIPSiy ONI'ONIYIINIONT HOILSIM  v¥6.2L
SoeLl 2102/90/0L S/d alinhesiip - 8jaiouod/saxelsiequin/adid ONI ¥IEINNT INIOd LSIM  €¥6.21
9821 2102/90/01 MBI UOHONASUOY - BjIUY AN ONI ¥38NNT INIOd 1S3IM  £¥6.21
£€°LG £102/90/01 dLMdM - uolun/enien fieg/sbunid ONILY3GNNT INIOd LSIM £¥6.21
25°16 2102/90/01 dIMMdM - 8zeayiuy/sBumi/iooenxs ONI YIgNNT INIOd LSIM £¥6421
00°008°L 210Z/90/01 dM - (08) soueusUE JUBIPAH YA LNIOd L83IM AN AR
YL VL6 £102Z/02/01 MBI SUONOB||0D - BSOH uoneyul/sbnld James SAAYLSNANI OOIM 80821
£6ThY'L L102/02/01L £EL# SI0IYDA - S8j0d sse|Biaqid/edey elswe) SIYLSNANI 0OIM 840821
00061 2102/02/01 LL/60 UlWpY YS- SHHOMIOVYM  2$08ZL
9z'10§ 1102/90/01 L1/60 8uoyd ANVAINOD ANOHJITIL ONYOIOA  LP6LZL
00°92H'L 210z/0z/01L L1/60 sauoyd Jjed SSITIYIM NOZIMIA  9v082)
0L¥0v 2102/90/01 dIMMINA - Jeddigiieyng Hd/slie0 eidweg/siasuadsiq Y008 3Nlavsn  oveLTl
00°000'62  ZLOZ/LEOL VO-601Z# 25U OH3 - uonebm SJPIM L10Z Ad JOINYES 1STHO4 SN vLiseL
00°0LE'e LL0Z/ELI0L %0210 9|ppPeS - 884 ulWpY Jueby |2osiy SOAS 1SNYL JHOO MNYE SN 266421
081zt LLOZ/LEIOL L1/0} Buiddiys ADIAYIS 1304Vd QILINN - €L182L
9e+9 L102/E1/0L L1/60 Buddiug IOIAYIS 1304Vd ILINN 966221
ereve'L L102/02/0} d1M sJejuny - Jexeslg dwy 005 ONI 'SYIIVIHE LINOHIO A3LINN  #¥08ZL
00°€G1L L10Z/ELI0L O}I0B[BA - 21/60 D0IMIBS Jojep L1OIMISIA ALNILN D178Nd NOINN 666421
Py 198 2102/02/01 PV jusuniniosy JojelsdQ jueld Jusuneal] Jsjepn 1vHO0OW3a NOINN  £08ZL
18642 L10Z/LE/01 LL/0} 1enely VHLY3G “THHYAAGNN  ZLiszL
00'8¥8'9l  2102/0Z/0L 81/60-L1/01 lemauay diysiequapy YMEINN  Zv08ZL
££'829'2L  1102/92/0L 2102 1deg-Ain Juswhed UBoT ¥oni| uoDoeA MNYE YNOJINN HOV
00002 £102Z/0Z/0L Juswesinquiey joog Alses SY19N0Q "HINYNL  Lb08eL
LL'GL 2102/90/01 saljddng Bugsspy sauno) uleuNop ONI 3HOLS IVHINIO S1vayl  8£6.ZL
ve9L /102/90/01 OH dO - deog pinbry/ebuodguiesuesin ONI FHOLS TVHINIO S1vadl  8€6.2Z1
G/'696'G 2102/0Z/01 d1MOOD - [eneil/iogeT/sHed Jeday SdN NOILYHOJHOD TYNOILYNYILNI VEIHSOL  0v08ZL
80°6.9 2102/90/01 800# SIOIUDA - () saliL MOvY AL /£6.2)
9€°68. £102/90/01 LEL# SIOIUBA - (¥) sauil MOvH ML /86421
St v6lL LL0Z/LEIOL doys d3 - sdwelo/sieny/sieuiluis | [BoM0a[g SHIYLISNANI OD4IL 1118zl
8L ivl 210Z/EL/0L ISHMDD - SHOG/SINN SIYLSNANI 0241l ¥6622L
£ LPE 2102/90/01 doyg -1 - Jojeull|T 1SNY/OSIA/SISNL/SIBUILIS | [BOLOS|T SAYLSNANI 0D4IL 986421
8962 L102Z/ELI0L 1090l Jusweoe|dey suljedld Vg Yyoeay d3 - MaINSY dddMS SASIYIYILNT NIVINNOW ¥IANNHL €662
86602 L10Z/LEI0L L1/0) [enelL SSNY 'SYWOHL  0L182)
6E°GlL LL02/€1L/01L dLMM OLON/HQ - UeD sen IHOLS a3Y 3IHL  886.2L
65°€L 1102/02/01 ZLL# 9OIYBA - 3gn/IO HOL00a YYD 3HL  8£082L
Y6 LY 2L0Z/EL/0L adejje/M - £1/60 80IAIeS 1aule) SNOILYOINNWINOD TYNOILYNITIL 266121
08'6/2'9 LL0Z/ELI0L dLMTr - Jazhjeuy auozQ ONI'SINIWNYLSNI INACIIEL 166221
000 L102/1E/01 uewyosi-isenbay uonesyiHe) | apeln Jojesado uonnguisi Jelep g04MS 601821
00°008'Z 2102/90/01 MBI UOONASUOY - [Bjuay doni | MHVIN 'NOLLNS  &e6.2L
¥9'692 L10Z/1LE/01 LLIOL [onelt AYYIL 'IONVHLS 801821
1892 L10T/EL/0L saljddng 8010 NVYd LIQ3¥0 ST1dVLS 066421
junowy ajeq uonduossq uoijoesuely sakojdwizIoOpuUsA "ON ¥oayn

2102 ‘L€~ 1890300
JuswasIngsiq dy
MAAND



gjog

£6°1£0'8¢E6 sjusWasINgsi dv 2102 180100 (e1o),

£0°05¢'L () spunjay sewo}sny

00°602 (1) syuswssinquuey [eoIpaiy sekodwyg

000912 2102/90/01 smopes|y JaddoD |4 Jexod - ledey peoy WIP ‘NOSTIM  9¥6.21L

00°s¢ 1402/02/01 0Z.L# SIOIYaA - SINN 8l ONI 00 A1ddNS OI¥LDITI ITUM 690821

90°'2LY £102/02/01 d.LM sJajuny - 1ouliofsuel | ONI 00 AddNS DIY103 13 ITIM 640821

06'%8 2102/0Z/01 d MM YHOMUINOS - 8l |indAuswa) DAJ/sIeldepyyade t /sBumid ONI 0D ATddNS OIMLOI T ITIM - 640821
(D) 65°986'L 1102790101 %3810 B|ppES - SAVIAISS JOMSI( JUBWSSasSsY NVOTHIM  §bBLCL
(D) ggg9s 110Z/90/01 20B|[BAA - SOOIAIBS JOMISI(] JUSWISSaSSY NYATHM  §+6421
(O) €085 2102/90/01 sa10y U} Al - S80IIBS JOLISI( JUBWSSESSY NVATHM  SP622)
(0) segly £102/90/01 ApissedyeaTe( - $80IMBS JOUISI JUBWSSasSY NYATIM  SPBLTL
(0) ¢5¢e6 £102/90/01 plouty - S801SS JOLSI JUBLUSSISSY NYaTIM  Sv6.2L
(0) geeoe 2102/90/0) UIod JSB\V\ - SBOIISS JOUISI(T JUBWISSESSY NYaTim  gveiel

S5 PPL'0L L10Z/LLI0L L1460 [end MNVE XIM 143

junowy ajeq Co_umtowmm uonoesuel} mm>o_QEmtovcm> ‘ON 3o8yd

2102 ‘Le-1 48qoyo0
JuswiesIngsi| dv
TAANN



DATE: November 8, 2017

TO: Dave Eggerton, General Manager k;/—/
FROM: Jeffrey Meye / Ditector of Administrative Services

SUBJECT: Review and Direction of the FY 2017-18 First Quarter Investment Report

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Discussion/direction regarding FY 2017-18 First Quarter Investment Report.

SUMMARY:

Stated below are cash and investment balances for June 30, 2017 and September 30,
2017 and the change in respective balances:

06/30/17 09/30/17 Change
Cash, Umpqua Bank (general account) $ 1,883,950 S 2,948,277 $ 1,064,327
Cash on Hand, Petty Cash & Cash Drawer 600 600 -
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 21,003,091 20,547,904 (455,187)
Money Market Accounts 3,621,924 3,638,669 16,745
Bond Investments* 93,338 85,500 (7,838)
CDARS Accounts 1,756,500 - (1,756,500)
Certificates of Deposits* 2,608,512 2,612,533 4,021
Trustee Accounts 521,791 522,087 296
Total Cash and Investments $31,489,706 $30,355570 S (1,134,136)
*Bonds based on Market Value
District Funds $ 29,374,980
Trustee Accounts 522,087
Assessment District Funds 458,503

Total Funds $ 30,355,570

172



This report is for the first quarter of FY 2017-18 and covers the months of July through
September 2017. The District posted investment earnings of $7,932 during this quarter.
Quarterly activity included receipt of the final FY 16-17 County Property Tax
Disbursement, $249,545, maturity of the CDAR’s investment, $1,757,745 and a
$500,000 transfer in from LAIF. In September the final payment of the 2013 Refunding
Bond Loan was made, and along with other debt service obligations, $1,839,181 was
disbursed by the District.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

On September 20*" the Federal Open Market Committee (FMOC) voted to maintain the
federal funds target range between 1.00% and 1.25%. Recent economic data supports
the Fed’s decision as the labor market continues to show moderate job growth and the
unemployment rate remains low (4.4%). Overall, economic activity has increased,
albeit at a moderate level. Inflation, however, a key Fed indicator, continued its slight
decline in the recent quarter, and remains running below the Fed’s long term objective
of 2.0%.

The Fed expects economic activity to remain moderate over the rest of the year, with
the labor market strengthening somewhat. Inflation is projected to remain below the
2.0% target in the near term, but over time will move closer to the Fed's 2.0% objective.
The Fed will continue to monitor economic activity and when appropriate, will continue
its goal to increase the short-term interest rates. The Fed also signaled that in October
it will begin its sell off of the $4.5 trillion of mortgage backed securities and treasuries it
bought during the recession.

The Dow, NASDAQ and S&P markets are still strong, and yields on ten-year treasuries
have settled into the 220-230 range. LAIF continues to offer competitive daily yields,
1.11% as of September 30, and offers liquidity that time deposits do not. Staff will
continue to evaluate the market and will look for the best short term investment options
until such time of higher short and medium term interest rates.

Aftachment(s): CCWD Quarterly Report on Investments September 30, 2017

212



giol

$301A0 SALRLSIUIWPY JO 10]031J \552 Kagyzer

A

77U

JUSWRSBUBIA] [BlouBuL] Ul poly1oads Se SPaau MO[ Yseo Jaou 0} J0LSI AU §0 AN[IqE 2y} 105 9piaoid ulaley peyiodes SJUSWSOAUL U AJ11I00 JOUMNY | "SIUSWaISE [BNI0OBLUOD SO0
PuE e[ o1} ,Sauloping Ao1jod Jueunsaau, ‘L Ao1joJ juswiaSeue)y [BIoUBUL S10LUSIC SY3 Yilm 9OUBPIOOOE Ul A[[EIUERISqNS 218 ujelsy paplodal SIUSUIISIAUL 33 IO [J8 JBYI AJ1M80 |

%00°001 | £69°90%°LT $ | 079°9¥1°8T $
%58 T ( o8ed woy spuny sesnil) | £80CZS L80T8
ELXdLISTS dISND SI0N WIS, PaJA SSPIH S0 UBWIYST| 9587 | 490 600Z ‘01 JoquaAoN 800z ‘s ke %0S6'C | 005°S8 L86°008
usoda( jo ajeoyna) yueg oS s[PM| %IIL | 16€1 1202 ‘2z Aing 910Z ‘Zz AIng %00€'T | 09SSL6°T 000000
usoda(g Jo eyeoynsa)) dued enbdwin| %G1 T | 8L 610Z ‘1 Ae]y 7107 ‘8T yotey %006'0 | 100°€ZE 100°¢ze
usoda(y Jo eyeoynia) Jueg enbdwn|  %zI'l | £lz 810Z ‘1 Aoy 2107 ‘8T YoreN %0060 | ZL6EIE TLE'ELE
19)IeIN ASUOJA] Jjueg enbdwin)| %1871 | I uadQ L00Z ‘p1 sunf %0TY0 | £8T409°C £82°709°¢
1INl ASUOIN OB S[IOM| %ZI0 | S uadQ uadQ %0100 | 98€v¢ 98€'y¢
pun JUsSUSaAU] AJUSSY [8007]| %00°CL | V61 uadQ usdQ %OLI'T | #06°LYS0T $ | ¥06°LYS0T §
Ulim pajseal] | orjojuod | ALImel AJDNIBIN PalseAl] ey anjeA 180D
Joy, 01 sAe(q Joaeq a1 uodno)) JONIRIN JUSUIISIAU]
L10Z ‘0¢€ Jequiaidag sjusuyssAu] uo Jodey Apenend

LOTELSIA YTLYA ALNNOD SVITAVIVD




Giog

[ 1SNy,
60°1 =SIBO X U]
L6E [A=ticly}
sAe(] JO "ON 1$5B[D) puny]

(yruow sy Jo Kep 1881 24}
Buimoljog sep ug 9j1] o8rroAe oy 1)

Anepy o98eioay pajydiopm

SjuauIISIAU] P YseD [BI0Y, 0LS'SSE0E  §

puny s8ueyp + ysed A1ed 009
90UB[RE JUNO2OY BUROAYD LLTVYET  §

SjuouNsaAU] [BI0], €69°904LT  §

SIJUDLIISIAU] SORISNIL  £Q0°TTS
@101 909'88°97  §

1T0T Ul SSRMNBIA PINPaYos  096°SL6°]
6107 Ul SaRLIMEBIA PA|Npayos [00°€ZE
8107 Ul SOBMMEIAN PI[NPSYOS ZLE'EIE
L107 Ui Sanumey pa[npayog -
ynejaQ ul A 005°S8
BN ASUOIN/IIVT £LS°981%C §

sowed ] aw] Ajnepy siskjeuy

Aanieiy
%00°001 L80°TTS § L80'Tes §
pun,J 31053y ApisseD/ea e Jjuegsn %90 €T I uadQ 01°60d98 %100  L0T89 L0T'89
pun 9a19say sa10 U A} Juegsn %TToT 1 uad(Q E1°S1100 %100  998°9¢] 998°9¢1
AAI9SIY ‘PIT 39310 3IPPES 9007 Huegsn %L 09 | uadQ 90 91 30V %000 YI0°LIE $ PIOLIE $
s98n4 ], oljojuod  AlneN A p21saAu] PISIA anfeA 180D
HYO0d AILSTANI % 01 se( Joaeg e % 33BN

L10T ‘0¢ 1oquiazdag

:spunj pasisniy

SpudWIISIAUL U0 310daYy Apterend)
LOTISIA YALYAL ALNNOD SYYIAVIVD



Gilog

"LT/0€/60 30 S2 00S°S8$ JO PUOq paj[neap SOIg UBWYST SOpN[oul eyd AJLINJRUI 03 SYIUOA

909'788°9 $ [BI0L

- %0 +09
095°5L6°1 %L 09 - ¥Z
100°€Z¢ %I yT- Tl
91819802 %3L Zl-9

- %0 9-¢
6919TL'e  §$ %1 £€-0

snjeA 1edIBN uonnqLusI(q ALmnep AJLImIeIA 03 SUIUOA]

+ 09 09-¥¢ ¥e-21

%0

B

%014

%02

%0¢

%0y

%08

%09

0L

%08

%08

Aunjey o3 syzuop

L10T ‘0¢ toquisydag jo sy
(onjeA 393181 UOnNqLISI A3LInjely Ajyzuo
PLYSI(T 1918 AJUn0)) seasAr[R)




Gioy

16V°989°LC  $9S°Ov69T  9%S°8¥T 8T JS2.03U] PONISOY 7 SUSULSAAU] [BI0],

85619 856°19 159.103u] panIooy Suipug

%001  €ESYZI'LT  909°9889T  9¥S‘8YT ST SJUSULISIAU] [BIO],

49d  J4d %6'T  L86°008 0058 000°SZ¥'1 SSION UL, WiipsN

%0E'T  16£°1 %ZL  000°000C 095°5L6°1 0000007 (ueq oSIe s|jo ) 3sode JO sajeolyiie)) 9]qBHOSIN-UON

%060 86¢€ %ET  €L6°9E9 £L6°9€9 £L6°9€9 (ueg enbdwi) ysoda( Jo sarROIIIRY) S[qRIIOSEN-UON

%Zy0 1 %0'El  £87°P09°C €87°409°¢ £82009°¢ (enbdwy)) spuny 19N KoUOIN

%100 § - %10  98€vE 98€"p¢ 98€pE (0818, S[[oA\) SPUn 193IBJA ASUOIA]

%IT'T P61 %vPL  PO6LYS0T  PO6°LYS0T  ¥06‘LPS0Z (d1y"D puny jusunseau] AousSy (007

btamz bm._amz ozomﬁom oEm A vmoom mEm A umvtmE ozmm A hmm mucogmo\rcw
[0} PISI A 01 m%.mQ ,wo %

LI0Z 0§ 1aquiepdag jo sy

Algwmming o1j0j310g

PLSI 19)BAL A1UN0D) SEIsAR[R)



Gj0g

[B19]B][0D) UBOT 107 PoY a1e J1soda(] JO S33OIIILIaY) 989 ] (910N

Junodoe Jad UOH[[IW )G$ JO WNUIXBW B SMO[B A[JUSLIND [V T,
salouase Supyel pazIugoosl AJ[EUOIIRU 2} JO ¢ JO 7 Aq Sunjuel 159481 (1)

%001
L <loy %€ %0¢ sieak ¢ $3JON WLe [, WnIpsA] GD1o9gs
s34 B/U %L %0¥ s1eok 7 (lueq oS1ed sjap) Hsodaq JO 93OLIIISY S[qEIIOSON-UON #89¢¢
910N 998 B/U UL %0% sieak 7 (pueg enbdw)) ysodeq 70 s3eoLIIe)) 9]qRIIOSON-UO N $89€¢
34 (D %€l %02 QUON (enbduupy) spung j931B[A LU0 (Mro9es
S9K m %0 %02 suoN (0S1eg S[iam) Spun 13RI ASUOIN (D109¢s
94 g/U %¥L # QUON (41VT) puny jusunsaau] LousSy (2007 162191
SHWIT  ofoJuod (o1j01110g ALmeN A108918)  UOIIOIS 9pOD
soueljdwo)y  Suney Ut pIoH Jo ugnled) WINWIXB JUBULSOAU]  JUSUIILISACD)
Hpa1)  9SBIULdISd  SHWIT JUSULSAAL] BILIOJI[RD

pazLoyny

LI0Z ‘0€ 1oquisydag Jo sy
1sipayD sdueldwo) jusunssauy
PLISI( 19384 A3UN0) Sselaare)



DATE: November 8, 2017

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Dave Eggerton, General Manager%ﬁ%,f

SUBJECT: Designate Representative for Election of ACWA Officers

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Motion: / to designate a CCWD Representative to cast ballot
for election of ACWA officers at the ACWA Fall Conference November 28 through
December 1, 2017, in Anaheim.

SUMMARY:

The Association of California Water Agencies general session membership meeting is
to formally nominate and elect ACWA’s President and Vice President for the 2018-19
term.

To cast a ballot at the general membership meeting, agency members must designate a
voting representative and return a proxy designation form prior to the meeting to vote for
ACWA's President and Vice President. The Board of Directors can designate one of its
members or the General Manager as a designee who will be attending the Fall
Conference and can cast a vote on behalf of CCWD.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: None.

Attachments: ACWA Memorandum on General Membership Meeting and Voting Procedures
Proposed Amendment to ACWA Bylaws



MEMORANDUM

Association of California Water Agencies

TO: ACWA Members: General Managers and Board Presidents
cc: ACWA Board of Directors

FROM: Timothy Quinn, ACWA Executive Director

DATE: October 11, 2017

SUBJECT: General Session Membership Meeting at ACWA 2017 Fall Conference

There will be a General Session Membership Meeting at the 2017 Fall Conference in Anaheim, California,
on Wednesday, November 29. The meeting will be held in the Platinum Ballroom 1-6, Marriott Anaheim,
at 1:20 p.m. The purpose of the meeting is to formally nominate and elect ACWA’s President and Vice
President for the 2018-2019 term and to conduct a vote by the membership on proposed amendments
to ACWA’s Bylaws as recommended by the Board of Directors at its meeting on September 29, 2017.

Election of President/Vice President

The ACWA Nominating Committee has announced a 2018-2019 slate that recommends current Vice
President Brent Hastey for ACWA President and current Federal Affairs Committee Chair Steven LaMar
for ACWA Vice President. As provided by ACWA’s Bylaws (Article 9, Section 9} nominations from the
floor will be accepted prior to the vote. Such nominations and seconds must be supported by a resolu-
tion of the governing body of the member agency making and seconding such nomination. (See
attached for General Session/Election Procedures.)

Proposed Amendments to ACWA’s Bylaws

As part of the ongoing efforts to ensure ACWA’s Bylaws are current and reflect consistency with other
governance documents and daily operations, the Board of Directors is recommending several
amendments to the bylaws for consideration by the membership. A Legal Affairs Committee {LAC)
Workgroup reviewed the proposed amendments and provided an analysis pursuant to ACWA's Bylaws
(Article 9, Section 8).

Following is a list of the proposed amendments to the bylaws along with the rational for the change and
the LAC Workgroup’s analysis.

MTC 910 K Street, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95814 « (916) 441-4545
. 400 North Capitol Street NW, Suijte 357, Washington, DC 20001 - (202) 434-4760

BTSN stel



ACWA Members: General Managers and Board Presidents
General Session Membership Meeting at ACWA 2017 Fall Conference
October 11, 2017 « Page 2

Article 7 — Standing Committees

1. Section 4. Committee Composition. Each limited standing committee shall have a membership
composition that is comprised of members in the quantity and with qualifications as defined by the
provisions of these bylaws. The committee chair position shall not be included in the maximum
count for determining the committee composition total of any given limited committee. The
committee chair shall, however, be a voting member of their respective committee subject to the
rules and procedures of each committee.

Rationale: Staff is recommending this amendment to the bylaws to allow the President
flexibility in appointing members to limited standing committees and to provide an odd
number committee composition total.

LAC Workgroup Analysis: The proposed revision is clear and meets its intended purpose,
2. Committee Composition Terms in Sections 5 through 17.

Rationale. Staff noted that the use of the term “individual” versus “representative”
(and one instance of “member”) was inconsistent throughout the committee
composition description for each of the standing committees in Article 7. Staff asked the
LAC Workgroup to review Section 1, Qualifications, as well as each of the committee
descriptions to make a determination as to which term best applies for all of the
committees for purposes of consistency throughout Article 7.

LAC Workgroup Analysis: Reading of the various ACWA committee sections suggests
that “Member” would be the most appropriate word for consistency throughout the
bylaws. However, the use of a single term, may require some minor revisions to
surrounding text for clarity (for an example see Section 15 (State Legislative Committee)
where “member” is separately used to denote a “member agency” and so would need
to state “member-agency” consistently to accommodate the more general use of
“member” throughout the bylaws).

Staff Response: Staff revised the terms in the committee section descriptions (Sections
5 through 17) to “member” for consistency and the surrounding language where
needed in response to the LAC Workgroup's analysis. (See attached bylaws for
proposed amendments to these sections.)

3. Section 5. Agriculture Committee. There shall be an Agriculture Committee whose duty it shall be to
recommend Association policy, positions and programs to the Board of Directors, State Legislative
Committee, Federal Affairs Committee or other committees, as appropriate, regarding agricultural
issues affecting the interests of ACWA and its members. The committee shall consist of at least one

member from each region.




ACWA Members: General Managers and Board Presidents
General Session Membership Meeting at ACWA 2017 Fall Conference AC WA e

October 11, 2017 » Page 3

Rationale: The 2016-2017 Business and Strategic Plan initiative to increase involvement
and engagement from ACWA's agricultural members has successfully generated
momentum amongst ACWA’s agricultural members and a renewed attention to and
involvement in key policy issues that uniquely affect agricultural water suppliers. Amidst
this success, a concern has arisen that the momentum could be lost once the Board of
Directors finishes its current term and the initiative sunsets. This concern has sparked
the suggestion that ACWA should consider creating an Agriculture Committee as the
thirteenth standing committee of the Association to continue the objectives of the Ag
Initiative long-term.

LAC Workgroup Analysis: The proposed revision is clean and meets its intended
purpose.

4. Section 12. Legal Affairs Committee. There shall be a Legal Affairs Committee whose duty it shall be

to support the mission of the Association, and more particularly to deal with requests for assistance
involving legal matters of significance to members-ef-the-Asseciation agencies, including but not
limited to state and federal court litigation, water rights matters, selected regulatory and resources
agency matters, proposed bylaw revisions, review of legislation as requested by the State Legislative
Committee, etc. The committee shall consider matters and issues submitted to it in order to
determine which ones are of major significance to the members-ofthe-Association agencies and,
assuming a finding of major significance, recommend to the Board of Directors the position(s) which
the committee believes the Association should take with respect thereto. The committee shall be
composed of between 35 34 and 45 44 attorneys, each of whom shall be a member of the California
Bar and shall be, or act as, counsel for a member efthe-Association agency, representing diverse
interests within the Association, including but not limited to, different geographical areas
throughout the state, large and small agencies, agricultural and urban agencies, agencies created

under the various enabling statutes, etc. Further-there-shall-be-atleastone-representative from
each-region-on-the-committee-The committee shall consist of a least one member from each region.

Rationale: Change the committee composition range so there is a resulting odd number total
when the chair is added.

LAC Workgroup Analysis: Considered together with the general change in Section 4, Committee
Composition, above, this change accomplishes its purposes and maintains the current overall
LAC membership numbers.

Article 9 — Meeting of Mlembers

5.

Section 8. Amendments, Revisions, and Resolutions. Before any amendments or revisions to the
bylaws, or resolutions, may be considered at any meeting of the Association, any such amendment,
revision, or resolution shall be submitted to the executive director/secretary at least 36 90 days
prior to the first day of such meeting. The executive director/secretary shall promptly distribute any



ACWA Members: General Managers and Board Presidents
General Session Membership Meeting at ACWA 2017 Fall Conference
October 11, 2017 » Page 4

proposed amendments or revisions to the Legal Affairs Committee for the Legal Affairs Committee
to develop an unbiased analysis of the amendments or revisions. Following development of an
analysis for the proposed amendments or revisions, the executive director/secretary shall distribute
copies of any resolutions, amendments or revisions, including any applicable analyses, to all
members of the Association atdeast-five not less than 10 days or more than 90 days prior to
presentation at such meeting. The written notice of the membership meeting shall be given to each
voting member of the Association consistent with the provisions defined in Section 3. The 38 90-day
rule may be suspended at any meeting of the Association by consent of three-fourths of the
members present. Voting on resolutions, amendments, or revisions shall proceed as provided by
Sections 3 5 and 4 6 of this Article.

Rationale: Staff recommended that the deadline for submitting requests for amendments,
revisions, and resolutions be changed from 30 to 120 days prior to any membership meeting to
provide the Legal Affairs Committee sufficient time to review and develop the required analysis
and for staff to provide adequate notice to the members as set forth in Article 9, Sections 3 and
4 of the bylaws. Note: Staff typically notifies ACWA members at least 45 days prior to a given
membership meeting to allow the member agency boards adequate time to designate their
authorized voting representative.

LAC Workgroup Analysis: This proposed revision is clear and meets its intended purpose.
However, workgroup members did express some concern that the 120-day submission
requirement may unduly limit the Association’s ability to quickly respond to state or federal
legislative or administrative acts appropriately. A supermajority of the Association may vote to
suspend the requirement, however, it may be advisable to require only 90-days for submission
while retaining the general Association distribution timing of no later than 10-days and no
earlier than 90-days prior to presentation at an Association meeting.

Staff Response: Staff revised the proposed amendment to state 90 days instead of 120 days in
response to the LAC Workgroup’s analysis.

The Board of Directors recommends adoption of the proposed amendments to ACWA’s Bylaws through
a vote of the membership.

Webinar on Proposed Amendments to Bylaws

ACWA staff is hosting a webinar on Tuesday, November 7, at 10:00 a.m. in advance of the membership
meeting to answer any questions members may have pertaining to the proposed amendments to the
bylaws. Please register for the webinar at the link listed below:

Please register for Bylaws Webinar on Nov 07, 2017 10:00 AM PST at:
htips://atiendee.gotowebinar.com/register/18153322847132575

After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the
webinar.



ACWA Members: General Managers and Board Presidents
General Session Membership Meeting at ACWA 2017 Fall Conference AC WA

October 11, 2017 = Page 5

Membership Voting Process

ACWA will issue each member agency present one proxy card for voting purposes based on the
designated voting representative identified by the member agency on the proxy designation form. The
designated voting representative is required to register and sign as the proxy holder to receive the proxy
card. Proxy cards will only be available for pick-up on Wednesday, November 29, between 9:00 a.m.
and 12:00 p.m. at the ACWA General Session Desk in the main foyer outside of the Marquis Ballroom
Center, Marriott Anaheim. The luncheon and General Session Membership Meeting will be held in the
Platinum Ballroom 1-6.

To expedite the sign-in process at the ACWA General Session Desk, please indicate your voting delegate
on the enclosed proxy designation form and return it by email {donnap@acwa.com) or fax
(916-325-4857) at your earliest convenience prior to conference. If there is a last minute change of
delegate, please let us know before the meeting date by contacting ACWA’s Clerk of the Board,

Donna Pangborn, at 916-441-4545 or donnap@acwa.com.

If you have any questions regarding this process, please contact Clerk of the Board Donna Pangborn at
the ACWA office at 916-441-4545 or donnap@acwa.com.

dgp

Enclosures:

1. General Session/Election Procedures
2. Proposed ACWA Bylaws Amendments ~ Redline Version
3. Proxy Designation Form



{ ‘ﬁwl@&"?&?@?&%* »ﬂﬁﬁwfm&& I W&%ﬁﬁ? 3"5&135;' Wﬁm@%@%@%@%@ﬁﬁ
. o sl oo SROCEBURE R BEW 30 AT CONTERENGE

The following information is provided to inform the ACWA member agency delegates attending the 2017 Fall Conference of
the procedures to be used pertaining to the nomination and election of ACWA officers and the vote by the membership on
proposed amendments to the bylaws during the General Session Membership Meeting.

PROXY GARDS - (REQUIRED FOR VOTING)

ACWA will issue each member agency present one proxy card for voting purposes based on the designated voting
representative identified by the member agency. In order to vote during the General Session Membership Meeting, the
designated voting representative is required to register and sign as the proxy holder by 12:00 p.m. on Wednesday,
November 29. Upon registration and sign-in, the voting delegate will receive the required proxy cards. Proxy cards will be
available for pick-up on Wednesday, November 29, between 9:00 a.m. and 12:00 p.m. at the ACWA General Session Desk
in the main foyer outside of the Marquis Baliroom Center, Marriott Anaheim. The luncheon and General Session
Membership Meeting will be held in the Platinum Balirocom 1-6.

rkGED-'I‘NER’AL SE’SS!ON M EM’BERS‘H‘IP MEETING, WEDNESDAY, NOV. 29 (DOORS OPEN AT 1:05 P.M.)
1. The General Session Membership Meeting will be called to order at 1:20 p.m. and a quorum will be determined. The
presence of 50 authorized voting representatives is required to establish a quorum for transacting business.
2. Legal Affairs Committee Chair Jeni Buckman will provide an overview of the agenda and election procedures.

3. Nominating Committee Chair John Coleman will present the committee’s report and announce the candidate for ACWA
President.

4. President Kathy Tiegs will call for floor nominations for ACWA President.

5. Ifthere are no floor nominations for President, the election will proceed. President Tiegs will close the nominations and
delegates will vote by holding up their “Yes” or “No” proxy voting cards.

6. If there are floor nominations for President, the nomination will follow the procedures established by Article 9 of
ACWA's Bylaws, stating floor nominations and seconds must be supported by a resolution of the governing body of the
member agency making and seconding such nomination. Note: If there are floor nominations, the election of officers
will proceed during Wednesday’s General Session as outlined below and the proposed bylaws amendments will
move to the Thursday General Session Membership Meeting as outlined in item 12 below.

a. Ballots will be distributed to the voting delegates.

b. Delegates will complete their ballots and place them in the ballot box, which will be centrally located in the
Platinum Ballroom 1-6 meeting room.

c. Tellers’ Committee will count the ballots. President Tiegs has appointed the following staff members to serve as the
Tellers’ Committee: Clerk of the Board Donna Pangborn; Director, Business Development & Events Paula Currie; and
Executive Assistant Lili Vogelsang.

d. Legal Affairs Committee Chair Jeni Buckman will serve as the proctor to oversee the ballot counting process.
e. Candidates are welcome to designate an observer to be present during the ballot counting process.

f.  Results of the ballot count will be announced. Election of ACWA’s officers will be determined by a majority of the
members present and voting. If any one candidate does not receive a majority of the vote, successive ballot counts
will be conducted until a candidate is elected, consistent with Robert's Rules of Order.

» next page




7. Nominating Committee Chair John Coleman will announce the candidate for ACWA Vice President.,
8. President Kathy Tiegs will call for floor nominations for ACWA Vice President.

9. If there are no floor nominations for Vice President, the election will proceed. President Tiegs will close the
nominations and delegates will vote by holding up their “Yes” or “No” proxy voting cards.

10. if there are floor nominations for Vice President, the nominations will follow the procedures described in item 6 above,
and the election will proceed according to the steps outlined in 6.a. through 6.1,

I[F THERE ARE NO FLOOR NOMINATIONS FOR THE ELECTION OF OFFICERS, THE WEDNESDAY
GENERAL SESSION MEMBERSHIP MEETING WILL PROCEED WITH A VOTE ON THE PROPOSED
AMENDMENTS TO THE BYLAWS.

11. Legal Affairs Committee Chair Jeni Buckman will provide an overview of the proposed amendments to the bylaws.
a. Consideration of amendments to the bylaws.
b. Request for motion / second from the floor to approve the proposed amendments to the bylaws.
c.  Discussion of proposed amendments.

d. Opportunity for members to offer changes to proposed amendments to the bylaws. Any proposed changes to the
bylaw amendments as currently proposed require a majority vote of the voting members present,

e. Call for the question. A two-thirds vote of the members present and voting is required to amend the ACWA Bylaws.

[F THERE ARE FLOOR NOMINATIONS FOR THE ELECTION OF OFFICERS, THE OVERVIEW AND VOTE
ON THE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE BYLAWS WILL BE TAKEN UP AT THE GENERAL SESSION
MEMBERSHIP MEETING ON THURSDAY AS FOLLOWS.

12. The vote by the membership on the proposed amendments to the bylaws wilf occur at the Thursday, General Session
Membership Meeting, at the Platinum Ballroom 1-6, Anaheim Marriott, at 1:20 p.m.

a. The General Session Membership Meeting will be called to order at 1:20 p.m. and a quorum will be determined.
The presence of 50 formally designated voting representatives is required to establish a quorum for transacting
business.

b. Legal Affairs Committee Chair Jeni Buckman will provide an overview of the proposed bylaws amendments.

¢.  The meeting will proceed according to the steps outlined 11.a. through 11.e. above.

Rev: 9/26/17




;'-3%"’

Association of Californio Water Agencies

ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES
GENERAL SESSION MEMBERSHIP MEETING(S)

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2017 AT 1:20PM
THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 30, 2017 AT 1:20PM (IF NEEDED)

TO: Donna Pangborn, Clerk of the Board
EMAIL: donnap@acwa.com
FAX: 916-325-4857

The person designated below will be attending the ACWA General Session Membership Meeting(s)on
Wednesday, November 29, 2017 {and November 30, 2017 if necessary) as our voting delegate.

MEMBER AGENCY'S NAME AGENCY'S TELEPHONE No.
MEMBER AGENCY’S AUTHORIZING REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE

DELEGATE’S NAME SIGNATURE

DELEGATE'’S EMAIL DELEGATE’S TELEPHONE No.
DELEGATE'S AFFILIATON (if different from éssigning agency)t DATE

Yif your agency designates a delegate from another entity to serve as its authorized voting representative,
please indicate the delegate’s entity in the appropriate space above. Note: Delegates need to sign the proxy
form indicating they have accepted the responsibility of carrying the proxy.

REMINDER: Proxy cards will be available for pick up on Wednesday, November 29, between 9:00 a.m. and
12:00 p.m. at the ACWA General Session Desk in the main foyer outside of the Marquis Ballroom Center,
Marriott Anaheim. The luncheon and General Session Membership Meeting will be held in the Platinum
Ballroom 1-6.

Proxy Designation Form_General Session Fall 2017.Docx



Association of California Water Agencies

BYLAWS of the Association
of California Water Agencies

Proposed Amendments — redline version: September 29, 2017



o o W OV 4 BYLAWS OF THE
Assaciation of California Water Agencies “emr  ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ALICIE 1 = GENETAL c.ooceiiiie et 1
Article 2 — Membership @and DUES ..........ocueeeuiievceeeeenee oo ee oo e 2
ATHICIE 3 — OffICEIS. vttt en et eee et 3
Article 4 — BOArd 0f DIF@CLOIS.....c.ouevvreeiirieeet st eee e s s es s s e 4
AFTICIE 5 =~ REBIONS ..ottt s et eeeeeeeeeeeeeeoeeeee 7
Article 6 — EXECULIVE COMMUITTEE.....cvvverrreereieeececeeree et e e s e e 8
Article 7 — Standing COMMITLEES ...eveviveveereieieeeeee oo eees et oe e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 10
Article 8 — Special Councils, Committees, and Task FOFCES cvvvvvmmmmmmmeeoooeoeoeoeeesoo, 14
Article 9 — Meetings Of MEIMDEIS ...ou.vovieeeeieeeeetee e e 14
Article 10 ~Indemnification of Directors, Officers, and Other ABENES e iiierceeerrrieneans 17

ArtCIe 11— MISCEIANEOUS oveveveeeeteeeeieeeee et 17




BYLAWS OF THE
ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES

-
Association of California Water Agencies

(As amended by the Members on December 2, 2015)

ARTICLE 1 — GENERAL

Section 1. Name. The name of this California nonprofit corporation shall be the Association of California
Water Agencies (hereinafter referred to as the Association).

Section 2. Principal Office. The principal office for the transaction of business of the Association is
located at 910 K Street, Suite 100, Sacramento, California; provided, however, that the Board of
Directors may change the location of the principal office by resolution and without amendment of these
bylaws.

Section 3. Purposes. The purposes of the Association shall be to work together with its members and
others for the best interests of California and its citizens and landowners who use, need and depend
upon water; to encourage the orderly development of the waters of the state; to seek means of
obtaining and making available to all of California a dependable water supply of the best possible quality
at the lowest possible cost, giving due consideration to environmental factors involved therein; to
provide inspiration and leadership in meeting and solving the water supply problems of this state; to
propose and advocate such policies and measures—local, state and federal—that serve the best
interests of the Association, opposing those of contrary nature; to assist in promoting the health, safety
and welfare of the employees of its members; and to do all other things that are in the best interests of
its members.



BYLAWS OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES

ARTICLE 2 — MEMBERSHIP AND DUES

Section 1. Membership.

A. Members. Only a public district, public agency, or public organization created and operated for
the purpose of controliing, treating, developing, acquiring, using or supplying water for any
purpose for inhabitants or lands within the state of California, or for the protection, drainage or
reclamation of lands within the state of California, may become a member of the Association.
Such an entity will become a member upon written application, approval by the Board of
Directors, and the payment of the required dues. Acceptance to membership shall authorize full
participation in Association activities. Except as otherwise provided in subsection (B} below, in
no case may an organization other than a state, a political subdivision (as defined in § 1.103-1(b)
of the Income Tax Regulations) of a state or an entity the income of which is excluded from
gross income under § 115 of the Internal Revenue Code be a member of the Association.

B. Honorary Life Members. Any person who has rendered conspicuous service in furthering the
purposes of the Association may, by vote of the Board of Directors, be granted an honorary life
membership in the Association without payment of dues or assessments. All past presidents of
the Association shall automatically be honorary life members without vote of the Board of
Directors. Honorary life members shall not be entitled to a vote or to hold office automatically
because of their status as honorary life members.

C. Termination of Members. Membership shall cease upon the failure of any member to pay the
dues provided for in Section 2 of this Article. The membership of any member may be
terminated at any time by such member sending written notification of its intention to withdraw
to the Association’s principal office. The Board of Directors may terminate the membership of
any member upon 30 days’ written notice by first-class mail when it is determined at any regular
Board meeting or at any special Board meeting called for that purpose that continuance of such
membership would not be in the best interests of the Association. Withdrawal or termination of
membership ends any participation in Association activities and shall terminate a member’s
interest in the Association’s assets.

Section 2. Dues. The annual dues of each member of the Association shall be established by the Board
of Directors; provided, however, that any member may apply for a change in its dues because of
conditions that differentiate such applicant from other members.

Section 3. Liability of Members. No member shall be liable for any obligation incurred by the
Association with the following exception: (1) the payment of the annual dues while it remains a
member; and (2) the payment of emergency assessments, which shall not exceed 10 percent of current
annual dues for each member in any calendar year while it remains a member. No emergency
assessment may be levied against any member during its first two years of membership in the
Association.

As amended by the ACWA Members on December 2, 2015 Page | 2



BYLAWS OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES

ARTICLE 3 — OFFICERS

Section 1. President and Vice President.

A. General. The president and vice president of the Association shall be the elected officers of the
Association. At the time of their election the president and vice president shall each be an
elected or appointed member of the governing body or commission (as appropriate) of a
member agency of the Association. The president and vice president shall be elected by the
members of the Association at its fall conference in each odd-numbered year, shall take office
on January 1 of the calendar year following election, and shall hold office until such time as their
successors take office or are appointed. An elected president shall not be permitted to succeed
himself/herself to that office. Except as provided in this Article, should vacancies oceur in either
office of the president or vice president, the Board of Directors shall appoint persons to fill such
offices for the unexpired terms thereof.

B. President. The president shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors, the Executive
Committee, and the general membership; shall appoint members of all committees, including
the chair and vice chair of each, upon recommendation from members and regions (as
communicated by the region chairs), with each such committee chair and vice chair ratified by
the Board of Directors; and shall perform all other duties necessary to carry out the functions of
the office. The president shall be a non-voting ex officio member of each committee, but shall
not be an ex officio member of the Nominating Committee or the region boards.

The president may be expelled from office with or without cause, upon the satisfaction of the
following two events: (1) a two-thirds vote of the Board of Directors; and (2) a subsequent
simple majority vote of the members of the Association during a meeting of the membership.

C. Vice President. The vice president shall, in the absence of the president, assume all of the duties
of that office and, if a vacancy occurs, succeed thereto for the unexpired term. The vice
president shall sit as a member of the Executive Committee of the ACWA Joint Powers Insurance
Authority and shall perform such other duties as assigned by the president.

Section 2. Executive Director/Secretary and Controller/Treasurer.

A. General. The executive director/secretary and controller/treasurer of the Association shall also
be officers of the Association. The executive director/secretary shall be appointed by and hold
office at the pleasure of the Board of Directors of the Association.

B. Executive Director/Secretary. The executive director/secretary shall: (1) advise and assist the
Board of Directors, all committees, the boards of each region, and the workgroups of each
region; (2) be responsible for administering the total operations of the Association; (3) employ,
direct, and release all employed staff in accordance with the policies adopted by the Board of
Directors and consistent with the budget adopted by the Board of Directors; (4} provide relevant

As amended by the ACWA Members on December 2, 2015 Page | 3



BYLAWS OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES

information to the Board of Directors needed by the Board to take actions; {5) give members
notice and record minutes of all meetings of the membership, Board of Directors, and Executive
Committee; and (6) have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be provided
and assigned by the Board of Directors directly or through the president of the Board or the
Executive Committee. The executive director/secretary, with the assistance of the
controller/treasurer, shall render a report to the Board of Directors at the first meeting
following the close of each calendar year showing the membership of the Association, the
receipts and expenditures during the year, and the work accomplished during the previous year.

C. Controller/Treasurer. The controller/treasurer shall report to and act under the direction of the
executive director/secretary. The controller/treasurer shall be a signatory on all accounts held
by the Association and shall act as a fiduciary for all assets of the Association.

ARTICLE 4 — BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. Membership. The Board of Directors shall consist of:
A. The Association president and vice president.
B. The chair and vice chair of each region.
C. The chair of each standing committee.
D. The most immediate active past president.
E. The vice president of the ACWA/Joint Powers Insurance Authority.

Section 2. Term of Office. The term of office of all members of the Board of Directors shall commence
on January 1 of the calendar year following election of the president and vice president, except forthose
persons who serve on the Board of Directors by nature of their position as chairs of standing
committees, whose terms shall instead commence upon their ratification by the Board of Directors.
Except as provided in Article 4, Section 11, the term of office for all members of the Board of Directors
shall terminate on December 31 of the following odd-numbered year two vyears later, or until their
successors take office.

Section 3. Attendance Requirement. Any member of the Board of Directors who misses two
consecutive regular Board meetings without being excused by the Board will no longer be a member of
the Board of Directors.

Section 4. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held bimonthly at such
times and places as the Board may determine.

Section 5. Special Meetings. Special meetings may be called by the president upon the president’s own
volition or shall be called by the president when requested in writing by five directors. Prior to
conducting such a special meeting, the president shall consult with the Executive Committee to ensure

As amended by the ACWA Members on December 2, 2015 Page | 4



BYLAWS OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES

that adequate information is available to the Board of Directors for any necessary decisions; and where
such meeting is called upon the president’s own volition, the president shall also consult with the
Executive Committee as to the necessity of the special meeting. Notice for special meetings shall be
provided in the following manner: (1) upon 10 days’ written notice sent by mail to each director and
addressed to each at the address as shown upon the records of the Association; or (2) upon 48 hours’
notice with notice provided by electronic means. When the meeting is called upon the president’s own
volition, the president shall choose the form of notice; when the meeting is called by a request of five
directors, the five directors shall choose the form of notice and the president shall promptly call the
meeting. No business except those items described in the notice shall be transacted at any special
meeting, except by consent of three-fourths of the members of the Board of Directors present.

Section 6. Meeting Requirements and Quorums. Any meeting, regular or special, may be held in person
or by telephone conference, web video conference, or other electronic video screen communication or
electronic transmission. At any meeting of the Board of Directors, the attendance of 50 percent of the
voting members of the Board of Directors, or their permitted alternates as specified in these bylaws,
shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business. The Board may hold a closed session for
discussion of personnel matters or enforcement of violations of the code of conduct.

Section 7. Alternates. Each region shall designate an alternate for each chair and vice chair, who shall
meet the qualification requirements for chair and vice chair, to act at meetings of the Board of Directors
when the chair or vice chair is unable to attend. The vice chair of each standing committee will be the
alternate to act at meetings of the Board of Directors when the chair is unable to attend. An alternate
may not act or vote on behalf of more than one member of the Board of Directors. A member of the
Board of Directors may not act as an alternate for any other member.

Section 8. Vacancies for Standing Committee Chairs and Vice Chairs. Should a vacancy occur in the
office of any standing committee chair or vice chair before the end of the term, the president shall
appoint a new committee chair or vice chair to fulfill the unexpired term of such committee chair or vice
chair subject to ratification by the Board of Directors. A vacancy in the office of any such standing
committee chair or vice chair as described in the previous sentence shall be deemed to exist when the
chair or vice chair: (1) resigns the office; (2) no Iongér is an officer, employee, or member of the
governing body of a member agency of the Association, or other representative duly designated by a
member agency of the Association to represent that member; or (3) is otherwise removed by a member
agency of the Association.

Section 9. Duties, Authorities, and Delegation. Subject to the provisions and limitations of California
Nonprofit Corporation Law, other applicable laws, and the provisions of these bylaws, the Association’s
activities and affairs are to be exercised by or under the direction of the Association’s Board of Directors.
The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall supervision, control, and direction of the
Association. The Board of Directors shall: (1) employ and release the executive director/secretary; {2) set
performance expectations for the executive director/secretary; (3) receive, review, and consider
approval of executive director/secretary recommended compensation, other terms and conditions of

As amended by the ACWA Members on December 2, 2015 Page | 5



BYLAWS OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES

employment, and annual evaluations as prepared by the Executive Committee; (4) annually adopt a
budget; and (5) set the level of dues for the Association. Except as to the duties listed in the previous
sentence, and subject to Article 3, Section 2, the Board of Directors may delegate the supervision,
control, and direction of the Association’s affairs to any person or group, including a committee,
provided the Association Board retains ultimate responsibility for the actions of such person or group.
Where such powers are delegated, the delegation shall be documented in writing.

Section 10. Immediate Past President. The immediate past president automatically assumes this
position after serving as the Association’s elected president and is a voting member of the Board of
Directors and Executive Committee. The term of office for the immediate past president shall
commence on January 1 of the calendar year following election of the president and vice president and
shall terminate on December 31 of the following odd-numbered vear two years later. In the event the
most immediate active past president is unavailable to serve, the most recent and available active past
president in succession shall serve in this capacity.

Section 11. Code of Conduct of Board Members.

A. Code of Conduct: Purpose and Adoption. The Board of Directors shall establish, and update as
appropriate, a code of conduct for its Directors that recognizes the Association’s commitment of
integrity, respect, and fair representation to its members and the public they serve and
establishes minimum ethical standards for the performance of the duties of office. The code
shall be consistent with the procedural processes contained in this section. The code shall be
distributed to all new Directors and shall be distributed annually to all members of the
Association.

B. Violations and Enforcement Process. A violation of the code of conduct may result in removal,
public censure, or private reprimand of a Director, or such other action as contained in the code
of conduct. However, removal and public censure shall be reserved only for serious violations. A
Director may not be removed or publically censured absent an affirmative vote of two-thirds of
the voting members of the Board of Directors. A Director may be privately reprimanded for a
violation of the code of conduct upon the majority vote of the quorum. Complaints of violation
of the code of conduct may be filed with the president, or the vice-president if the allegations
are made against the president. The president may refer a complaint of violation to the
executive director/secretary for investigation. The executive director/secretary may retain a
special investigator or special counsel to conduct or assist the investigation. A Director accused
of a violation shall be provided a copy of the complaint. A Director that takes any hostile or
retaliatory action, directly or indirectly, against a complainant is subject to removal from the
Board in conformance with the process identified above. Prior to scheduling a Board action on a
complaint, the president shall consult with the Executive Committee and the chair of the Legal
Affairs Committee. A Director accused of a violation of the code of conduct shall be provided at
least 15 days’ written notice of any meeting of the Board at which a determination of
enforcement will be considered. A determination of enforcement may be made only at a regular

As amended by the ACWA Members on December 2, 2015 Page | 6



BYLAWS OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES

meeting of the Board and shall be made in closed session. The determinations of the Board
under this section shall not be admissible in any criminal or civil proceeding brought against the
Director for conduct that violates any other law.

ARTICLE 5 — REGIONS

Section 1. Boundaries of Each Region.

A. There shall be a maximum of 10 regions within the state. The Board of Directors shall determine
the regional boundaries. Insofar as is practicable, the regions shall have a numerical balance in
members of the Association; make geographic sense; and promote regional problem solving.

B. A member of the Association may file a written petition to the Board of Directors requesting a
change in regions. Such petition shall set forth the reasons for such requested change. The
Board shall, within a reasonable time, act upon such petition and set forth the reasons for its
action. Such action by the Board shall be based on factors in (A} above, as well as others deemed
by the Board of Directors to be relevant to the decision.

Section 2. Officers.

A. The officers of each region shall be a chair and vice chair and three to five region board
members who shall be elected by the region by September 30, or the preceding Friday if
September 30 falls on a weekend, of odd-numbered years. A region may maintain a board of
fewer than five but not less than three members as provided in the region’s rules and
regulations. The officers of the region board shall take office on January 1 of the calendar year
following election and shall hold office for two years, or until their successors take office.
Regions shall hold elections by electronic ballot. ACWA staff shall verify the legitimacy of the
ballots.

B. The officers of each region shall: (1) exercise the powers and perform duties of the region during
the interim between region meetings; and (2) make recommendations to the president
regarding appointments to committees. The chair and vice chair shall be the region’s
representatives to the ACWA Board of Directors.

C. Each officer of a region shall be an officer, employee, or member of the governing body of a
member agency of the Association, or other representative duly designated by a member
agency of the Association to represent that member at the time of the appointment. Where an
individual ceases to meet these criteria during the term of the office, the individual may not
serve during the remaining term of that office unless that individual can again meet the criteria
for the office and is appointed to complete the term. The region board may adopt more
stringent criteria for board member qualifications as part of the region’s rules and regulations.

D. Should a vacancy occur in any of the region board positions before the end of the term, the
remaining members of the region board shall appoint a new member. A vacancy in the office of

As amended by the ACWA Members on December 2, 2015 Page | 7



BYLAWS OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES

any region board position shall be deemed to exist when a region board member: (1) resigns the
office; (2) no longer is an officer, employee, or member of the governing body of a member
agency of the Association, or other representative duly designated by a member of the
Association to represent that member; or (3) is otherwise removed by a member agency of the
Association.

Section 3. Nominating Committees. There shall be a nominating committee for each region consisting
of three or more designees, each representing a member of the Association located within the region,
appointed by the chair of the region and approved by the region board. Nominating committees shall be
formed by February 28 of each odd-numbered year. The nominating committee shall announce its
nominations for chair, vice chair, and region board members by August 1 of an election year. All regions
must complete the election process by September 30 of the election year, or the preceding Friday if the
September 30 falls on a weekend.

Section 4. Meetings. The meetings of each region shall be held at both the spring and fall conferences
and at such other times and places as may be determined by the region chair. Representatives of five or
more members of the Association from the region present at any region meeting shall constitute a
quorum for purposes of conducting the business of the region. Any meeting, regular or special, may be
held in person or by telephone conference, web video conference, or other electronic video screen
communication or electronic transmission.

Section 5. Workgroups. Workgroups may be appointed by the region chair as needed.

Section 6. Rules. Each region shall organize and adopt rules and regulations for the conduct of its
meetings and affairs not inconsistent with the Articles of Incorporation or bylaws of the Association.
Each region shall abide by the code of conduct adopted by the Board of Directors of the Association.

ARTICLE 6 — EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Section 1. Membership. There shall be an Executive Committee consisting of the following: the
president of the Association, who shall be the chair thereof; the vice president; the most immediate
active past president; the chair of the Finance Committee; and three at-large representatives selected
from and by the members of the Board of Directors. The election of the three at-large representatives to
the Executive Committee shall occur at the first Board of Directors meeting held in each even-numbered
year and the elected representatives shall serve immediately following their election and until such time
as their successors take office. To the extent practical, the Executive Committee should be constituted
so as to reflect the geographic extent of the Association and the functions of the members of the
Association.

Section 2. Powers. The Executive Committee shall have the following authority:

A. Personnel. Subject to the budget adopted by the Board of Directors, the Executive Committee
shall perform the following personnel actions: (1) recommend compensation for the executive

As amended by the ACWA Members on December 2, 2015 Page | 8



BYLAWS OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES

director/secretary to the Board of Directors for approval; (2) perform annual reviews of the
executive director/secretary and submit that review to the Board of Directors; (3) review and
approve the classification and compensation plan and publicly posted salary schedule for
Association employees submitted by the executive director/secretary, which shall be reviewable
by the Board of Directors, in closed session, upon request of the Board of Directors; (4} establish
personnel policies for the conduct and behavior of employees, which shall be reviewable by the
Board of Directors; and (5) undertake such other personnel actions as may be requested by the
executive director/secretary in support of his or her oversight of all other personnel matters,
which shall be reviewable by the Board of Directors, in closed session, upon request of the
Board of Directors.

B. Delegation. The Executive Committee may act pursuant to any authority specifically delegated
to it by the Board of Directors. The delegation shall indicate whether the authority is still subject
to the ultimate authority of the Board.

C. Authority to Act Between Meetings. The Executive Committee may act for the Board of
Directors between Board meetings when calling a special meeting of the Board of Directors is
impracticable, provided that no such action of the Executive Committee shall be binding on the
Board of Directors until authorized or approved by the Board. The Executive Committee has the
authority to authorize actions recommended by the Legal Affairs Committee {such as the filing
of letter briefs and amicus curiae briefs) by electronic means without the need for an in-person
or telephonic meeting, but such actions shall be ratified by the Board of Directors at its next
meeting.

Section 3. Reporting. The president, or any person designated by the president, shall report to the
Board of Directors, at each regular Board meeting, any action taken by the Executive Committee since
the last preceding regular Board meeting. The minutes of Executive Committee meetings, which at that
time may still be in draft form, shall be mailed (using the U.S. Postal Service, express delivery, electronic
means, or otherwise) to each member of the Board of Directors at least five days prior to Board
meetings, except in cases in which the Executive Committee meets during or immediately prior to a
conference of the Association or immediately prior to a Board meeting, in which case the minutes,
which may still be in draft form, shall be mailed to each director promptly thereafter.

Section 4. Meetings. The Executive Committee shall hold regularly scheduled meetings as set by the
president. Special meetings of the Executive Committee may be called by the president upon notice to
the members of that committee or upon written request of three Executive Committee members.
Notice for special Executive Committee meetings shall be provided to the entire Board: (1) upon five
days’ written notice sent by mail, or (2) upon 24 hours’ notice with notice provided by electronic means;
and all such meetings shall be open to the Board of Directors. Any meeting, regular or special, may be
held in person or by telephone conference, web video conference or other electronic video screen
communication or electronic transmission. All members of the Board of Directors may attend any
meeting of the Executive Committee. Meetings of the Executive Committee may be closed to others at

As amended by the ACWA Members on December 2, 2015 Page | 9



BYLAWS OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES

the discretion of the President or committee. Only members of the Executive Committee are allowed to
vote on matters at a meeting of the committee.

Section 5. Minutes. The minutes of the Executive Committee meetings shall be kept by the executive
director/secretary at the Association’s principal office. Actions of the Executive Committee shall be
reported to the Board of Directors as provided in Section 3 of this Article and shall be available to any
member of the Board of Directors upon request to the executive director/secretary.

ARTICLE 7 — STANDING COMMITTEES

Section 1. Qualification. In order to serve on any ACWA standing committee, an individual must be an
officer, employee, or member of the governing body of a member agency of the Association, or other
representative duly designated by a member agency of the Association to represent that member at the
time of the appointment. Where an individual ceases to meet these criteria during the term of the
appointment, the individual may not serve during the remaining term of that appointment unless that
individual can again meet the criteria for appointment and is appointed to complete the term.

Section 2. Term of Office. The term of office of standing committee members shall be two years
commencing on January 1 of each even-numbered year. The term of office of standing committee chairs
and vice chairs shall be approximately two years and shall commence as soon after January 1 of the
even-numbered year as they may be appointed by the president and ratified by the then-seated Board
of Directors, and shall terminate on December 31 of the odd-numbered year approximately two years
later or until their successors are appointed and ratified.

Section 3. Meetings. Meetings of standing committees may be called at such times and places
designated by the respective chair thereof except where provided otherwise by these bylaws. Subject to
the provisions of these bylaws and any actions that may be taken by the Board of Directors, the chairs of
each standing committee may establish their own rules for the efficient operation of the committee
they each chair. The chairs of each standing committee are authorized to create subcommittees and
workgroups in order to complete the work of the committee.

Section 4. Committee Composition. Fach limited standing committee shall have a membership
composition that is comprised of members in the guantity and with qualifications as defined by the
provisions of these bylaws. The committee chair position shall not be included in the maximum count
for determining the committee composition total of any given limited committee. The committee chair
shall, however, be a voting member of their respective committees subject to the rules and procedures
of each committee.

Rationale: Staff is recommending this amendment to the Bylaws to allow the President
flexibility in appointing members to limited standing committees and to provide an odd number
committee composition total.

LAC Workgroup Analysis: The proposed revision is clear and meets its intended purpose.

As amended by the ACWA Members on December 2, 2015 Page | 10



BYLAWS OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES

Committee Composition Terms in Sections 5 through 17.

Rationale: Review of Committee Composition Terms: Staff noted that the use of the term
“individual” versus “representative” {and one instance of “member”) was inconsistent
throughout the committee composition description for each of the standing committees in
Article 7. Staff asked the LAC Workgroup to review Section 1, Qualifications, as well as each of
the committee descriptions to make a determination as to which term would best apply for all

of the committees for purposes of consistency throughout Article 7.

LAC Workgroup Analysis: Reading of the various ACWA committee sections suggests that
“Member” would be the most appropriate word for consistency throughout the By-Laws.
However, the use of a single term, may require some minor revisions to surrounding text for
clarity (for an example see Section 15 (State Legislative Committee) where “member” is
separately used to denote a “member agency” and so would need to state “member-agency”
consistently to accommodate the more general use of “member” throughout the By-Laws).

Staff Response: Staff revised the terms in the committee sections to “member” for consistency
and the surrounding language where needed in response to the LAC Workgroup’s analysis.

Section 5. Agriculture Committee. There shall be an Agriculture Committee whose duty it shall be to

recommend Association policy, positions and programs to the Board of Directors, State Legislative

Committee, Federal Affairs Committee or other committees, as appropriate, regarding agricultural

issues affecting the interests of ACWA and its members. The committee shall consist of at least one

member from each region.

Rationale: The 2016-2017 Business and Strategic Plan initiative to increase involvement and
engagement from ACWA’s agricultural members has successfully generated momentum
amongst ACWA’s agricultural members and a renewed attention to and involvement in key
policy issues that uniquely affect agricultural water suppliers. Amidst this success, a concern has
arisen that the momentum could be lost once the Board of Directors finishes its current term
and the initiative sunsets. This concern has sparked the suggestion that ACWA should consider
creating an Agriculture Committee as the thirteenth standing committee of the Association to
continue the objectives of the Ag Initiative long-term.

LAC Workgroup Analysis: The proposed revision is clean and meets its intended purpose.

Section-4 §. Business Development Committee. There shall be a Business Development Committee
whose duty it is to develop and recommend to the Board of Directors programs and activities to be
provided or administered by the Association that generate non-dues revenue and provide a service or
benefit to Asseciation—membersmember agencies. The committee shall consist of at least one

representative-member from each region and ene+epresentativemay include members from the-any of
the other standing committees.

As amended by the ACWA Members on December 2, 2015 Page | 11



BYLAWS OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES

Section-£_7. Communications Committee. There shall be a Communications Committee whose duty it
shall be to develop and make recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding a comprehensive
internal and external communications program for the Association and to promote development of
sound public information and education programs and practices among members—ef-the-Asseciation
agencies. The committee shall consist of no more than 40 individualsmembers. Of-that-nwmbesThe
committee shall consist of at least one individual-member shall-be-from each region.

Section-6_8. Energy Committee. There shall be an Energy Committee whose duty it shall be to
recommend policies and programs to the Board of Directors and to the State Legislative Committee
and/or Federal Affairs Committee as appropriate. The committee shall consist of at least one

representative-member from each region.

Section-Z 9. Federal Affairs Committee. There shall be a Federal Affairs Committee whose duty it shall
be to review all federal legislative proposals and regulatory proposals affecting members—ofthe
Asseciationmember agencies, after consulting with other appropriate committees, and to develop
Association positions consistent with existing policy, where it has been established; recommend
sponsorship of bills that will resolve problems or improve conditions for members-of-the-Asseciation
agencies; and assist in the establishment of the Association’s federal legislative program. The committee
shall consist of at least one-and, but no more than five individuals-members from each region.

Section-8_10. Finance Committee. There shall be a Finance Committee whose duty it shall be to make
recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding annual budgets, dues formula and schedules and
other revenue-producing income, annual audit and selection of an auditor, and investment strategies.
The committee shall consist of the president and vice president of the Association as ex officio

members, the-Firance-Committee—chair—one—membereither the chair or vice chair from each of the
Association’s ef-the-region-board-from-each-of-the-Association’s-10 regions_boards-{eitherchairorvice

ehair}, and one additional representative-member from each region with experience in financial matters.

Section-9 11. Groundwater Committee. There shall be a Groundwater Committee whose duty it shall be
to recommend policies and programs to the Board of Directors and to the State Legislative Committee
and/or Federal Affairs Committee as appropriate. The committee shall consist of at least one

representative-member from each region.

Section-10_12. Legal Affairs Committee. There shall be a Legal Affairs Committee whose duty it shall be
to support the mission of the Association, and more particularly to deal with requests for assistance
involving legal matters of significance to members-of-the-Association agencies, including but not limited
to state and federal court litigation, water rights matters, selected regulatory and resources agency
matters, proposed bylaw revisions, review of legislation as requested by the State Legislative
Committee, etc. The committee shall consider matters and issues submitted to it in order to determine
which ones are of major significance to the members—of-the-Asseciation_agencies and, assuming a
finding of major significance, recommend to the Board of Directors the position(s) which the committee
believes the Association should take with respect thereto. The committee shall be composed of
between 35 34 and 45 44 attorneys, each of whom shall be_a member of the California Bar and shall be,

As amended by the ACWA Members on December 2, 2015 Page | 12



BYLAWS OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES

or act as, counsel for a member of-the-Associationagency, representing diverse interests within the
Association, including but not limited to, different geographical areas throughout the state, large and
small agencies, agricultural and urban agencies, agencies created under the various enabling statutes,

committee shall consist of at least one member from each region.

Rationale: Change the committee composition range so there is a resulting odd number total
when the chair is added.

LAC Workgroup Analysis: Considered together with the general change in Section 4, Committee
Composition above, this change accomplishes its purposes and maintains the current overall
LAC membership numbers.

Section—1_13. Local Government Committee. There shall be a Local Government Committee whose
duty it shall be to recommend policies to the State Legislative Committee, as appropriate, and Board of
Directors on matters affecting water agencies as a segment of local government in California. The
committee shall consist of at least one, and-but no more than three individuals-members from each
region.

Section2 14. Membership Committee. There shall be a Membership Committee whose duty it shall be
to assist staff in developing membership recruitment and retention programs, make recommendations
to the Board of Directors regarding membership policies, eligibility, and applications for membership
and review and make recommendations to the Finance Committee regarding an equitable dues
structure. The committee shall consist of at least one member from each region.

Section-22 15. State Legislative Committee. There shall be a State Legislative Committee whose duty it
shall be to review all state legislative proposals affecting members-ef-the-Asseciation agencies and to
establish Association positions, consistent with existing policy, where it has been established; sponsor
bills that will resolve problems or improve conditions for member_s-of-the-Asseciationagencies; and
assist in the establishment of the Association’s legislative program. The committee shall consist of
individuals-members representing a variety of types of members-member agencies and at least one-and,
but no more than four individuals-members from each region.

Section-%4_16. Water Management Committee. There shall be a Water Management Committee whose
duty it shall be to recommend policy and programs to the Board of Directors on any area of concern in
water management. The committee shall consist of at least one, but -and-no more than four individuals
members from each region.

Section-15 17. Water Quality Committee. There shall be a Water Quality Committee whose duty it shall
be to develop and recommend Association policy, positions, and programs to the Board of Directors, to
promote cost-effective state and federal water quality regulations that protect the public health, to
enable interested members-ofthe-Asseciation agencies to join together to develop and coordinate with

As amended by the ACWA Members on December 2, 2015 Page | 13



BYLAWS OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES

other organizations, and to present unified comments regarding agricultural and domestic water quality
regulations. The committee shall consist of at least one individualmember from each region.

ARTICLE 8 — SPECIAL COUNCILS, COMMITTEES, AND TASK FORCES

Section 1. Council of Past Presidents. There shall be a Council of Past Presidents composed of all past
presidents of the Association who serve on the council until each is no longer able to or wishes to serve.
The council shall provide a mechanism for past presidents to continue to make valuable contributions to
the Association. With approval of the Board of Directors, the president and/or executive
director/secretary may assign specific responsibilities to the council from time to time. Members of the
Council of Past Presidents are invited to attend and participate in the Association’s Board meetings.

Section 2. Nominating Committee. There shall be a Nominating Committee consisting of five or more
persons appointed by the president prior to the Association’s fall conference in each odd-numbered
year, whose purpose shall be to nominate qualified individuals for the offices of president and vice
president of the Association. The Nominating Committee shall publish its nominations for the offices of
president and vice president of the Association not less than 10 or more than 90 days before the
membership meeting is held at fall conference. Additional nominations may be made by any member of
the Association for candidates for the office of president and vice president. Additional nominations
shall be made from the floor during the election of president and vice president at the membership
meeting scheduled for said purposes.

Section 3. Other Committees and Task Forces. Other committees and task forces may be appointed by
the president from time to time as needed, consistent with and supportive of the mission of the
Association.

ARTICLE 9 — MIEETINGS OF MIEMBERS

Section 1. Meetings. Meetings of the members of the Association shall be held at the Association’s
conferences at such times as may be determined by the Board of Directors to conduct necessary
business and to elect the president and vice president, which occurs at the fall conference in each odd-
numbered year.

Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the members of the Association may be called by the
Board of Directors, the president of the Board of Directors, or by 5 percent or more of the members of
the Association. Except when called by the Board, a request for a special meeting must be in writing and
must be delivered in person or mailed by first-class mail addressed to the president of the Board at the
principal office of the Association, with a copy to the executive director/secretary. The request must
state the general nature of the business proposed to be transacted at the meeting.

A special meeting that has been called by written request of 5 percent of the member agencies of the
Association to the Board of Directors shall be set by the Board of Directors on a date that is not less than
35 or more than 90 days after receipt of the request.

As amended by the ACWA Members on December 2, 2015 Page | 14



BYLAWS OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES

Section 3. Notice Requirements for Membership Meetings. Written notice of any membership meeting
shall be given to each voting member of the Association. The notice shall state the date, time, and place
of the meeting; the means by which members may participate; and the general nature of the business to
be transacted. The notice of any meeting at which Board officers are to be formally nominated and
elected shall include the names of the recommended slate of candidates for the offices of president and
vice president in addition to the election procedures. The member notification information shall also be
posted on the Association’s website.

Except as otherwise provided in these bylaws or California law, a written notice of regular membership
meetings shall be given not less than 10 or more than 90 days before the date of the meeting to each
member who, on the record date for notice of the meeting, is entitled to vote; provided, however, that
if notice is given by mail, and the notice is not mailed by first-class, registered, or certified mail, that
notice shall be given not less than 20 days before the meeting.

Section 4. Notice Requirements for Special Meetings. The executive director/secretary shall cause
notice to be given to all members of the Association of the date, time, and place of the meeting and the
general nature of the business to be transacted at the meeting. No business except that specified in the
request and notice may be transacted at said special meeting. If notice of the requested épecial meeting
is not given within 20 days after receipt of the request, the person or persons requesting the meeting
may give the notice.

Section 5. Voting. Each member of the Association shall be entitled to one vote that shall be cast by its
authorized representative. All questions, except amendments or revisions of these bylaws, shall be
determined by a majority of the members present and voting. A roll call may be requested by any
representative.

Section 6. Amendment of Bylaws. These bylaws may be amended or revised by two-thirds of the
member agencies of the Association present and voting at any meeting.

Section 7. Quorums. The presence of the authorized representative of 50 members of the Association at
any meeting of the members shall constitute a quorum for transacting business.

Section 8. Amendments, Revisions, and Resolutions. Before any amendments or revisions to the
bylaws, or resolutions, may be considered at any meeting of the Association, any such amendment,
revision, or resolution shall be submitted to the executive director/secretary at least 39 90 days prior to
the first day of such meeting. The executive director/secretary shall promptly distribute any proposed
amendments or revisions to the Legal Affairs Committee for the Legal Affairs Committee to develop an
unbiased analysis of the amendments or revisions. Following development of an analysis for the
proposed amendments or revisions, the executive director/secretary shall distribute copies of any
resolutions, amendments or revisions, including any applicable analyses, to all members of the
Association atJeast-Five-not less than 10 days_or more than 90 days prior to presentation at such
meeting. The written notice of the membership meeting shall be given to each voting member of the

Association consistent with the provisions defined in Section 3. The 36 90-day rule may be suspended at

As amended by the ACWA Members on December 2, 2015 Page | 15



BYLAWS OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES

any meeting of the Association by consent of three-fourths of the members present. Voting on
resolutions, amendments, or revisions shall proceed as provided by Sections 2 5 and 4 § of this Article.

Staif Rationale: Staff is recommended that the deadline for submitting requests for
amendments, revisions, and resolutions be changed from 30 to 120 days prior to any
membership meeting to provide Legal Affairs Committee sufficient time to review and develop
the required analysis and for staff to provide adequate notice to the members as set forth in
Article 9, Sections 3 and 4 of the Bylaws. Note: Staff typically notifies ACWA members at least 45
prior to a given membership meeting to allow the agency boards to designate their authorized
representative.

LAC Workgroup Analysis: This proposed revision is clear and meets its intended purpose,
However, subcommittee members did express some concern that the 120-day submission
requirement may unduly limit the Association’s ability to quickly respond to state or federal
legislative or administrative acts appropriately. A supermajority of the Association may vote to
suspend the requirement, however, it may be advisable to require only 90-days for submission
while retaining the general Association distribution timing of no later than 10-days and no
earlier than 90-days prior to presentation at an Association meeting.

Staff Response: Staff revised the proposed amendment to state 90 days instead of 120 days in
response to the LAC Workgroup’s analysis.

Section 9. Nomination of President and Vice President.

A. Qualification. At the time of their election, the president and vice president of the Association
shall each be an elected or appointed member of the governing body or commission {as
appropriate) of a member agency of the Association.

B. Nominating Committee Process. All nominations for the positions of president and vice
president shall be accompanied by an official resolution from the Association member agency
on whose board the nominee serves. Said resolution shall be signed by an authorized signatory
of the member agency’s Board of Directors.

C. Nominations from the Floor. Additional nominations may be made by any member of the
Association for the office of president and vice president. Said nominations and seconds shall be
made from the floor during the election of the offices of president and vice president at the
membership meeting scheduled for said purposes (as provided for in the penultimate sentence
of Article 8, Section 2). Such nominations and seconds shall be made by a member of the
Association and must be supported by a resolution of the governing body of the member
making and seconding such nomination. The member agency on whose board the nominee
serves shall submit a resolution of support if they are not the agency making the floor
nomination or second.

As amended by the ACWA Members on December 2, 2015 Page | 16



BYLAWS OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES

Section 10. Additional Procedures for Election of Officers. The Board shall have the authority to
develop additional procedures for elections of president and vice president when not otherwise covered
by these bylaws.

ARTICLE 10 —INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AND OTHER AGENTS

Section 1. Right of Indemnity. To the fullest extent permitted by law, this Corporation shall indemnify its
Directors, Officers, employees, and other persons described in Section 7237(a) of the California
Corporations Code, including persons formerly occupying any such position, against all expenses,
judgments, fines, settlements and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred by them in
connection with any “proceeding,” as that term is used in that Section, and including an action by or in
the right of the Corporation, by reason of the fact that the person is or was a person described in that
section. "Expenses,"” as used in this bylaw, shall have the same meaning as in Section 7237(a) of the
California Corporations Code.

Section 2. Approval of Indemnity. On written request to the Board by any person seeking
indemnification under Section 7237(b) or Section 7237(c) of the California Corporations Code, the Board
shall promptly determine under Section 7237(e) of the California Corporations Code whether the
applicable standard of conduct set forth in Section 7237(b) or Section 7237(c) has been met and, if so,
the Board shall authorize indemnification.

Section 3. Advancement of Expenses. To the fullest extent permitted by law and except as otherwise
determined by the Board in a specific instance, expenses incurred by a person seeking indemnification
under these bylaws in defending any proceeding covered by those Sections shall be advanced by the
Corporation before final disposition of the proceeding, on receipt by the Corporation of an undertaking
by or on behalf of that person that the advance will be repaid unless it is ultimately determined that the
person is entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation for those expenses.

Section 4. Insurance. The Corporation shall have the right to purchase and maintain insurance to the full
extent permitted by law on behalf of its Officers, Directors, employees, and other agents, against any
liability asserted against or incurred by any officer, director, employee, or agent in such capacity or
arising out of the officer’s, director’s, employee’s or agent’s status as such.

ARTICLE 11 — MISCELLANEOUS

Section 1. Conduct of Meetings. All meetings of the Association shall be conducted in accord with the
code of conduct and in substantial accordance with the latest edition of Robert’s Rules of Order Newly
Revised unless the Board adopts alternate rules of conduct for itself and/or its committees, region
boards, and region workgroups.

Section 2. Funds. The funds of the Association shall be used to further the aims and purposes of this
Association. They shall be kept by the controller/treasurer and paid out by checks or other electronic
means, which shall only be valid with two authorized signatures. The Board of Directors shall designate

As amended by the ACWA Members on December 2, 2015 Page | 17



BYLAWS OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES

by resolution which persons, other than the controller/treasurer, may sign for expenditures. The Finance
Committee shall implement procedures to ensure necessary internal controls over the receipt and
expenditures of Association funds and arrange for an external audit. Audit reports shall be presented to
the Board of Directors.

Section 3. Disposition of Assets upon Dissolution. The Association’s properties and assets are
irrevocably dedicated to the fulfillment of the Association’s purposes as described in Article 2 of the
Articles of Incorporation. No part of the Association’s net earnings, properties and assets, on dissolution
or otherwise, may inure to the benefit of any private person. Upon the dissolution of the Association, all
debts thereof shall be paid and its affairs settled, and all remaining assets shall be distributed to the
Association’s member political subdivisions for a public purpose, consistent with the provisions of the
California Nonprofit Corporation Law relating to public benefit corporations then in effect and with the
Articles of Incorporation.

Section 3. Definitions. As used in these bylaws, the term “notice provided by electronic means” shall
refer to notice given by fax or e-mail.

Amended comprehensively December 1, 2010
Amended May 9, 2012

Amended May 7, 2014

Amended December 2, 2015

As amended by the ACWA Members on December 2, 2015 Page | 18



DATE: November 8, 2017

TO: Dave Eggerton, General Manager s
FROM: Stacey Lollar, Director of HR and Customer Service

SUBJECT: Information/Discussion regarding update of District Employment Policies:
Section 4000 — Hours, Meals, and Rest Periods and Section 7000 —
Leaves

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Review and comment on proposed addition/update to the District's employee polices:
Section 4000 — Hours, Meals, and Rest Periods and Section 7000 — Leaves.

SUMMARY:

The next sets of policies (total of 11) are ready for review and comment: Section 4000 —
Hours, Meals, and Rest Periods and Section 7000 — Leaves. Of the many policies in
these sections, the following are new:

e 4000.3 - Rest and Meal Periods
e 4000.4 - Timekeeping
¢ 4000.5 - On Call

e 7000.5 — Pregnancy Disability Leave (PDL)

The other policies in these sections have been revised to change their titles and to
better reflect current practices/procedures. All of these policies were reviewed by SEIU
representatives, Management & Confidential representatives, as well as the District's
legal counsel.

There are two more sections of policies left for review: one policy on Employment and
the other on Standards of Professional Conduct. It is the desire of staff to bring these
remaining policies to the Board for review during the first quarter of the next calendar
year. As areminder, once all policies have been reviewed by the Board an agenda item
will be brought to the Board for adoption of a newly revised Employee Policy Handbook.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

None.

Attachments:  Proposed Policy 4000.1 — Attendance
Proposed Policy 4000.2 — Work Schedules
Proposed Policy 4000.3 — Rest and Meal Periods
Proposed Policy 4000.4 — Timekeeping
Proposed Policy 4000.5 — On Call
Proposed Policy 7000.1 — Paid Time Off (PTO)

1n



Attachmentis
Continued:

Proposed Policy 7000.2 — Sick Leave / Kin Care

Proposed Policy 7000.3 — Other Leaves

Proposed Policy 7000.4 — Family and Medical Care Leaves
Proposed Policy 7000.5 — Pregnancy Disability Leave (PDL)
Proposed Policy 7000.6 — Authorized Leave Without Pay
Current Policy 2165— Unauthorized Voluntary Absence
Current Policy 2010 — Hours of Work and Overtime

Current Policy 2020 - Vacation

Current Policy 2040 - Sick Leave

Current Policy 2060 — Jury/Witness Duty

Current Policy 2160 — Authorized Leave

Current Policy 2310 — Family Care, Medical and Other Leaves

22



POLICY TITLE: Attendance
POLICY NUMBER: 4000.1
POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE:
REVISED:

The District expects every employee to arrive at work on time, fully prepared, every day
the employee is scheduled to work. Work schedules are determined at the discretion of
the department head and are subject to change with or without notice, according to the
needs of the department or District. All employees have an assigned work schedule,
from their supervisor and/or manager, which includes the employee’s starting time,
reporting site, authorized lunch break allowance, and end time. "An overtime-eligible
employee shall be in attendance and at work during the hours specified by the supervisor.
Supervisors, Managers, and Department Heads are responsible .to ensure an
employee’s adherence to this schedule. g e

4000.1.1 Advance Request to Deviate from 'yiﬁegufiéi:,

An overtime-eligible employee is required to sé;e‘k{ adva}nce ermission, at least two (2)
weeks, from his or her supervisor for any. foreseeable absence or deviation from regular
working hours, break, and meal times. =~ = SE

e 1 Late Amva! or Absence

4000.1.2 Notification of Ui

who«;»;;:;s\ﬁggxpected,lygf unable to report for work as

scheduled must notify his or her immediate supervisor no later than the beginning of the

employee’s scheduled.work:time and report the expected time of arrival or absence. If

the immediate supervisor is riot available, the employee must notify the department
head. In the event an employee cannot speak to their supervisor and/or Department
Head they should leave a messagé:f;with 'th’jgir supervisor on their District provided phone

meal periods is. prohibited, without authorization. An overtime-eligible employee who
fails to timely.notify the supervisor of any absences as required by this Policy, or who is
not present-and ready to work during all scheduled work times will be deemed to have
an unauthorized, tardy or absence and will not receive compensation for the period of

absence, unlesésfihgre is evidence of an extenuating circumstance.

Employees who are absent without authorization for more than three (3) consecutive
days, and who subsequently report to work, must provide written reason for such
absence to their supervisor or Human Resources. Depending on the circumstances,
the employee may be subject to disciplinary action, including termination, for such
unauthorized absence.

Policy No. 4000.1 - Attendance ) Page 1 of 2



4000.1.4 Excessive Tardiness / Absenteeism and Requests to Deviate from
Regular Work Hours

Excessive tardiness occurs when an overtime-eligible employee who, without
authorization, is late to work or late to return from breaks more than three (3) times
during any 30-day period. Excessive absenteeism occurs when the number of
unauthorized absences for reasons that are not protected by state or federal law,
exceeds three (3) days in any three-month period. Excessive tardiness / absenteeism
may be grounds for discipline, up to and including termination.

Excessive requests to deviate from regular works hours occurs ‘when an overtime-

eligible employee requests deviation more than three (3) times dL’x"r’jng any 30-day
period, and the requests are not protected by state or federal law B

4000.1.5 Reporting Location

All 'employees shall be assigned a reporting sjgte’ where:::{hggﬁjfé'Hall startthelr work day.
The District may change an employee’s normal reporting site to accommodate
operational needs of the District. LR

Policy No. 4000.1 - Attendance Page 2 of 2



POLICY TITLE: Work Schedules
POLICY NUMBER: 4000.2
POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE:
REVISED:

This policy shall apply to all non-exempt employees. Exempt employees are expected to
work normal office hours, and/or such other hours as are reasonably necessary to handle
their work responsibilities.

Work schedules are determined at the discretion of the department-head and are subject

to change with or without notice, according to the needs of the department or the District.
An overtime-eligible employee shall be in attendance and-at work during the hours
specified by the supervisor. SO 2

4000.2.2 Alternati

Some employees may ssxgne to work an alternative work schedule (9/80 or 4/10
schedule) in order to provide coverage for the operation of District facilities.

,,,,, ed e

Employeesméi;?élgg request an al\’:(éf[natin\;éy work schedule (9/80 or 4/10 schedule) by

completing the District's alternative work schedule request form. The approval of the

sched ust come from their Department Head and General Manager.

Employees Workmga 9/80 work schedule will have a regular day off every other
week: as determined by the District. For employees working a 9/80 work
schedule; each employee’s designated work week shall begin exactly four hours

after the start of his/her eight hour shift on the day of the week that corresponds
to the employee’s alternating regular day off.

Hours and days available for this schedule shall be determined by each
Department Head based on District needs.
4000.2.2.2 Work Week for 4/10 Work Schedule

For employees working the 4/10 work schedule, each employee’s designated
workweek will be the same as the standard work week and shall begin on
Monday at 12:01 a.m. and end at midnight the following Sunday.

Policy No. 4000.2 — Work Schedules Page 1 of 3



Hours and days available for this schedule shall be determined by each
Department Head based on District needs.

4000.2.2.3 Alternative Work Schedule Guidelines

a) Eligibility to participate in the alternative work schedule program is subject at
all times to the needs of the District and may be modified as those needs
dictate at the District’s sole discretion.

a. The Department Head will monitor level of service to external and

internal customers, and added cost to the District (if ‘any), to determine

whether any adjustments need to be made-concerning the individual's
participating or the structure of the alternative work schedule for any
location and/or department. o

b. Alternative work schedules can:be terminated either for any individual
or for a department and/or location” if productivity “levels have
deteriorated, there is an increase in overtime which directly relates to
the alternative work schedule, or stz
make it untenable for:the District to

c. A satisfactory attendance reco
performance must be m: intained.

me will be paid in accordance with District Policies,
ated:-in a Bargaining Unit Agreement / Memorandum of

Understanding.

“approved léave of absence will be recorded as time away at the hours
2mployee would typically have worked during the period of leave.
Accrued. PTO taken for an approved leave of absence will be applied at the
hours typically worked that day, i.e. 10, 9, or 8 hours.

e) Once an employee is on an alternative work schedule, they may elect to go
off the schedule at the end of the schedule’s time period (i.e. day after the last
day of a 4/10 schedule or the day after the scheduled day off with a 9/80
schedule). The employee must submit a request in writing at least 10 working
days prior to the requested termination of the alternative work schedule.
Schedule changes are limited to once a year or in extenuating circumstances
with approval from the Department Head and General Manager.

Policy No. 4000.2 — Work Schedules Page 2 of 3



f) Holidays are paid as an eight (8) hour day, therefore to receive full pay for the
holiday while on an alternative work schedule, the employee shall use and
record one (1) or two (2) hours of accrued leave, depending on their
alternative work schedule, on their timecard for that holiday.

g) When an employee’s regular day off falls on a holiday, the employee’s holiday
will be scheduled with his/her Department Head, to be taken within the pay
period before, during, or after the actual holiday. It is the responsibility of the
employee to be certain they schedule and use their holiday.

4000.2.3 Make-up Time

Rather than utilizing PTO, or any other available leave ba‘!an‘ce, an ‘em

ployee may

request to make up time off due to appointments_during the“same work week with

approval from their Department Head. Notwithstanding the overtime provisions, there

will be no overtime calculation on the day(s) in-which the time is being made up. No

make-up days shall exceed ten (10) hours .in duration‘and the employee may not
request more than three (3) hours per week forn

4000.25  No Volunteering of Work

Policy No. 4000.2 — Work Schedules Page 3 of 3



POLICY TITLE: Rest and Meal Periods
POLICY NUMBER: 4000.3

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE:

REVISED:

4000.3.1 Rest Period

A 15-minute compensated rest period will be provided to all overtime-eligible employees
for each four-hour period of service. The rest period shall be taken at a time designated

by the employee’s supervisor, to ensure that sufficient e
sustain normal operations throughout normal work hours.

Rest periods may not be combined to shorten the workday HéW@ver, réé’t{;;periods can

S

be used to lengthen the meal period with writteh“*‘permissidﬁf;ﬁpy the i
Department Head. i

4000.3.2 Meal Period

A 30 minute non-compensated meal period. w b

& provided to.a

eligible employees who work at least an eight hour work day. Overtime-eligible
employees are responsible for taking' their meal period at a time designated by the
supervisor and should be taken between four and five hours after the beginning of the
employees work day. N

An overtime:-eligible employee who wishes to express breast milk for their infant child
during: scheduled work hours will receive additional unpaid time beyond the 15-minute
compensated rest period, per Labor Code § 1030; 29 USC § 207(r). Those desiring to
take a lactation break must notify a supervisor prior to taking such a break. Breaks may
be reasonably. delayed if they would seriously disrupt operations per Labor Code §
1032. Once a lactation break has been approved, the break should not be interrupted

except for emergéncy or exigent circumstances.

The District will make reasonable efforts to accommodate employees by providing an
appropriate location to express milk in private. The District will attempt to find a location
in close proximity to the employee’s work area, and the location will be other than a
toilet stall. (Labor Code § 1031; 29 USC § 207(r).) Employees occupying such private
areas shall either secure the door or otherwise make it clear to others through signage
that the area is occupied and should not be disturbed. All other employees should
avoid interrupting an employee during an authorized break under this section, except to

Policy No. 4000.3 — Rest and Meal Periods V Page 1 of 2



announce an emergency or other urgent circumstance. Authorized lactation breaks for
employees assigned to the field may be taken at the nearest appropriate private area.

Any employee storing expressed milk in any authorized area with the District shall
clearly label it as such. No expressed milk shall be stored at the District beyond the
employee’s work day/shift.

4000.3.4 Guaranteed Rest Period Time

All employees shall be guaranteed a minimum of eight (8) hours off duty when they are
released from work after midnight, or after performing sixteen.(16):.consecutive hours of

rest period as defined in this Article. Upon request of the employee, and approval of the -
Department Head, the employee shall: a) ac Ul

crue his/her hours worked toward his/her
normal regularly scheduled day; b) complete his’[h_e:p;:np,rmal*“rfegurl,‘

his/her. norm ¥ scheduled work
day and the call back hours will be paid-a -the overtime rate. “In no case will the
employee be directed to work more than sixteen'(16) consecutive hours.

Such rest time shall not count:toward "'o,y:@rtime for the work day. Exceptions may be
made by the General Managér in emergency. situations or unusual circumstances.

Policy No. 4000.3 ~ Rest and Meal Periods Page 2 of 2



POLICY TITLE: Timekeeping
POLICY NUMBER: 4000.4
POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE:
REVISED:

Employees shall complete the District approved time sheet within three (3) days of the
end of the time period. The employee’s supervisor is required to approve the time sheet
as well.

Only the employee is to complete their timesheets. Recording time ‘on another
employee’s timesheet is strictly prohibited. If a.change is needed on an employee’s
timesheet, the employee may authorize their Supervisor or:Human Resources to make
the adjustment(s). Such authorization shall be noted on t et by the person

timeshe
making the change. :

Policy No. 4000.4 — Timekeeping Page 1 of 1



POLICY TITLE: On Call
POLICY NUMBER: 4000.5
POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE:
REVISED:

On call employees provide emergency service during off hours (non-business hours)
including weekends and holidays. The assigned employee will cover the period from
Monday 7:00 a.m. through the following Monday at 7:00 a.m.

The Operations department will issue current on call procedures:and related guidance

to those staff who perform the on call duties. Any and all exceptions to this policy must
be pre-approved, in writing, by the Department Head. o i

4000.5.1 On Call Responsibilities

When an employee is on call, the employee may useh /ﬁfér timt‘éﬁfay
scheduled employee on call is assigned to: ' ,

esired. The

b) Remain within thirty-five (35) minutes of a District facility and be within functional

pager range. = i

c) Be readily available at all hours:by telephone, or other communication devices
(radio, pager, or other necessary equipment as determined by the Department
Head), analyze troubleicalls and, if necessary, dispatch other employees to handle
the problem. The radio;.pager;: etc. shall be kept in the on call employee’s
possession during the.entire on call period of the assignment.

d) Keep a log of calls received, description of call, times and any pertinent information
to be delivered to the Department Head by the following work day.; and

e) Refrain from activities which might-impair performance of his/her assigned duties

will be provided a District vehicle.

BS|gnm‘gn.t of On Call Period

re requnred to work at least one (1) week of on call assignment per

The District will assign one employee at a time to serve as the on call employee. The
assignment shall be in accordance with the current Memorandum of Understanding.
The schedule shall include all bargaining unit employees except those employees who
have not been trained and approved to serve on call.

When more than one employee requests an on-call period, the employee with the most
employment seniority will be granted the on-call period. Involuntary assignment to a
period of on call shall be by inverse employment seniority on a rotational basis.
Assignment by inverse employment seniority will be repeated through the rotation until
all on-call periods are filled for the calendar year.

Policy No. 4000.5 — On Call Page 1 of 2



Any employee assigned to on call may exchange or substitute a scheduled on call
assignment with another qualified employee upon twenty-four (24) hours advance
notice to the Department Head. However, an employee cannot be on call for two
consecutive weeks nor on call for more than one (1) week per month.

4000.5.3 On Call Compensation

Please refer to your bargaining unit's Memorandum of Understanding for on call
compensation information, if any.

Policy No. 4000.5 — On Call Page 2 of 2



POLICY TITLE: Paid Time Off (PTO) (formally Policy #2020)
POLICY NUMBER: 7000.1

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE:

REVISED:

Paid time off (PTO) is provided by the District to employees as personal time, for iliness
and as a period of exemption from work with pay for the purpose of rest, relaxation, and
recreation. This benefit is intended as an aid in maintaining the long-term and
consistent productivity and contentment of the employee. PTO eliminates the
distinction between paid sick days and vacation leave, i i
specified number of days off per year. :

Eligible full-time and part-time employees, with the g),f(’:(:':{éptioﬁ’f'oftempofé;jy and extra
help employees, earn PTO leave while in paid status until they reach the accrual cap.

Full-time and part-time employees start accruing PTO on their: first full day of

employment with the District, although introductory employees shall not use PTO leave

until successful completion of at least three (3) months o
accordance with these policies. S

Employees accrue PTO time acggrdciﬁlg, to their full-time: status and the number of
consecutive years the employs :

as worked for the District as follows:

HoursRe eived Per Hours Received
Pay Period Per Year
7.34 176 hours
i ibi‘(’ygars 9.00 216 hours
0 ormoreyears 10.67 256 hours

7000.1.2 Part—Tiﬁ}g Employee Accrual Rate

Part-time employees earn PTO while in paid status in a pro-rated amount based upon
the accrual applicable to full time employees. Once a part-time employee reaches the
pro-rated accrual cap, they stop earning vacation.

7000.1.3 Maximum PTO Leave Accrual

No employee may accrue more than five hundred twenty (520) hours, or for part-time
employees the equivalent pro-rated accrual cap. When an employee reaches the cap,
he/she shall cease earning PTO until his/her leave balance falls below the maximum.

Policy No. 7000.1 — Paid time Off Page 1 of4



At no time shall an employee be allowed to receive paid time off in excess of his / her
accrued and available PTO.

7000.1.4 PTO Payout Restrictions

Employees may only request a payout of 80 hours per the District’s fiscal year (July 1
through June 30).

At no time shall an employee be allowed to receive a payout of PTO if the payout will
drop his/her banks below forty (40) hours. . ,,

7000.1.5 Scheduling of PTO Leave

While the District acknowledges that illness is not a::

In order to receive compensation while jll
supervisor prior to the employee’s start ti

employee shall maintain appropriate
period of illness. If possible, the emplo
returning to work. PTO for iliness:

the District may require a medi

cal rele

| S| sible for the accurate reporting of PTO on their timesheet.
‘take ’chtéi:r:;i;PTO time in one-quarter-hour increments.

7000.1.7 PTO'Integration with Call-backs

If an employee out on scheduled PTO is authorized to respond to a call-back to work
during their regular scheduled hours, the time involved in the call-back or response shall
be considered work time, replacing the equivalent PTO hours, and so reported on the
employee’s timesheet.

7000.1.8 PTO Integration with Off-duty Response

If an employee out on scheduled PTO is authorized to respond to District needs via
telecommunication, the time involved in the response shall be considered work time,

Policy No. 7000.1 — Paid time Off Page 2 of 4



replacing the equivalent PTO time with actual response time worked (in 15-minute
increments), and so reported on the employee’s timesheet.

7000.1.8 Unused PTO Leave Upon Separation

Any employee separating from the District who has accrued PTO leave shall be paid for
all accrued PTO at his or her rate of pay at the time of separation.

7000.1.10 Unauthorized Use

No employee shall be entitled to PTO while absent from work for the

llowing reasons:

1. Disability arising from a sickness or injury purposeful

the employee’s willful misconduct.
2. Sickness or disability sustained while on authori
3. Disciplinary Suspension or Leave without Pay.”

self-in xct_é;q_or caused by

&d leave wi

7000.1.11 Integration with Holidays

Donation of PTO hours is designed:to
have experienced a personalior immedia
bereavement which will

liate*family member’s serious iliness or injury or
quire the employee to'be;on unpaid leave for a period of time.

7000.1.12.1 Definitions:

1) A serious illness or injury for this policy is defined as an iliness or injury which is
expected ‘to incapacitate or have ‘a debilitating effect on the employee or

' an extended period of time creating a financial

oyee to take off from work for an extended period,

immediate family member for a

ecause the employee has exhausted all accumulated leave.

e Famil Member is defined as an employee’s spouse, registered

2) Immediate Fam

domestic partner, children, step-children, in-laws, foster children, sisters,

brothers; grandparents, grandchildren and parent.

7000.1.12.2 Donating PTO hours Procedure:

Upon receipt of a valid request for donation from an employee, either the employee
needing the PTO or an employee wanting to help, the General Manager will confirm
with Human Resources that the employee is eligible for the benefit.

To be eligible the employee must 1) be eligible to accumulate PTO; 2) have
exhausted all available leave balances; and 3) be in need of PTO.

If the employee is eligible a notice will be posted of the employee’s need for
donations of leave on the Districts bulletin board which is accessible to all
employees and will be distributed through electronic mail.

Policy No. 7000.1 - Paid time Off Page 3 of 4



7000.1.12.3 Rules Regarding Donating PTO hours:

1) Only Regular or Part-time employees are eligible to receive donated hours.

2) All donations will be voluntary.

3) Employees may donate up to sixteen (1 6) hours per month to each employee.
4) Donation must be made in whole hour increments.

5) All donations shall be irrevocable.

6) Employees wishing to donate time must complete a PTO Donation form.

a. Upon receipt of the request, Human Recourses shall confirm that the
donating employee has accrued enough tlme to' setgsfy the donation
obligation. g

b. Human Resources shall convert the: donated hours to the eligible
employee’s PTO accumulation on a\n_hour for hour basis.

7) Donated hours accumulation for any ehgtble employee cannot exceed twelve
(12) weeks or 480 hours. o0 e
IH drop thelr leave balance

8) Employees may not donate hours if: the dona’uon
below forty (40) hours.

Policy No. 7000.1 - Paid time Off Page 4 of 4



POLICY TITLE: Sick Leave / Kin Care (formally Policy #2040)
POLICY NUMBER: 7000.2

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2015 via Res. No. 2015-25
REVISED:

This policy, pursuant to California’s Paid Sick Leave law, effective July 1, 2015 shall
apply to part-time and temporary employees only, as all other employees of the District
receive Paid Time Off (PTO) as agreed in current Memorandum of Understandings or
Agreements.

7000.2.1 Purposes for Sick Leave

o Forthe employee’s own diagnosis, care, or“
condition or preventatlve care.

legal guardlen B
domestic. pan‘n o
employee was.a

o Grandparent E

3 Grandchlld

";‘themselves or their children.

o To seek medical attention for injuries caused by domestic violence,
sexual assault, or stalking.

o To obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program, or rape
crisis center as a result of domestic violence, sexual assault, or
stalking.

o To obtain psychological counseling related to an experience of
domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.

Policy No. 7000.2 — Sick Leave / Kin Care Page 1 0of 3



o To participate in safety planning and take other actions to increase
safety from future domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
including temporary or permanent relocation.

7000.2.2 Terms of Sick Leave

For seasonal / temporary or extra help employees, up to 24 hours, or three (3) days,
whichever is greater, of accrued and available sick leave each year is protected and
may be used for any of the purposes stated in this Policy. The year is measured
beginning on the employee’s anniversary of hire date.

Accrual & Carryover:

Accrued and unused sick leave carries over to the following year of em
stops earning sick leave once he or she accrues 24-
is greater.

A A ﬁ!gyment and
hours, or three (3) days, whichever

‘Sick Leave Pay Rate

Sick pay rate is based on an hourly wage: :Should:the ho irly wage f
pay is calculated on a 90-day average.” P d sick leave will not be considered hours
worked for purposes of overtime “calculationi: An employee will not receive

compensation for unused accrued paid sick !é‘é{y? upontermination, resignation,
retirement or other separation

employment from'the District.

Sick Leave Use:

increments, beginning on the 90th.day after the first day of employment with the District,
subject to the limits and request provisions:in this Policy.

day, the employee must keep the immediate supervisor informed each day as to the

date the employee.expects to return to work and the purpose of the leave. Failure to

request sick leave as required by this Policy without good reason, may result in the
employee being treated as absent without leave.
Certification:

All employees, including seasonal, temporary, or extra help, who use paid leave to
address issues related to domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking, and who cannot
provide advance notice of their need for leave must provide certification of the need for

Policy No. 7000.2 — Sick Leave / Kin Care Page 2 of 3



leave within a reasonable time thereafter.

Sick Leave on Separation from Employment:

Unused sick leave is not cashed out upon termination, resignation, retirement, or other
separation from employment. Unused sick leave may be converted to retirement
service credits only as may be permitted under applicable retirement system laws and
regulations.

Sick Leave Reinstatement:

If an employee separates and is rehired within one (1) year
and unused sick leave, to a maximum of 3 days or 24 hours;
be reinstated. An employee who worked at least 90 days

the District may immediately use reinstated sick leav

worked 90 days in the initial employment with- the District. must work th

ve. An employee who had not

amount of the 90 day-qualifying period to be able to use accrued sick lea

Policy No. 7000.2 — Sick Leave / Kin Care Page 3 of 3



POLICY TITLE: Other Leaves (formally Policy #2160)
POLICY NUMBER: 7000.3

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE:

REVISED:

7000.3.1 Jury Duty Leave / Subpoenaed or Court-Ordered Witness Leave (formally
in Policy #2060)

Any employee, including an introductory or temporary employee, who is summoned to
serve on a jury, or subpoenaed or ordered to be a witness, must notify his or her
Supervisor or Department Head as soon as possible andw
duration of service. Any employee who is released from Jufty

service prlor to the end of
his or her scheduled work hours must report to work unless otherwise authorized by his

or her supervisor. (Gov. Code § 1230; Labor Code §:230; 28 USC § 1875(0))

All overtime-eligible employees will be paid for: actual work hours Am’ls‘s d:because of
time spent in jury service or court. Jury duty I'""ve will not’ be con&deredz;,hours worked
for the purpose of overtime calculation. s

All Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). : emp employees wdl;‘oontmue to receive their
normal salary and benefits while on jury duty or: as servmg as a witness. (29 CFR §
541.602(b)(3)) G ;

Grand jury is typically serve |

mployee is not eligible for paid
time to serve. :

7000.3.2 Other Court__ f Adm :stratwe Proceeding Appearances
7000.3.2.1 § Regardmg Dlstnct Dut:es

plo’“é;e,, mc!udmg an ;?,‘mtroductory or temporary employee, who is
subpo naed {o?appear m court "m a matter regardmg an event or transactlon in

E r atter mvolves an event or transactlon in the course of the employee s District
) ,;‘vd tles

7000.3.2.:” “-.Regarding Employee-Initiated Proceedings

Any employee, including an introductory or temporary employee, who is
subpoenaed to appear, or appears in court because of civil or administrative
proceedings that he or she initiated, is not entitled to receive compensation for
time spent related to those proceedings. An employee may request to receive
time off without pay or use any accrued leave for time spent related to those
proceedings. The time spent in these proceedings is not considered work time.
Notwithstanding the above, an employee who is testifying or appearing as the
designated representative in PERB conferences or hearings, or at a personnel or

Policy No. 7000.3 — Other Leaves Page 1 of 5



merit commission is entitled to paid release time. (Gov. Code § 3505. 3(a)(2) &

(3).)

7000.3.2.3 Regarding Crime Victim / Victim Family Member Court
Attendance Leave

Any employee, including an introductory or temporary employee, who is a
victim of a crime that is a serious or violent felony, or a felony involving theft
or embezzlement, may take leave from work to attend judicial proceedings
related to that crime, if the employee provides the District a copy of the
notice of the scheduled proceeding in advance. .: ffa'dvahee notice is not
feasible, the empioyee must prowde the DIS'(I'IC’(»-_,

An employee who is an immediate famnly member"of such a crime victim,
mcludmg a reglstered domestlc par’mer the child of the reglstered domestic
: 'tepbrothe “sister; stepsister;
mother stepmother father or,_s epfather 0 he cnme victim is also entitled

230 5(a)(2)(A) An: ‘employee who is a spouse, parent, child, sibling, or guardian

of such:a crime victim is also a victim who is entitled to thls leave if the above

notice or: ‘certification requirements are met. The leave is unpaid unless the
employee élects to use accrued PTO or paid leave, or compensatory time off.

7000.3.3 Leave for Victims of Domestic Violence, Sexual Assault, or Stalking to
Obtain Restraining Order or Injunctive Relief

Any employee, including an introductory or temporary employee, who is a victim of
domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, may take leave from work to obtain or
attempt to obtain any relief, including, but not limited to: a temporary restraining order,
restraining order, or other injunctive relief to help ensure the health, safety, or welfare of
the employee or his or her child, if the employee provides advance notice of the need

Policy No. 7000.3 — Other Leaves Page 2 of 5



for leave. If advance notice is not feasible, the employee must provide any of the
following certifications within a reasonable time after the leave: a police report indicating
that the employee was a victim; a court order protecting the employee from the
perpetrator; evidence from the dls’mct attorney or court that the employee has appeared
in court; or documentation from a health care provider or counselor that the employee
was undergoing treatment for physical or mental injuries or abuse. The leave is unpaid
unless the employee elects to use accrued leave. (Labor Code § 230.5(f).)

7000.3.3.1 Leave for Victims of Domestic Violence, Sexual Assault or
Stalking to Obtain Medical Attention or Couns
Pianning

attend fo any of the following: obtalnmg med;cal attentlon or psychologlcal
counseling; obtaining services from a.shelter,
participating in safety planning or other action
employee provides advance nottce of the. employee
these purposes.

pareﬁf as;grandchild brother, sister, mother/father—m law, son or daughter—
in-law, brother or sxster—m Iaw legal guardian, or custodial chxld or the same relatives of

not deﬂned s;tmmedlate famlly per this section. Employees are entitled to up to three
(3) days for each death in the immediate family. An employee who utilizes
bereavement leave shall notify his/her supervisor or department head of the intent to
use such leave.

Bereavement leave days are paid at eight (8) hours regardless of work schedule.

7000.3.5 Military Leave

Military leave will be granted in accordance with state and federal law. An employee
requesting leave for this purpose shall promptly provide the department head with a
copy of the military orders specifying the dates, site and purpose of the activity or

Policy No. 7000.3 — Other Leaves Page 3 of 5



mission. Within the limits of such orders, the department head may determine when the
leave is to be taken and may modify the employee’s work schedule to accommodate the
request for leave.

7000.3.6 Time Off to Vote

Any employee, if he or she does not have sufficient time outside of working hours to
vote, may request up to two hours of paid leave either at the beginning or end of
scheduled working hours to enable him or her to vote. The employee must request time
off to vote from his or her supervisor at least two days prior to election day.

7000.3.7 School Related Leave
7000.3.7.1 School or Licensed Day Care Actrvrty Leave

Any employee who is a parent, guardian, stepp&ayrent foster parent grandparent
or person who stands in foco parent/s to. oné_,or more children who are in

", § 'ifil_f both parents guardians or grandparents having
custody::work for the Dlstnct;._; t the same District work site, only the first parent
’ Wi :be_,e titled to'leave under this provision. (Labor Code § 230.8.)

An'w em :loyee Who is the parent or guardian of a child in grades 1 through 12
may take time off to go to the child’s school in response to a request from the
child’s school

7000.3.8 Paid Admln Leave

The District has the right to place an employee on leave with full pay for a non-
_disciplinary reason at any time when the General Manger or Human Resources has
determined that the employee’s and/or District’s best interests warrant the leave. The
employee does not have a right to appeal the decision to be placed on administrative
leave with pay.

Policy No. 7000.3 — Other Leaves Page 4 of 5



7000.3.9 Bone Marrow or Organ Donor Leave

An employee may use up to five (5) days of paid leave each calendar year to serve as a
bone-marrow donor. An employee also may use up to thirty (30) days of paid leave
each calendar year to serve as an organ donor. Employees who wish to take this leave
will be required to provide written verification, including confirmation that the employee
is a donor and that there is a medical necessity.

Employees taking bone marrow leave shall use five (5) days of available accrued leave.
Employees taking organ donation leave shall use ten (10).days" of available accrued
leave. Once the ten (10) days of accrued leave has been‘taken, the remainder of the
thirty (30) workdays will be paid by the District. S

During bone marrow and organ donation leave, thefb’figj;rict will contmue totﬁﬁrovide and
pay for any group health plan benefits the emplo 5
absence.

‘f’s’é‘p,arate;;-,g:afégq; -of leave and is in

Leave for bone marrow and organ donation. is

addition to annual PTO leave accruals. Th\i""s‘?“i',ejave will né’%ﬁifpe counted as a break-in-
service and may not run concurrently. with Family and Me

dical Leave Act leave or

California Family Rights Act (C > entitlements. -

Upon conclusion of this leav _,';.jhe 'ém_p oyee will b{:
position, or to a position.with equivalent senidrjfgy;_sjgatus, employee benefits, pay, and

other terms and conditions of employment.

Policy No. 7000.3 — Other Leaves Page 5 of 5



POLICY TITLE: Family and Medical Care Leaves (formally Policy #2310)
POLICY NUMBER: 7000.4

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE:

REVISED:

The District provides family and medical care leave for eligible employees as required
by State and federal law. Employees who misuse or abuse family and medical care
leave may be disciplined up to and including termination. This Policy is supplemented
by the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act (“FMLA”), and the California Family
Rights Act (“CFRA”"). Unless otherwise stated in this Policy;:“l.eave” means leave
pursuant to the FMLA and CFRA. Unless otherwise provided by law, the District will run
each employee’s FMLA and CFRA leaves concurrently. . Fi

District has the legal right to
‘of medical uncertainty by
the employee’s medical doctor.

>‘:’rg§pon§" ility for care, and includes a biological, adopted, foster or step-child. A
child is.fincapable of self care” if he/she requires active assistance or supervision
orovide daily self-care in three or more of the activities of daily living or

instrumental activities of daily living, such as caring for grooming and hygiene,
bathing, "*d[gssing and eating, cooking, cleaning shopping, taking public
transportation, paying bills, maintaining a residence, or using telephones and

directories. (29 CFR § 825.102; Gov. Code § 12945.2(c)(1).)

(d) “Parent” means the biological parent of an employee or an individual who stands
or stood in loco parentis (in place of a parent) to an employee when the
employee was a child. This term does not include parents-in-law. (29 CFR §
825.102; Gov. Code § 12945.2(c)(7).)

(e) “Spouse” means one or two persons to a marriage, regardless of the sex of the
persons, and for purposes of FMLA / CFRA leave, includes a registered domestic

Policy No. 7000.4 - Family and Medical Care Leaves Pagelof12



partner as defined below. (29 CFR § 825.102: Fam. Code § 300; 2 Cal. Code
Regs § 11087(r).)

() “Domestic Partner” is another adult with whom the employee has filed a
Declaration of Domestic Partnership with the Secretary of State, and who meets
the criteria specified in California Family Code section 297. A legal union formed
in another state that is substantially equivalent to the California domestic
partnership is also sufficient. (Fam. Code § 299.2)

(9) “Serious Health Condition” means an illness, injury impairment, or physical or
mental condition that involves: L

1) Inpatient Care in a hospital, hospice, or residential m'é':":ical care facility,

including any period of incapacity (e.g., _in‘abiliﬁiftg work Sﬁz‘i'p,erform other

regular daily activities due to the serious health: condition, treatment
involved, or recovery there from). A person is considered “inpatient” when
a health care facility admits him or-her to'the facility with the expectation
that he or she will remain at least overnight; even if it later. evelops that
such person can be discharged or transferred to another facility, and does
not actually remain overnigh V&

2) Continuing treatment by a health care provider:-A serious health condition
involving continuing treatment by a héalth care provider includes any one
or more of the following: E R

urse or physician’s assistant under direct

Upervision by a health care provider, or by a provider of

‘. health care services (e.g., a physical therapist) under
“““orders of, or on referral by a health care provider; or

Treatment by a health care provider on at least one
occasion which results in a regimen of continuing
treatment under the supervision of the health care
provider. This includes, for example, a course of
prescription medication or therapy requiring special
equipment to resolve or alleviate the health condition. If
the medication is over the counter, and can be initiated
without a visit to a health care provider, it does not
constitute a regimen of continuing treatment.

3) Any period of incapacity due to pregnancy or for prenatal care. (29 CFR §
825.120; Gov. Code §12945.2(c)(8).) Note that pregnancy is a “serious
health condition” only under the FMLA. Under California law, an employee

Policy No. 7000.4 —- Family and Medical Care Leaves Page2 of 12



disabled by pregnancy is entitled to pregnancy leave. (See Policy 808,
Leave Because of Pregnancy, Childbirth, or Related Medical Condition. )

4) Any period of incapacity or treatment for such incapacity due to a chronic
serious health condition. A chronic serious health condition is one which:

i. Requires periodic visits for treatment by a health care provider, or
by a nurse or physician’s assistant under direct supervision of a
health care provider;

ii. Continues over an extended period of tlme (mcludlng recurring
episodes of a single underlying conditiol :

ii. May cause episodic rather than a contmumg penod of incapacity

(eg, asthma diabetes, epxlepsy, etc) Absences for such

care services under. orders of, or on" referra!"b'y, a health care provider,
either for restorat y ,after an ‘;_acc:ldent or other injury, or for a
condition that would hkely res‘

dlatnsts den’usts clinical psychologists, optometrists, and Chxropractors
(limited to treatment consisting of manual manipulation of the spine to
correct a subluxation as demonstrated by x-ray to exist) authorized to
practice in California and performing within the scope of their practice as
defined under California State law;

4) Nurse practitioners and nurse-midwives and clinical social workers who
are authorized to practice under California State law and who are
performing within the scope of their practice as defined under California
State law;

5) Christian Science practitioners listed with the First Church of Christ,
Scientist in Boston, Massachusetts; and

Policy No. 7000.4 — Family and Medical Care Leaves Page3 of 12



6) Any health care provider from whom an employer or group health plan’s
benefits manager will accept certification of the existence of a serious
health condition to substantiate a claim for benefits. (29 CFR § 825.102;
Gov. Code § 12945.2(c)(6).)

(i) “Covered active duty” means: 1) in the case of a member of a regular component
of the Armed Forces, duty during deployment of the member with the Armed
Forces to a foreign country; or 2) in the case of a member of the reserve
component of the Armed Forces, duty during the deployment of members of the
Armed Forces to a foreign country under a call or order to active duty under certain
specified provisions. (29 CFR § 825.102.) PR

n ‘ if.Armed Forces,
including a member of the National Guard or Reserves, who is undergoing medical

treatment, recuperation, or therapy, is otherwise in outpatient status, or is

otherwise on the temporary disability retired list; for a serious injury or.illness; or 2)

a veteran who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or.therapy, for a
serious injury or iliness and who was a member of the:Armed Forces, including a

member of the National Guard or Reserf/'esz,,?at_,a‘ny,tihﬁ*e};dyuring‘;‘,the period of five

rces.assigned to either: (1) a military medical treatment

a member of the Armed:F e
or (2):ia 'hjed for the purpose of providing

facility as an outpatie

unit. establis

d‘Forces receiving medical care as

Forces; including a member of the National Guard or Reserves, means an injury

or illnesé*‘ffbat a covered servicemember incurred in the line of duty on active duty
in the Armed Forces (or existed before the beginning of the member’s active duty
and was aggravated by the service in the line of duty on active duty in the Armed
Forces) and that may render the servicemember medically unfit to perform the
duties of the member's office, grade, rank, or rating; or 2) in the case of a veteran
who was a member of the Armed Forces, including a member of the National
Guard or Reserves, means an injury or illness that was incurred by the member
in the line of duty on active duty in the Armed Forces (or existed before the
beginning of the member’s active duty and was aggravated by service in the line

Policy No. 7000.4 — Family and Medical Care Leaves Page 4 of 12



of duty on active duty in the Armed Forces) and that manifested itself before or
after the member became a veteran. (29 CFR § 825.102.)

7000.4.2 Reasons for Leave

Leave is only permitted for the reasons listed below.

(a) The birth of a child or to care for a newborn of an employee; (29 CFR § 825.120;
Gov. Code § 12945.2(c)(3)(A));

(b) The placement of a child with an employee in connection with the adoption or

foster care of a child; (29 CFR § 825.121; Gov. Code §:12945. 2(c)(3)(A));

(c) Leave to care for a child, parent, spouse, or domestic. artner who has a serious
health condition; (29 CFR § 825.113; Gov. Code § 12945; 2(0)(3)(A) & (B))

(a) The emp!oyee has been employed by the District for at least 12 months: and

(b) Theie ":"’p'loyee has: been employed by the District for at least 1,250 hours during
the 12‘—month period immediately preceding the commencement of the leave: and

(c) The Dlstnct «directly employs at least 50 full or part-time employees within a 75-mile
radius for each working day during each of 20 or more calendar workweeks in the
current or preceding calendar year. The workweeks do not have to be consecutive.
The phrase “current or preceding calendar year” refers to the calendar year in which
the employee requests the leave or the calendar year preceding this request. (29
CFR § 825.109(d)-29 CFR § 825.111; Gov. Code § 12945.2(a) & (b); 2 Cal.Code
Regs §§ 11087(d)(1) & 11087(e).)

Policy No. 7000.4 — Family and Medical Care Leaves Page 5 of 12



7000.4.4 Amount of Leave

Eligible employees are entitled to a total of 12 workweeks (or 26 workweeks to care for
a covered servicemember) of leave during any 12-month period. If FMLA leave qualifies
as both military caregiver leave and care for a family member with a serious health
condition, the leave will be designated as military caregiver leave first. (29 CFR §
825.127.)

7000.4.5 Minimum Duration of Leave

child, parent, spouse or the employee
him/herself with serious health condition; there is no"minimum amount of leave
that must be taken. However;compliance” With. the. notice and medical
certification provisions in this Policy (

Regs § 11090(e).)

is required. (29 CFR § 825.205; 2 Cal.Code

, >:employed by the District and are
entitled to bonding leave, the aggregate numb orkweeks of leave to which both
may be entitled may be limited to 12 workweeks during any 12-month period. (29 CFR
§ 825.120(a)(3).) If both parents of a‘covered servicemember are employed by the

District and are:entitled to leave to c:
eeks of leave to which both may be entitled is limited to 26 work weeks

re:en ‘care for a covered servicemember, the aggregate
number of workweeks of lea

during the 12-month: period. This limitation does not apply to any other type of leave

under this Policy: (29 CFR § 825:127(f).)

Benefits While On Leave

7000.4‘.;:1‘_&Emp\lgyee”

ealth Insurance During Unpaid Leave: Leave under this Policy is

unpa =While on unpaid leave, employees will continue to be covered by the
District’sgroup health insurance for up to 12 weeks each leave year to the same
extent that':coverage is provided while the employee is on the job. If the
employee is disabled by pregnancy, coverage will continue up to four months
each leave year. If an employee disabled by pregnancy also uses leave under
the CFRA for baby-bonding, the District will maintain coverage while the
employee is disabled by pregnancy (up to four months or 17 1/3 weeks) and
during her CFRA leave (up to 12 weeks). (Gov. Code §§ 12945(a)(2)(A) &
12945.2(s).)

(b) Benefit Plans Not Provided through the Districts Group Health Plan During
Unpaid Leave Do Not Continue: Under FMLA / CFRA regulations the District is

Policy No. 7000.4 — Family and Medical Care Leaves Page 6 of 12



not required to pay for benefit plans that are not part of the group health plan for
any employee on unpaid leave. As a result, employees will not continue to be
covered under the District benefit plans that are not provided through the District
group health plans while the employee is on unpaid leave. (2 Cal. Code Regs §
11092(e).)

(c) Payment of Premiums: Employees may make the appropriate contributions for
continued coverage under the health benefits plans by payroll deductions (if the
employee is using his or her paid leave) or direct payments (if the employee is
not using his or her paid leave). The District will inform_the employee whether
the direct payments for premiums should be paid to the: rrier.or to the District,
and the deadlines for paying premiums in order to prevent coverage from being
dropped. Employee contribution rates are subject. to ‘any changes:in rates that
occur while employee is on leave. - :

health plan premiums for the entire lea\}éﬁipg[igd,:;,unlééé}j'hejU mployee does not

return because of the continua{ibn;x;recur‘re'nbé’;"“b’rf;;oné“ef'tg{féf a serious health

condition of the employee or: his/her family member which would entitle the

employee fo leave, or because of circumstances beyond the employee’s control.
(29 CFR § 825.213; Gov: Code § 12945.2(f)(1); 2 Cal.Code Regs § 11092(c)(5).)

n

(e) Holidays: Holidays occurring during:EML ./ CFRA leave will be handled in
accordance with.-29:CFR § 825.200 (4), and the holiday hours counted as FMLA /
CFRA leave when the:full work week is taken as FMLA / CFRA leave time.

When leave is’ff;tgken in iﬁb‘reméntg of less than a full workweek, a holiday will not
be counted as EMLA / CFRA leave::

eave is unpaid, an employee may elect and the
] oncurrently use all paid accrued leaves during
re leave as described below.

1 Distrfc s Right to Require an Employee to use Paid Leave when
Using FMLA / CFRA Leave

Employeesimust use and exhaust their accrued leaves concurrently with family
and medical care leave to the same extent that employees have the right to use
their accrued leaves concurrently with family and medical care leave with two
exceptions:

(@) Employees are not required to use paid leave during leave pursuant to a
disability plan that pays a portion of the employee’s salary while on leave
unless the employee agrees to use paid leave to cover the unpaid portion of
the disability leave benefit; (20 CFR § 825.207(d); 2 Cal.Code Regs. §
11092(b)(2) & (3)); and

Policy No. 7000.4 — Family and Medical Care Leaves Page7 of 12



(b) An employee must agree to use accrued sick leave to care for a child, parent,
spouse or domestic partner. (Gov. Code § 12945.2(e); 2 Cal.Code Regs §
11092(b)).

7000.4.8.2 District’s Right to Require an Employee to Exhaust FMLA /| CFRA
Leave Concurrently with Other Leaves

If an employee takes a leave of absence for any purpose which also qualifies
under both the FMLA and CFRA, the District will designate that leave as running
concurrently with the employee’s 12-week FMLA / CF RA;:lgave entitlement.

7000.4.8.3 District’s and Employee’s Rights if an Emp_loyee Réqyests
Accrued Leave Without Mentioning FMLA or CFRA

If an employee requests to utilize accrued vacation leave ’:.:Iirf}j‘;pf(her accrued paid
time off without reference to a FMLA / CERA qualifying purpose; the’ District may

not ask the employee if the leave is for a FMLA / CFRA qualifying purpose. (2

request and the employee provides
FMLA / CFRA qualifying purpose;:
accrued leave as described above. (2 Ca

[.C de Regs §

rﬁ%ication

Employees who request leave: nu
to support the need for.the leave as

(a) Employee’s Own Serious Health Condition: Employees who request leave for
their own serious health condition must provide written certification from the
health care provider that contains all‘of the following: the date, if known, on which

the setious health-condition commenced; the probable duration of the condition:

and a'statement that; due to the serious health condition, the employee is unable
torwork at all.or is.unable

. ur > to perform any one or more of the essential functions of
is or-her position. (Gov. Code § 12945.2(j)(2); 2 Cal. Code Regs § 11087(a)(2);

2 Cal.Code Regs § 11091(b)(2).) Upon expiration of the time period the health
care provider originally estimated that the employee needed for his/her own
seriot ealth condition, the employee must obtain recertification if additional
leave is:requested. (Gov. Code § 12945.2(j)(2); 2 Cal. Code Regs § 11091(b)(2);

29 CFR § 825.308.)

(b) Family Member Serious Health Condition: Employees who request leave to
care for a child, parent, domestic partner or a spouse who has serious health
condition must provide written certification from the health care provider of the
family member requiring care that contains all of the following: the date, if known,
on which the serious health condition commenced: the probable duration of the
condition; an estimate of the amount of time which the health care provider
believes the employee needs to care for the child, parent, domestic partner, or
spouse, and a statement that the serious health condition warrants the
participation of the employee to provide care during a period of treatment or

Policy No. 7000.4 ~ Family and Medical Care Leaves Page 8 of 12



supervision of the child, parent or spouse. The term “warrants the participation of
the employee” includes, but is not limited to, providing psychological comfort, and
arranging third party care for the covered family member, as well as directly
providing, or participating in, the medical care. (Gov. Code § 12945.2(k)(1); 2
Cal.Code Regs § 11087(a)(1); 2 Cal.Code Regs § 11091(b)(1).) Upon expiration
of the time period the health care provider originally estimated that the employee
needed to care for a covered family member, the employer must obtain
recertification if additional leave is requested. (Gov. Code § 12945.2()(2); 2
Cal.Code Regs § 11091(b)(1); 29 CFR § 825.308.)

(c) Servicemember Serious Injury or lilness: Employees who request FMLA leave

to care for a covered servicemember who is a child, sp """"
of the employee, must provide written certification from a health care provider
regarding the injured servicemember's serious injury or:illness. (29 CFR §
825.310.) The District will verify the certificati :

time frame requested by the District (which must allow at least 15 calendar days after
the employer’s request);:unless it is not practicable under the particular circumstances
to do so despite the employee’s diligent, good faith efforts. (2 Cal.Code Regs §
11091(b)(3); 29 CFR § 825.305(b).)

7000.4.11 Conse’ézizences for Failure to Provide an Adequate or Timely
Certification

If an employee provides an incomplete medical certification, the employee will be given
a reasonable opportunity to cure any such deficiency. (2 Cal.Code Regs § 11091(b)(3);
29 CFR § 825.313(a) & (b).) However, if an employee fails to provide a medical
certification within the time frame established in this Policy, the District may delay the
taking of FMLA / CFRA leave until required certification is provided, or deny FMLA /
CFRA protections following the expiration of the time period to provide an adequate
certification. (2 Cal.Code Regs § 11091(b)(3); 29 CFR § 825.313(a).)

Policy No. 7000.4 ~ Family and Medical Care Leaves Page 9 of 12



7000.4.12 Human Resources Review of the Contents of Medical Certification for
Employee’s Own Serious Health Condition

(a) Complete and Sufficient: The employee must provide a certification for his or her
own serious health condition that is complete and sufficient to support the request
for leave. A certification is incomplete if one or more of the applicable entries on
the certification form have not been completed. A certification is insufficient if the
information on the certification form is vague, ambiguous, or not responsive. If the
certification is incomplete or insufficient, Human Resource
written notice of the deficiencies and seven days to cure,

necessary in light of the employee’s diligent, good fa

deficiencies. (29 CFR § 825.305(c).) S

ployee an of

7000.4.13 Second and Third
Health Condition

M,ggﬁcaligpinions For Employee’s Own Serious

If the District has a:good:faith, objective reason to doubt the validity of a certification for
the employee’s serious health condition, the District may require a medical opinion of a
second health care provider chosen and paid for by the District. If the second opinion is
different from the first, the._District may require the opinion of a third provider jointly
approved by the District and the employee, but paid for by the District. The opinion of the
third provider will be binding. (29 CFR § 825.307(b) & (c); 2 Cal.Code Regs §
11091(b)(2)(A).)  The District must provide the employee with a copy of the second and
third medical :opinions, where applicable, without cost, upon the request of the

employee. (29'CFR § 825.307(d); 2 Cal.Code Regs § 11091(b)(2)(D).)

7000.4.14 lntermiftent Leave or Leave on a Reduced Leave Schedule

If an employee requests leave intermittently (a few days or hours at a time) or on a
reduced leave schedule for his or her own serious health condition, or to care for an
immediate family member with serious health condition, the employee must provide
medical certification that such leave is medically necessary. “Medically necessary”
means there must be a medical need for the leave and that the leave can best be
accomplished through an intermittent or reduced leave schedule. (2 Cal.Code Regs §
11090(e); 29 CFR § 825.202(b).) The District may require an employee, who certifies

Policy No. 7000.4 — Family and Medical Care Leaves Page 10 of 12



the need for a reduced schedule or intermittent leave, to temporarily transfer to an
alternate position of equivalent pay and benefits that better accommodates the leave
schedule. (2 Cal.Code Regs § 11090(e)(1); 29 CFR § 825.204.)

7000.4.15 Employee Notice of Leave

Although the District recognizes that emergencies arise which may require employees to
request immediate leave, employees are required to give as much verbal or written notice
as possible of their need for leave. (29 CFR § 825.304(a).) If leave is foreseeable, at
least 30 days’ notice is required. In addition, if an employee knows that he/she will need
leave in the future, but does not know the exact day(s) (e.g..for the bitth of a child or to
take care of a newborn), the employee shallinform his/her supervisor as'soon as possible
that such leave will be needed. (29 CFR § 825.302(a); 2 Cal.Code Regs § 11091(a)(2) &
(3).) For foreseeable leave due to a qualifying exigency, an ‘employee must provide
verbal or written notice of the need for leave as soon as practicable, regardless of how far

in advance such leave is foreseeable. (29 CFR §.825.302(a)

7000.4.16 Reinstatement Upon Return From Le

Certification from the employee’s physnman ill be require pnort approval to return to
work from leave at the District, if the leave was:for a serious health condition of the

employee. , o

alent Position: Upon expiration of leave, an

(a) Reinstatement to Same or Equiv ;
employee is entitled to be reinstated to:the position of employment held when the
leave commenced;

r.to an equivalent position with equivalent benefits and pay.
av “greater. rights to reinstatement, benefits, and other
conditions of employmen

t!i;t,_hah' if:the employee had been continuously employed

during the FMLA / CFRA period. (2:Cal.Code Regs § 11087(f) & (g); 2 Cal.Code

Regs § 11“0893(3)‘;3552;9&0FR § 825.214-215; 29 CFR § 825.216.)

(b) Date of Reinstatement:_If a definite date of reinstatement has been agreed upon

-at'the beginning: of the leave, the employee will be reinstated on the date agreed
pon: If the reinstatement date differs from the original agreement of the employee
‘and the District, the employee will be reinstated within two business days, where
feasible, after the ‘employee notifies the employer of his/her readiness to return. 2

Cal.Code Regs § 11089(c)(1) & (2).)

(c) Employee’s Obligation to Periodically Report on His / Her Condition:
Employees may be required to periodically report on their status and intent to
return to work. This will avoid any delays to reinstatement when the employee is
ready to return. (29 CFR § 825.311.)

(d) Fitness for Duty Certification: As a condition of reinstatement of an employee
whose leave was due to the employee’s own serious health condition, which
made the employee unable to perform his or her job, the employee must obtain
and present a fithness-for-duty certification from the health care provider stating
that the employee is able to resume work. Failure to provide such certification will

Policy No. 7000.4 — Family and Medical Care Leaves Page 11 of 12



result in denial of reinstatement. (Gov. Code § 12945.2(k)(4); 29 CFR §
825.312))

(e) Reinstatement of “Key Employees”: The District may deny reinstatement to a
“key” employee (i.e., an employee who is among the highest paid 10 percent of
all employed by the District within 75 miles of the worksite) if such denial is
necessary to prevent substantial and grievous economic injury to the operations
of the District, and the employee is notified of the District’s intent to deny
reinstatement on such basis at the time the employer determines that such injury
would occur. (Gov. Code § 12945.2(r)(1); 29 CFR §§ 8

7000.4.17 Required Forms

Employees must complete the applicable forms tor;re‘éé‘éive ?ém’ily andzi':‘medical care
leave. The forms may be found on the District’s intranet site or-by contacting Human
Resources. i

7000.4.18 Coordination of Leaves

Policy No. 7000.4 — Family and Medical Care Leaves Page12 of 12



POLICY TITLE: Pregnancy Disability Leave (PDL)
POLICY NUMBER: 7000.5

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE:

REVISED:

An employee who is disabled because of pregnancy, childbirth, or a related medical
condition is entitled to an unpaid leave for up to the number of hours normally worked
within four (4) calendar months (one-third of a year or 17 1/3 weeks). (Gov. Code §
12945(a).) For a full-time employee who works 40 hours per week, “four months”
means 693 hours of leave entitlement, based on 40 hour per week:-times 17 1/3 weeks.

(2 Cal. Code Regs § 11042(a)(1).) An employee who works less than 40 hours per
(2 Cal. Code Regs §

week will receive a pro rata or proportional amount oftaleéi\jg.)
11042(a)(2).) yF

This leave need not be taken in one continuous. period of time ('2*"{(31al. Code Regs §

11042(a)) and can be taken intermittently or on a reduced work schedule when

medically advisable, as determined by the employee’s health care provider. If the
employee needs intermittent leave or leave on a.reduced schedule, the District may

require the employee to transfer, during the period of ‘the intermittent or reduced

schedule leave, to an available alternative position for which they are qualified and

which may better accommodate recurﬁ:rjg periods of leave. An alternative position may

include altering an existing job’to_better accommodate’ the employee’s need for
intermittent leave or reduced:w 5 :

K S

sCh;:e ul

7000.5.1 Notice of Certification Requirement

(a) Notice: Req(iésts forpregnancy disability leave must be submitted in writing
with reasonable advance notice of the medical need for the leave. (2 Cal.Code
Regs §:14042(c)(1).) All leaves must be confirmed in writing, have an agreed-
= e @

(b) Certificatiol e request for pregnancy disability leave must be supported by a
“written “certification from™ the attending physician stating that: the employee is
disabled from working by pregnancy, childbirth or a related medical condition: 2) the
‘ hich the employee became disabled by pregnancy, childbirth or a related

ondition; and 3) the estimated duration or end date of the leave. (2

Cal.Code ’R;eigs §§11050(b)(7); 11050(e).)

7000.5.2 Compensation During Leave

Pregnancy disability leaves are without pay, unless supplemented by disability benefits.
However, the employee must first use PTO leave, if any. (2 Cal.Code Regs § 11044(b)(1).)
Once PTO leave is depleted, the employee may elect to use any other accrued paid time
off during the leave. (2 Cal.Code Regs § 11044(b)(2).)

Policy No. 7000.5 ~ Leave Because of Pregnancy, Childbirth, or Related Medical Condition Page 1 of 2



7000.5.3 Benefits During Leave

(a) Group Health Insurance: An employee on pregnancy disability leave may
continue to receive any group health insurance coverage that was provided
before going on leave, beginning on the date the -pregnancy disability leave
begins and continuing for up to four months in a 12-month period, at the same
level and under the same conditions that coverage would have been provided if
the employee had continued in employment continuously for the duration of the
leave. (Gov. Code § 12945(a)(2)(A); 2 Cal. Code Regs § 11044(c).) The District
may recover premiums it paid to maintain health coverage if an employee does
not return to work following pregnancy disability leav
failure to return is a circumstance beyond the employeeg:
separate right to 12 weeks of bonding leave under the Califorﬁi:a_Family and

Medical Leave Act. (Gov. Code § 1294 ’é)‘(2)(A)“;'?‘ii§1;2;:,% Cal.Cb*fq? Regs §

11044(c)(3).) P
ployee is on unpaid pregnancy

(b) PTO Leave: PTO leave does accrue whf{liézg':an em
disability leave. (See 2 Cal. Code Regs'§ 11044(d)("1.)g‘)‘i

7000.5.4 Reinstatement

The employee must provide a release from their"ﬁ?éalth care provider certifying that the

employee is able to perform all:the essential functions of their position safely with or

without reasonable accommodz

mployee will be reinstated to their
! t was not eliminated for a legitimate

business reason during the leéi"jégi (2 Cal.Code Regs § 11043(c).)

(b) If the enjployé"éi':s} original posmon:s no longer available, the employee will be
assigne «.comggrable, open position. (2 Cal.Code Regs § 11043(c)(2).)

leave an’ employee is unable to perform the essential

job becalise of a physical or mental disability, the District will
* initiate -an interactive: process with the employee in order to identify a potential
r@gsonébje ac

7000.5.5 Coordination of Leaves

Whenever possible and as allowed by law, the District will run leaves for Family Medical
Leave Act (FLMA), California Family Rights Act (CFRA) leave, Pregnancy Disability
leave (PDL) and other disabilities concurrently.  Where this is not possible, the
appropriate exceptions under the law will be applied.

Policy No. 7000.5 — Leave Because of Pregnancy, Childbirth, or Related Medical Condition Page 2 of 2



POLICY TITLE: Authorized Leave Without Pay (formally Policy #2165)
POLICY NUMBER: 7000.6 -

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE:

REVISED:

The General Manager may grant a leave of absence without pay or benefits, including
PTO, for up to sixty (60) calendar days. Employees eligible for this leave must have
successfully completed at least one (1) year of District service and have a recent
performance evaluation of at least meets standards. The Board of Directors may grant
a leave of absence of greater length than sixt
(4) calendar months.

An employee shall not be entitled to a leave without pay as aah'ﬁ'aytter of rlqht

1

A leave of absence may be taken in conjunction Wlth

and atthe condﬁﬁgion of, an
authorized use of PTO or compensatory time off. . £

Requests for a leave of absence should be submitted in writing to the General Manager
as far in advance of the anticipated leave date as possible. The leave request must be
dated, signed by the employee, and must state. the ‘reasons, ‘circumstances and
anticipated duration of the leave. S SRR

ed:leave prior:to considé’r’ing an employee’s request for an

any scheduled or unscheduled orior-tc
authorized leave without pay,linless allowed by law.. - -

An employee who:wishes.to main ﬁ:{'ény and all of his/her insurance benefits during an

unpéj’ﬂflkéave;;gf b.gefnce“"fax_do so by timely paying 100% of the premiums for the
desired. benefits for the period he/she is on leave of absence.

Failure top he premiums will result in termination of insurance coverage on the last
day of the month during which the payment is not made. The employee may be subject
to a waiting period for reinstatement of benefits upon return to work.

No employee will earn PTO while on an authorized leave without pay.

7000.6.3 Returning From an Authorized Leave Without Pay

When an employee is granted authorized leave under this Policy, the District will
generally attempt to return the employee to his or her same or comparable position after
the conclusion of the leave. However, there is no guarantee of reinstatement to the
same or comparable position following a leave of absence without pay.

Policy No. 7000.6 — Authorized Leave Without Pay Page 1 of 2



Upon returning from a leave of absence of thirty (30) calendar days or more, the
employee’s anniversary date for performance reviews will be advanced by the number
of days absent closest to the 1% or 16™ of the month. Example: If your performance
evaluation date was January 1% and you took a 35 day leave of absence, your next
performance evaluation date would be February 1% the following year.

An employee who fails to report promptly for work at the expiration of a leave of
absence will be considered to have voluntarily resigned.

Policy No. 7000.6 - Authorized Leave Without Pay Page 2 of 2



POLICY TTTLE:  Unauthorized Voluntary Absence 12722797
POLICY NUMBER: 2165

216510 Any employee’s unauthorized absence, i.e., absence
from his/her duty without leave authorized in accordance with the provisions of this M.0.U., for

five (5) or more consecutive working days shall constitute an automatic voluntary resignation by

C.C.W.D. POLICY HANDBOOX
Policy #2165 - "Unauthorized Voluntary Absence”



.POLICY TITLE; Hours of Work and Overtime 12/15/87
POLICY NUMBER: 2010

2010.10 This policy shall apply to all employess.

2010.20 The work week shall consist of seven (7) consecutive days from 12:01 o'clock
AM. Monday, through midnight Sunday. .

2010.30 Normal working hours are 7:30AM to 4:00EM for office personnel and 7:00

AM1t03:30 PM for O & M personnel, continuously, Monday through Friday, with two 15 minute rest
breaks and one 30 mimute lunch break ‘ .

2010.31 Flexible hours may be evaluated on a case by case basis provided there
are clear advantages to both the employee and the District and that they result in no reduction in

service. All work hour modifications require the written approval of the Department Head and the
General Manager. :

2010.32 Department Heads and field supervisors shall schedule lunch and rest

breaks to ensure that sufficient employees are available to sustain normal operations throughout normal
working hours. : ‘ ~ : .

201035 Field employees shall report 10 a field office or treatment planf to start

their work day. The field- supervisor has the option to change the reporting place to a job site if
required.

2010.40 Overtime

2010.41 Overtime is defined as one of the following:
a.) Time worked in excess of forty (40) hours in a work weel: ) ;
b.) Time worked in excess of eight (8) hours on a scheduled workday

ifa five (5) day, eight (8) hour per day workweek is in effect;
or,

¢.) Time worked in excess of ten (10) hours on a scheduled worlkday if
a four(4) day, ten (10) hour per day workweek is in effect; or,

d.) Time worked on a designated holiday.

e.) The 40 hour work week shall include authorized time off.

2016.42 Overtime Anthorization
All non-emergency overtime must be approved in advance by the Department Head or
General Manager, Emergency overtime may be authorized by leadmen, supervisors, or Department
Heads and reported to the Human Resources Officer at the next regular work day.

C.C.W.D. POLICY HANDRQOK
Policy #2010 - "Hours of Work and Overtime®

“u



2010.43 Compensation

Officers and Department Heads are not compensated for overtime. All other employees shall
be paid at the rate of time-and-one-half of their regular pay rate,

2016.44  Meals

emergencies, Leadmen shall asses the sitnation and determine the needs of the crew with Tegard to
scheduling meals,

2010.50 On-Call Status

2010.51 A schedule shall be maintained by the O & M Superintendent whereby
operating or maintenance employees shall be assigned, in rotation, to be on-cal] on a weekly basis to
perform emergency work during hours not part of their standard work weelc.

2010.52  When an employee is on-call, they may be provided a radio, pager, etc.
which will provide notfication in the event of an emergency work need. Said radio, pager, etc. shall be
kept in the on-call employee's possession during the entire on-call period of time. Notification of an

emergency work need may also be given orally, in person or by telephone, by any responsible
managing employee,

2010.53 When an employee is on-call, the employee may use their time as desired, but
must remain within Calaverag County and be no more than 15 mimrtes from a telephone: or on-call
vehicle,

2010.54  Employees shall be compensated for being on call at the on call rate of
$200.00 per weelc. :

2010.60 Timesheets

All employees shall complete time sheets op a daily basis, which must be signed by their
immediate supervisor and submitted weekly.

C.C.W.D, POLICY HANDBOOK
Policy #2010 - *Hours of Work and Overtime"



POLICY TITLE: Vacation 12/15/97 3
POLICY NUMBER: 2020 [

2020.10 This policy shall apply to fill-time and probationary employees in all
classifications, a ’

2020.20 Paid vacations shall be accrued according to the following schedule on an
annual basis:

1103 years of continuous service, ~ 6.67 hrs/mo (10 days/yr)
4 through 10 years of continious service, 10.00 hrs/mo (15 days/Ar)
After 10 years of continuous service, 13.33 hrs/mo (20 days/yr)
2020.30 Employees may take their vacation time all at once or in increments. Vacations

shall be taken at the fime or times authorized by the Department Head. Requests for vacations of five

(5) or more consecutive days must be made two (2) weeks in advance. Exceptions may be made at the
employer’s discretion. '

202040 Vacation time may be accurulated up to thirty (30) days for employees with o

fewer than ten years of service, and forty (40) days for employees with ten or more years of service.

2020.50 At termination of employment for any reéason, the District shall compensate the
employee for all vacation time earned but not vet taken or forfeited. ‘

2020.60 ‘The District will not fequire an employee to take vacation time in lieu of sick
leave or leave of absence during periods of illness. However, the employee may elect to take vacation
time in case of extended illness where sick leave has been fully nsed

2020.70 If a holiday falls on a workday during an employee's vacation period, that day
shall be considered as a paid holiday and not vacation fime.

2020.80 Any employee who does not provide the District with two weels' nofice pricr.
to resignation shall forfeit any vacation righis accrued under provisions of this section.

2020.90 Vacations are provided by the District to employees as a period of exemption
from work with pay for the purpose of rest, relaxation and recreation. This respite is a benefit and is
intended as an aid in maintaining the long-term and consistent productivity and contentment of the
employee. As such, pay in lien of vacation time away from work shall not be permitted.

C.C.W.D. POLICY HANDBOOK
Policy #2020 - "Vacation"



POLICY TITLE: Sick Leave
POLICY NUMBER: 2040
POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2015

2040.10 This policy shall apply to part-time and temporary employees only, as all
other employees of the District receive Paid Time Off (PTO) as agreed in current
Memorandum of Understandings/Agreements.

2210.20 Pursuant to California’s Paid Sick Leave law, effective July 1, 2015, the
Calaveras County Water District will provide each employee with 3 days or 24 hours of
"paid sick leave at the beginning of each 12-month period of employment.

The 12-month period under this policy for current part-time and temporary employees
will begin on July 1, 2015 and renew on that date in all subsequent years. The 12-
month period for new part-time and temporary employees hired after July 1, 2015 will
begin on their date of hire and renews on their anniversary date in subsequent years.

An employee is not eligible to begin using any accrued paid sick leave until the 90th day
of employment with the District.

2210.30 In accordance with California’s Paid Sick Leave law, an employee may
use 3 days or 24 hours of accrued paid sick leave in a 12-month period for one of the
following reasons:

o Forthe employee’s own diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health
condition or preventative care.

o Forthe diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition or
preventative care for an employee’s family member, including:

o Child (including a biological, adopted, or foster child, stepchild,
legal ward, or a child to whom the employee stands in loco
parentis.)

o Spouse or Registered Domestic Partner

o Parent (including biological, adoptive, or foster parent, stepparent,
or legal guardian of an employee or the employee’s spouse or
registered domestic partner, or a person who stood in loco parentis
when the employee was a minor child.)

o Grandparent
o Grandchild
o Sibling

o To obtain any relief or services related to being a victim of domestic
violence, sexual assault, or stalking including the following with
appropriate certification of the need for such services:

o A temporary restraining order or restraining order.

Adopted vis Resolution 2015-25 Pagelof2



o Other injunctive relief to help ensure the health, safety or welfare of
themselves or their children.

o To seek medical attention for injuries caused by domestic violence,
sexual assault, or stalking.

o To obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program, or
rape crisis center as a result of domestic violence, sexual assault,
or stalking.

o To obtain psychological counseling related to an experience of
domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.

o To participate in safety planning and take other actions to increase
safety from future domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
including temporary or permanent relocation.

2210.40 An employee shall provide reasonable advance notification of their need
to use accrued paid sick leave to their supervisor if the need for paid sick leave use is
foreseeable (e.g., doctor's appointment scheduled in advance). If the need for paid sick
leave use is unforeseeable, the employee shall provide notice of the need for the leave
to their supervisor as soon as is practicable.

2210.50 An employee who uses paid sick leave must do so with a minimum of one-
quarter-hour increments.

2210.60 Paid sick leave will not be considered hours worked for purposes of
overtime calculation. An employee will not receive compensation for unused accrued
paid sick leave upon termination, resignation, retirement or other separation from
employment from the District.

2210.70 If an employee separates from District employment and is re-hired by the
District within one year of the date of separation, previously accrued and unused paid
sick leave hours shall be reinstated to the extent required by law.

However, if a rehired employee had not yet worked the requisite 90 days of employment
to use paid sick leave at the time of separation, the employee must still satisfy the 90
days of employment requirement collectively over the periods of employment with the
District before any paid sick leave can be used.

Adopted vis Resolution 2015-25 Page2 of2



POLICY TITLE:  Jury/Witness Duty 12/15/97
POLICY NUMBIR: 2060 '

" 2060.10 "This policy shall apply to probationary, part-time and fill-time employees in all
classifications.

2060.20 An employee summoned for jury duty or subpoenaed as a witness will
immediately notify the CCWD main office of each scheduled work day that he/she will not be reporting
to work while serving as juror or witness. While performing jury/witness duty, he/she will be given a
paid leave of absence for the duration of said duty. Said paid leave of absence is conditional upon the
employee refurning to work upon dismissal each day to complete his/her remaining normal workday.

It is also conditional upon the employee's conveyance to the District of any compensation received as a
Juror or witness, not including any travel or meal allowance received. -

C.C.W.D, POLICY HANDBOOK
Policy #2060 - "Jury Duty™

——



POLICY TITLE: Authorized Leave 4/13/95
POLICY NUMBER: 2160 ‘

2160.10 The General Manager may grant a leave of absence without pay for up to 60

calendar days. The Board of Directors may grant a leaye of absence of greater length than 60 calendar
days but not to exceed 4 calendar months,

2160.11 A written request for an extension of leave to be granted by the
General Manager must be submitted no less than two weeks before the end of the original leave,

2160.20 A leave of absence may be taken in conjunction with, and at the conclusion of]
an authorized use of vacation, sick leave, or compensatory time off, '

2160.30 When an employee is on leave without pay there is no accrual of pay. Other
benefits shall be available only for those situations set forth in Policy 2070.30,

2160.31 An employee who wishes to mainitain any or all of his/her insurance

‘benefits may do so by paying the premiums for the desired benefits for the period he/she is on leave of

absence.

2160.32 An employee's prior service will be reinstated upon the employee's
return to his/her position following a leave of absence, and such prior service shall be added to ali
service thereafter,

2160.40 Ifan employee is disabled or otherwise ijured or unable to worlk, the period of
time that the employee is on disability and/or Tecelving benefits under the District's Workers' Compen-
sation program, shall be considered g period of authorized leave without pay.

2160.41 Employees that have accumulated excess sick leave may donate hours to an

injured or disabled employee’s account. Said sick leave days shall be considered equivalent to one day
of sick leave irrespective of rates of pay.

2160.50 When an employee is granted leave with or without pay, it is with the definite

understanding that, at the expiration of the leave, the employes will be returned to his or her same or

comparable position after the conclugion of the leave,

C.C.W.D. POLICY HANDBOOK
Policy #2160 - “Authorized Leave”



POLICY TITLE: Family Care, Medical and Other Leaves 12/98
POLICY NUMBER: 2310

2310.10 Calaveras County Water District provides (a) family care and medical leave for up
to twelve (12) wesks in a rolling 12-month period in accordance with the California Family Rights Act and
the federal Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993; (b) pregnancy disability leave for up to four months in
accordance with the California Fair Employment and Housing Act; (c) disability leave as required to
reasonably accommodate employees with a qualified disability under the Americans with Disabilities Act
("ADA”); and (d) disability leave as required for an employes with a work place injury,

2310.20 Family Care and Medical Leave

2310.21 Eligibility To be eligible for family care and medical leave, an employee
must (1) have worked for the District for at least twelve months prior to the date on which the leave is to
commence; and (2) have worked at leéast 1,250 hours in the twelve months preceding the leave.

. 231022  Uses of Family Care and Medical Leave “Family Care leave” may be
requested for (1) the birth or adoption of an employee’s child; (2) the- placement of a foster child with the
employee; (3) the sericus health condition of an employee’s-child, spouse, or parent; or (4) the employee’s

. own serious health condition. “Serious health condifion” is. one that requires either in-patient care in a
medical facility or continuing treatment or supervision by a health care provider.

2310.23 Substitution of Paid Leave for Family Care and Medical Leave
Employees are required to substitute accrued vacation, floater and CTO time for all family care and

~medical leaves that do not qualify for shori-term disability. Employees are only required to substitute sick * .

leave for medical leaves that do not qualify for short-term disability. -

employes may.take a maximum of 12 weeks of family care and medical leave in a rolling 12-month period.

o The 12-month period commences on the first day on which the first family care or medical leave is taken.
Spouses who are both employed by the District may take a maximum combined total of 12 weeks of
family care leave in a rolling12-month period for the birth, adoption, or foster care of their child.

Q;O\\ ;J\'Q%\” 2310.24 Amount of Leave Provided all the conditions of this policy are met, an
P
8

131025 The substitution of paid leave for family care or medical leave does not
extend the total duration of family care and.medical leave to which an employee is entitled to beyond 12
weeks in.a rolling12-month period. For example, if an employee has accrued four weeks of umused paid
vacation time at the time of the request for family care or medical leave, that paid vacation time will be

substituted for the first four weeks of family care or medical leave, leaving up to eight additional weeks of
unpaid leave,

2310.26 Family care leave taken for the birth, adoptior, or foster care placement of
a child must begin within one year of the birth, adoption, or placement and may not be taken intermittently
or on a reduced schedule without the District’s permission. Family care or medical leave for the
employee’s own serious health condition, or for the serious health condition of the employee’s spouse,
parent or child, may be taken intermittently or on a reduced schedule where demonstrated to be medically
necessary. If'leave is taken intermittently or on a reduced schedule, the District retains the discretion to

transfer the employee temporarily to an alternative position with equivalent pay and benefits which better
accommodates the employee’s leave schedule.

C.C.W.D. PCLICY HANDBGOK
Policy #2310 - Family Care, Medical and Other Leaves®

=

2
-4



2310.27 Leaves Effect on Pay Except to the extent that other paid leave js
substituted for family care or medical leave, family care leave is unpaid. )

2310.28 Leaves Effect on Benefits During an employee’s family care or medical
leave, the District shall continue to pay for the employee’s participation in the District’s group health
plans, dental vision, retiremen plans, ife insurance angd disability benefit plans, to the same extent and
under the same terms and condition as would apply had the employee not taken the leave. The
employee’s Cafeteria Plag distribution for the month will be determined based on the actual hourg paid
during the payroll month, If'the actual benefit hours paid is less than 138.66, which is 80% of 173.33, then
Cafeteria Money will be prorated based on benefit hours paid. Under no circumstances will the District
provide the employee with less than the minimum necessary to pay for the District’s group health plan if
the employee is a participant in the health plan. If an employee participates in a Flexible Spending
Account the District will continue to withhold the amount on a pre-tax basis if the employee is on a paid
leave. Ifthe employee has exhansted all of their leave banks and are op an unpaid leave, they must efther
pre-pay the amount or pay the District monthly for the amount. Fthe employes elects to pay the District
directly while on a family care or medical leave, the amount paid will be applied on an after-tax basis,

2310.29 If the employee fails to return from the leave for a reason other than the
recurrent or continuation of the health condition that brought about the leave or other circumstances
beyond the employee’s control, the employes agrees to reimburse the District for any health premium paid
by the District on the employee’s behalf during any unpaid periods of the leave. The employee also agrees
to reimburse the District for such health premiums paid during the employee’s unpaid leave if, upon the
employee’s return, the employee requests and jg granted a reduced work schedule for which such benefits
would not be paid by the District. :

2310.30 Employees on family care and medical . leave will ACCTue” employment
benefits “such as sick leave, vacation bepefits and holiday provided they are paid 80% of the-hours for the
month and only if the employee would otherwise be entitled to such accrual. - Employees will accrme
service credit only when paid leave is being substituted for unpaid leave, '

but are not emergencies, the employee must notify the District, in Writing, as.soon as he/she learns of the
need for the leave, ordinarily no later than 2 to 3 working days after the employee learns of the need for
the leave. If the leave ig requested in connection with a planned, non-emergency medical freatment, the
employes may be asked tg reschedule the treatment so as o minimize disruption of the District operations,

©. 231032 If an employee fails to provide the requisite 30-day advance notice for
foreseeable events without any reasonable excuse for the delay, the District reserves the right to deny the

taking of the leave until at least 30 days after the date the employes provides notice of the need for family.
care or medical leave,

2310.33 All requests for family care or medica] leave should include the anticipated
date(s) and duration of the leave. Any requests for extensions of g family care or medical leave must be
received at the District offices at least five working days before the date on which the employes was

originally scheduled to refury to work and must include the revised anticipated date(s) and duration of the
family care or medical eave '

25103 Medical Certification Any request for medical leave for an employee’s
C.C.W.D. POLICY HANDBOOK
Policy #2210 - Family Care, Medical and Other Laaves™



own serious health condition or for family care leave to care for a child, Spouse, or parent with a serious
health condition must be supported by medical certification from a health care provider. The employes.
must provide the required medical certification within. 15 calendar days after the District’s request fo
certification, unless it is not practicable under the circumstances to do so. Failure to provide the required
medical certification may result in the denial of foreseeable leaves until such certification is provided. In
the case of unforeseeable leaves, failure to provide the- required medical certification within 15 days of
being asked to do- so may result in a denial of the employee’s continued leave, Any request for an
extension of the leave also must be supported by an updated medical certification.

o 231035 Leaves Effect on Reinstatement Employees retumning from family care

or medical leave are entitled to reinstatement to the same or comparable position consistent with
applicable law. The District retains the right to deny reinstatement to employees who are among the
highest paid ten percent (10%) of the District’s employees and whose reinstatement would canse
substantial and grievous economic injury to the District’s operations.

oo 231640 . - . . Pregmancy-Related Disability Any employes who is disabled on account of
pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions may take 2 pregnancy-related disability leave for the
period of actual disability, up to four morths, in addition to any family care or medical leave to which the
employee may be entitled under Section 2310.20 above,

E 2310.41 An emplbyee taking pregnancy-related disability leave may substitute
accrued paid sick leave and or accrued paid vacation for all or 2 portion of the leave. The substitution of

paid leave for pregnancy-related disability leave does not extend the total duration of the leave to which an
employee is entitled. :

2310.42 The provision of the District’s Family Care and Medical Ieave policy |
‘regarding the leave’s effect on pay (Section 2310.27) , notice requirement (Section 2310.31), medical -
certification requirements (Section 2310.34); and reinstaternent (Section 2310.35) also apply to all - |
pregnancy-related. disability leaves. For the purpose of applying those provisions, an employee’s
pregnancy-related disability is treated similarly to a serious health condition,

231050  Other Disabiiity Leaves In addition to medical leaves described above, an
employee may request a temporary disability leave of absence if necessary for a work place injury or to

. easonably accommodate an ADA-qualified disability. Any disability leave under this section will begin
+ after the employee has exhausted any medical leave to which the employee is entitled under Section
12310.20 (Family Care and Medical Leave) of this policy.

2310.51 Employees taking disability leave must comply with the Family Care and
Medical Leave provisions regarding substitution of paid leaves (Section 2310.23) and medical certification
(Section 2310.34). For the purpose of applying these provisions, a disability will be considered to be a
serious health condition.

2310.52 During a disability leave under this section, employees are not entitled to
any continued employer contributions towards any employee benefit plan. An employee, however, may

elect to continue participating in such benefit plans, at the employee’s own expense, to the extent
- permitted by such plans. .

C.C.W.D. POLICY HANDBOOK
Policy #2310 - Family Care, Medical and Other Laaves"



DATE: November 8, 2017

TO: Dave Eggerton, General Managerﬁw
FROM: Peter Martin, Manager of Water Resources
SUBJECT: Approval of the Amended and Restated Eastside Eastern San Joaquin

Groundwater Sustainability Agency MOU Allowing Calaveras County to
Enter as a Member Agency

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Motion: / adopt Resolution No. 2017- providing the
General Manager authorization to sign the Amended and Restated Memorandum of
Understanding allowing Calaveras County to join the “Eastside San Joaquin
Groundwater Sustainability Agency.”

SUMMARY:

An existing Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between CCWD, Rock Creek Water
District, and Stanislaus County established the Eastside Groundwater Sustainability
Agency (GSA), which was formally recognized as the “exclusive” GSA for the
jurisdictions of the respective agencies in August, 2017. Calaveras County has always
expressed interest in joining the Eastside GSA, but was unable to schedule the
necessary hearings and other considerations to meet the timelines required for the
state-mandated June 30, 2017 filing deadline under the 2014 Sustainable Groundwater
Management Act. Calaveras County staff sent a letter (attached) to the California
Department of Water Resources acknowledging that they would join the Eastside GSA
via the MOU at a later date, and did not intend to create an “overlap” filing that
conflicted with the Eastside GSA boundaries.

CCWD Counsel drafted the attached “Amended and Restated MOU” that is the vessel
to allow Calaveras County to join the Eastside GSA. The amended MOU does two
things: (1) allows for the inclusion of the County of Calaveras; and (2) changes the
voting requirements to majority for all actions (Section 6.b). Calaveras County
approved the Amended and Restated MOU at their October 10, 2017 Board of
Supervisors meeting. Rock Creek Water District and Stanislaus County will need to take
similar action through their respective Boards before the Amended and Restated MOU
becomes effective.



Staff is recommending that the CCWD Board adopt the resolution authorizing the
General Manager to sign the Amended and Restated MOU allowing Calaveras County
to join the Eastside GSA.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

There are no additional financial considerations for entering into this agreement to
execute the ministerial actions of allowing Calaveras County to enter the MOU and join
the Eastside GSA.

Attachments:

e May 31, 2017 Letter from Calaveras County to California Department of Water Resources

e Amended and Restated Memorandum of Understanding for Implementation of SGMA: Eastside GSA (redline version)
e  Resolution No. 2017- providing the General Manager Authorization to execute MOU
o

Amended and Restated Memorandum of Understanding for Implementation of SGMA: Eastside GSA (clean version)

212



County of Calaveras

County Administrative Office

Timothy Lutzo County Administrative Officer
891 Mountain Ranch Road © San Andreas, CA 95249
209.754.6025 O FAX 209.754.6316

May 31, 2017

Mark Nordberg, GSA Project Manager
Sustainable Groundwater Management Program
California Department of Water Resources

901 P Street, Room 213-B

P.O. Box 942836

Sacramento, CA 94236

Subject: Calaveras County Declaration of Intention to become a Groundwater
Sustainability Agency (GSA)

On May 23, 2017, the Calaveras County Board of Supervisors (Board) held a public
hearing pursuant to Section 10723 (b) of the Water Code declaring their intention to
become a GSA under the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA). The
GSA would currently include approximately 70 square miles of the Eastern San Joaquin
Groundwater Sub-basin that reaches into Calaveras County (see Exhibit A). However, it
is the intent of the Board to have the County ultimately join the multi-agency Eastside
GSA through amended MOU or JPA. The Eastside San Juaquin Groundwater
Sustainability Agency packet as submitted by the Calaveras County Water District is
enclosed for your information.

Resolution 20170523r100 as voted on by the Board and passed unanimously during the
May 23, 2017 meeting is attached under (Exhibit B). As required pursuant to Section
6066 of the Government Code, publication of the intent to become a GSA was
published in the County’s contracted newspaper of record (see Exhibit C).

This correspondence serves as the Notice of Intent (NOI) to become a GSA as required
under Section 10723.8 of the Water Code.

Should you have any questions, do not hesitate to contact me at (209) 754-6036.

Brian S. Moss

Assistant County Administrative Officer

Administration & Human Resources © Risk Management © Information Technologies © Capital Improvement
Projects @ Purchasing O Worker's Compensation
O Airport O Archives/Museum © Public Access Television



EXHIBIT A

Eastern San Joaquin Groundwater Sub-basin




= 0s

.:‘",""q.v
L R}

Flayr Dempaa b
Crelzaricmee -arkd
Hi% ® Lpeeny




EXHIBIT B

Calaveras County Board of Supervisors
Resolution No. 20170523r100




BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF CALAVERAS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA
May 23, 2017

Resolution A RESOLUTION OF THE CALAVERAS COUNTY BOARD OF
No. 20170523r100 SUPERVISORS DECLARING INTENTION TO BECOME A

GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY UNDER THE

SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT
(SGMA) |

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2014, Governor Jerry Brown signed into law Senate Bills 1168
and 1319 and Assembly Bill 1739, known collectively as the Sustainable Groundwater
Management Act of 2014 (SGMA); and

WHEREAS, the SGMA went into effect on January 1,2015; and

WHEREAS, the SGMA requires all high and medium priority groundwater basins, as
designated by the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) Bulletin 118, to be
managed by a Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) or group of GSAs; and

WHEREAS, the Eastern San Joaquin Groundwater Sub-basin (Basin) has been designated
by DWR as a high priority basin; and

WHEREAS, the SGMA authorizes specific local agencies overlying the Basin to elect to
become a GSA within the Basin; and

WHEREAS, Calaveras County is a bcal agency as defined under the SGMA that overlies
the Basin and is therefore eligible to serve as a GSA within the Basin; and

WHEREAS, Water Code Section 10723.2 requires that a GSA consider the interests of all
beneficial uses and users of groundwater, as well as those responsible for implementing
groundwater sustainability plans; and

WHEREAS, Water Code section 10723.8 requires that a local agency electing to be a GSA to
notify the DWR of its election and intention to undertake sustainable groundwater management
within a basin; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Calaveras wish to exercise the powers
and authorities of a GSA granted by SGMA.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE [T RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors hereby elects to have
the County become a GSAforthose portions ofthe Basin lying withinthe District's boundaries.

BE T FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors intend the County to join the
muttragency GSA (Eastside San Joaquin Groundwater Sustainability Agency) through either
an amended Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) or Joint Powers Authority (JPA).

BE [T FURTHER RESOLVED that Calaveras County and other signatories to either the
amended MOU or JPA will develop an outreach program to include all stakeholders to
ensure that all beneficial uses and users of groundwater are considered.

BEIT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors authorize the County Administrative




Officer tosign future correspondence requesting that Calaveras County be added to an
amended MOU or JPA.

AYES: * . Tofarielli, Garamendi, Oliveira, Mills, Clapp

9

Supervisor 512312077

ATTEST

.
512312017




EXHIBIT C
Notice of Public Hearing

Proof of Publication




RISV N et e L [

v .

oo
Bopyd? s, rcgu(ar{y nchedu!ed meael
bcgmnlng at'9:00 am, 81891. Mcun
++$an AndfaawCA 24,9:‘

PROGF OF PUBLIGATION

Thisispaceris f”qr'{ﬁézf('}o‘umy ClerksAlling Stamp »

;- Gounty-of Calayer

allin the ygar2@17

.-.Dated at Valley ‘Springs: Gl

this _/97

Sigrature J

STATE:OF CALIFORNIA-

i Lertify {or declare) upder penaity of| perjury fhatthe

forégoing'igitrile 4nd correct,

' day of. . 2017

T HE 2}’,?55235 NE




PUBLIC NOTICE
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The Calavaras Counly Board of Supervisors Wil be
ing & I Mot

ot g ths Counly's
Infontion to b a Groundwal ity
Aganty {GSA) under the Suslainable Groundwater
Managamant Act {SGMA). This witl ba-heard et tho
Board'sregularly schadulod maating on May 23, 2017
beginning al 8100 a.m, al 831 Mowunlaln Rench Road,
SenAndroas, GA 95240,

Publishud: May 10 & 17, 2017 VSN




FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF THE
SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT
IN THE EASTERN SAN JOAQUIN GROUNDWATER BASIN
BY SUPPORTING FORMATION OF THE
EASTSIDE SAN JOAQUIN GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (the “MOU”) between_the County of
Calaveras (“Calaveras™), the County of Stanislaus (“Stanislaus), Rock Creek Water District
(“Rock Creek”), and Calaveras County Water District (“CCWD?”), each of which is referred to as
a “Party” and collectively “Parties,” is made and effective as of the last date on which all of the
Parties listed below have executed this MOU.

Recitals:

A. The State of California has enacted the Sustainable Groundwater Management
Act (contained in SB 1168, AB 1739 and SB 1319), referred to in this MOU as the “Act,”
pursuant to which certain local agencies and parties to a memorandum of understanding or other
legal agreement may become “groundwater sustainability agencies” and adopt “groundwater
sustainability plans” in order to manage and regulate groundwater in underlying groundwater
basins, as identified and defined in California Department of Water Resources Bulletin 118. The
Parties are local agencies qualified to become a groundwater sustainability agency and adopt a
groundwater sustainability plan under the Act.

B. Multiple local agencies overlying a single groundwater basin or subbasin may
adopt individual groundwater sustainability plans if those plans are coordinated, or may join
together to adopt a single plan. The Parties all overlie portions of the Eastern San Joaquin
Subbasin as defined by the California Department of Water Resources (the “Basin’) and wish to
participate in the implementation of the Act within the Basin or specific portions thereof. As a
result, coordination and cooperation between the Parties is necessary in order to determine their
respective roles and the manner in which they will implement the Act. In addition, other agencies
that are qualified to become groundwater sustainability agencies overlie the Basin and have
expressed interest in implementation of the Act in the Basin, and the Parties acknowledge the
importance of involving those other agencies in the management of groundwater resources in the
Basin under the Act. The Parties desire to by this agreement create the Eastside San Joaquin
Groundwater Sustainability Agency ("GSA").

C. The Parties wish to establish an agreement and framework for cooperative efforts
relative to formation of a GSA in order to implement the Act in the Basin to help ensure that the
Act is implemented in the Basin effectively, efficiently, fairly, and at the lowest reasonable cost.

£:D. _This MOU is filed for the sole purpose of incorporating the County of Calaveras
into the existing governance structure of the GSA: the boundaries of the GSA will not be altered
in any way. The Parties thus find this MOU and its provisions constitute an immaterial change
to the GSA’s initial April 17. 2017 MOU.

[ERIREINY



THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth below and to implement
the goals described above, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

I. Purposes of MOU. The purposes of this MOU are to (i) facilitate a cooperative
and ongoing working relationship among the Parties and other stakeholders and water users to
establish a GSA in order to develop and implement mutually beneficial approaches and strategies
for implementing the Act in the Basin; and (ii) facilitate contacts with other agencies, both
current and prospective, overlying the Basin so that they can coordinate with the GSA to
implement a GSP and to satisfy the requirements of the Act.

2. Intent to Form GSA; Implementation of the GSP. This MOU is to express the
intent of the Parties to jointly file as a multiagency GSA for the area located in the Eastern San
Joaquin subbasin and under the jurisdiction of the Parties. The Parties shall regularly confer with
regard to those efforts.

3. Outreach to Other Agencies. In recognition of the importance of involving all
interested agencies in the Basin that are or will be involved in efforts to establish the GSA and
the GSP in the management of the Basin in coordination with other agencies in the Basin, as an
initial activity under this MOU, the Parties shall develop and implement an outreach plan
pursuant to which the Parties will contact other agencies within or near their respective
boundaries that may become groundwater sustainability agencies and adopt groundwater
sustainability plans under the Act, to invite their participation in activities undertaken in
connection herewith.

4. Initial Administrative Costs. Each Party shall bear all costs it incurs with respect
to its activities under this MOU, including without limitation, costs relative to the formation of
the GSA and activities in which that Party wishes to participate.

5. Financing. The Parties will develop a coordinated financing plan and cost share
agreement for GSA activities that will include, without limitation, seeking bond funding, state
loan funds, and imposing appropriate fees and assessments.

6. Actions of the GSA. The Parties intend to support and advocate for the GSA,
which would have, among others set forth in the Act, the following authorities and obligations:

a) The GSA would adopt actions for the purpose of regulating, conserving,
managing, and controlling the use and extraction of groundwater within the territory of the GSA.

b) An action adopted by the GSA would become effective on the last date on
which a majority al-of the respective boards of all-the Parties have approved of the action.

c) All actions would be adopted at noticed public hearings by the Parties’
respective boards.

d) Calaveras County Water District would be designated as the contracting
agent for the GSA and would have the authority to contract as necessary to accomplish the
purposes of the GSA, subject to approval by the Parties.

N o= )



e) The GSA would have the authority to enter into a coordination agreement
with other local agencies for purposes of coordinating the GSA’s plan with other agencies or
groundwater sustainability plans within the basin.

7. Savings Provisions. This MOU shall not operate to validate or invalidate, modify
or affect any Party’s water rights or any Party’s obligations under any agreement, contract or
memorandum of understanding/agreement entered into prior to the effective date of this MOU.
Nothing in this MOU shall operate to convey any new right to groundwater to either Party. Each
Party to this MOU reserves any and all claims and causes of action respecting its water rights
and/or any agreement, contract or memorandum of understanding/agreement; any and all
defenses against any water rights claims or claims under any agreement, contract or
memorandum of understanding/agreement. Further, nothing in this MOU is intended to interfere
with any county’s exercise of its land-use authority under its police power or to interfere with the
operation of any county’s existing groundwater ordinance, as of the date of this MOU.

8. Authority. Each signatory of this MOU represents that s/he is authorized to
execute this MOU on behalf of the Party for which s/he signs. Each Party represents that it has
legal authority to enter into this MOU and to perform all obligations under this MOU.

9. Amendment. This MOU may be amended or modified only by a written
instrument executed by each of the Parties to this MOU.

10.  Jurisdiction. This MOU shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws of the State of California, except for its conflicts of law rules.

11. Headings. The paragraph headings used in this MOU are intended for
convenience only and shall not be used in interpreting this MOU or in determining any of the
rights or obligations of the Parties to this MOU.

12. Construction and Interpretation. This MOU has been arrived at through
negotiations and each Party has had a full and fair opportunity to revise the terms of this MOU.
As a result, the normal rule of construction that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the
drafting Party shall not apply in the construction or interpretation of this MOU.

13. Entire Agreement. This MOU constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties
with respect to the subject matter of this MOU and supersedes any prior oral or written
agreement, understanding, or representation relating to the subject matter of this MOU.

14. Partial Invalidity. If, after the date of execution of this MOU, any provision of
this MOU is held to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable under present or future laws effective
during the term of this MOU, such provision shall be fully severable. However, in lieu thereof,
there shall be added a provision as similar in terms to such illegal, invalid or unenforceable
provision as may be possible and be legal, valid and enforceable.

15. Successors and Assigns. This MOU shall be binding on and inure to the benefit
of the successors and assigns of the respective Parties to this MOU. No Party may assign its
Interests in or obligations under this MOU without the written consent of the other Parties, which
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

+H4557622



16.  Waivers. Waiver of any breach or default hereunder shall not constitute a
continuing waiver or a waiver of any subsequent breach either of the same or of another
provision of this MOU and forbearance to enforce one or more of the remedies provided in this
MOU shall not be deemed to be a waiver of that remedy.

17.  Attorneys’ Fees and Costs. The prevailing Party in any litigation or other action
to enforce or interpret this MOU shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees, expert witnesses’
fees, costs of suit, and other and necessary disbursements in addition to any other relief deemed
appropriate by a court of competent jurisdiction.

18.  Necessary Actions. Each Party agrees to execute and deliver additional
documents and instruments and to take any additional actions as may be reasonably required to
carry out the purposes of this MOU.

19. Compliance with Law. In performing their respective obligations under this
MOU, the Parties shall comply with and conform to all applicable laws, rules, regulations and
ordinances.

20.  Third Party Beneficiaries. This MOU shall not create any right or interest in
any non-Party or in any member of the public as a third party beneficiary.

21. Counterparts. This MOU may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall constitute but one and the
same instrument.

22.  Notices. All notices, requests, demands or other communications required or
permitted under this MOU shall be in writing unless provided otherwise in this MOU and shall
be deemed to have been duly given and received on: (i) the date of service if served personally or
served by electronic mail or facsimile transmission on the Party to whom notice is to be given at
the address(es) provided below, (ii) on the first day after mailing, if mailed by Federal Express,
U.S. Express Mail, or other similar overnight courier service, postage prepaid, and addressed as
provided below, or (iii) on the third day after mailing if mailed to the Party to whom notice is to
be given by first class mail, registered or certified, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

County of Stanislaus
Attn: Manager

1010 10th Street
Modesto, CA 95354

Rock Creek Water District
Attn: General Manager
9601 East Highway 4
Farmington, CA 95230

County of Calaveras
Attn: Manager
891 Mountain Ranch Road




San Andreas. CA 95249Attn-Manager
Y.

N

FAVATAY

Calaveras County Water District
Attn: General Manager

P.O. Box 608

San Andreas, CA 95249

County of Stanislaus

By

Title

County of Calaveras

By

Title

Rock Creek Water District

By

Title

Calaveras County Water District

By

Title

14557622



RESOLUTION NO. 2017 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

APPROVING THE AMENDED AND RESTATED MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING FOR THE EASTSIDE EASTERN SAN JOAQUIN
GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2014, Governor Jerry Brown signed into law Senate Bills
1168 and 1319, and Assembly Bill 1739, known collectively as the Sustainable
Groundwater Management Act (SGMA); and

WHEREAS, SGMA went into effect on January 1, 2015; and

WHEREAS, SGMA requires all high and medium priority groundwater basins, as
designated by the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) Bulletin 118, to be
managed by a Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA); and

WHEREAS, the Calaveras County Water District (District) is a local agency as defined
under the SGMA and is therefore eligible to serve as a GSA within the Basin; and

WHEREAS, the District held a public hearing on December 14, 2016 after publication of
notice pursuant to Government Code section 6066 to elect to become a GSA and
manage groundwater in the Eastern San Joaquin subbasin pursuant to SGMA; and

WHEREAS, via a Memorandum of Understanding the District, Rock Creek Water
District, and Stanislaus County formed the “Eastside San Joaquin Groundwater
Sustainability Agency” (Eastside GSA) for the areas of the Eastern San Joaquin
subbasin located within Calaveras and Stanislaus Counties not already covered by
another GSA; and

WHEREAS, the Eastside GSA was formally recognized as the exclusive GSA for these
areas by the State of California and DWR; and

WHEREAS, the Calaveras County Board of Supervisors subsequently held a public
hearing to become a GSA and join the Eastside GSA; and

WHEREAS, the agencies of the Eastside GSA wish to amend the Memorandum of
Understanding governing the Eastside GSA to allow Calaveras County to enter as a

signatory to the Memorandum of Understanding and thus a member of the Eastside
GSA.

1of2



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Calaveras
County Water District authorize the General Manager to enter into the Amended and
Restated Memorandum of Understanding for the Eastside GSA, attached hereto and
made a part hereof, and to submit a letter to the DWR on behalf of the District and
signatories to the MOU that Calaveras County is now a member of the Eastside GSA.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 8th day of November, 2017 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:
CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Jeff Davidson, President
Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Mona Walker

Clerk to the Board

20f2



FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF THE
SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT
IN THE EASTERN SAN JOAQUIN GROUNDWATER BASIN
BY SUPPORTING FORMATION OF THE
EASTSIDE SAN JOAQUIN GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (the “MOU”) between the County of
Calaveras (“Calaveras™), the County of Stanislaus (“Stanislaus™), Rock Creek Water District
(“Rock Creek™), and Calaveras County Water District (‘CCWD?), each of which is referred to as
a “Party” and collectively “Parties,” is made and effective as of the last date on which all of the
Parties listed below have executed this MOU.

Recitals:

A. The State of California has enacted the Sustainable Groundwater Management
Act (contained in SB 1168, AB 1739 and SB 1319), referred to in this MOU as the “Act,”
pursuant to which certain local agencies and parties to a memorandum of understanding or other
legal agreement may become “groundwater sustainability agencies” and adopt “eroundwater
sustainability plans” in order to manage and regulate groundwater in underlying groundwater
basins, as identified and defined in California Department of Water Resources Bulletin 118. The
Parties are local agencies qualified to become a groundwater sustainability agency and adopt a
groundwater sustainability plan under the Act.

B. Multiple local agencies overlying a single groundwater basin or subbasin may
adopt individual groundwater sustainability plans if those plans are coordinated, or may join
together to adopt a single plan. The Parties all overlie portions of the Eastern San Joaquin
Subbasin as defined by the California Department of Water Resources (the “Basin™) and wish to
participate in the implementation of the Act within the Basin or specific portions thereof. Asa
result, coordination and cooperation between the Parties is necessary in order to determine their
respective roles and the manner in which they will implement the Act. In addition, other agencies
that are qualified to become groundwater sustainability agencies overlie the Basin and have
expressed interest in implementation of the Act in the Basin, and the Parties acknowledge the
importance of involving those other agencies in the management of groundwater resources in the
Basin under the Act. The Parties desire to by this agreement create the Eastside San Joaquin
Groundwater Sustainability Agency ("GSA").

C. The Parties wish to establish an agreement and framework for cooperative efforts
relative to formation of a GSA in order to implement the Act in the Basin to help ensure that the
Act is implemented in the Basin effectively, efficiently, fairly, and at the lowest reasonable cost.

D. This MOU is filed for the sole purpose of incorporating the County of Calaveras
into the existing governance structure of the GSA; the boundaries of the GSA will not be altered
in any way. The Parties thus find this MOU and its provisions constitute an immaterial change
to the GSA’s initial April 17, 2017 MOU.

14911424



THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth below and to implement
the goals described above, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Purposes of MOU. The purposes of this MOU are to (i) facilitate a cooperative
and ongoing working relationship among the Parties and other stakeholders and water users to
establish a GSA in order to develop and implement mutually beneficial approaches and strategies
for implementing the Act in the Basin; and (ii) facilitate contacts with other agencies, both
current and prospective, overlying the Basin so that they can coordinate with the GSA to
implement a GSP and to satisfy the requirements of the Act.

2. Intent to Form GSA; Implementation of the GSP. This MOU is to express the
intent of the Parties to jointly file as a multiagency GSA for the area located in the Eastern San
Joaquin subbasin and under the jurisdiction of the Parties. The Parties shall regularly confer with
regard to those efforts.

3. Outreach to Other Agencies. In recognition of the importance of involving all
interested agencies in the Basin that are or will be involved in efforts to establish the GSA and
the GSP in the management of the Basin in coordination with other agencies in the Basin, as an
initial activity under this MOU, the Parties shall develop and implement an outreach plan
pursuant to which the Parties will contact other agencies within or near their respective
boundaries that may become groundwater sustainability agencies and adopt groundwater
sustainability plans under the Act, to invite their participation in activities undertaken in
connection herewith.

4. Initial Administrative Costs. Each Party shall bear all costs it incurs with respect
to its activities under this MOU, including without limitation, costs relative to the formation of
the GSA and activities in which that Party wishes to participate.

5. Financing. The Parties will develop a coordinated financing plan and cost share
agreement for GSA activities that will include, without limitation, seeking bond funding, state
loan funds, and imposing appropriate fees and assessments.

6. Actions of the GSA. The Parties intend to support and advocate for the GSA,
which would have, among others set forth in the Act, the following authorities and obligations:

a) The GSA would adopt actions for the purpose of regulating, conserving,
managing, and controlling the use and extraction of groundwater within the territory of the GSA.

b) An action adopted by the GSA would become effective on the last date on
which a majority of the respective boards of the Parties have approved of the action.

c) All actions would be adopted at noticed public hearings by the Parties’
respective boards.

d) Calaveras County Water District would be designated as the contracting
agent for the GSA and would have the authority to contract as necessary to accomplish the
purposes of the GSA, subject to approval by the Parties.

1491142.4



e) The GSA would have the authority to enter into a coordination agreement
with other local agencies for purposes of coordinating the GSA’s plan with other agencies or
groundwater sustainability plans within the basin.

7. Savings Provisions. This MOU shall not operate to validate or invalidate, modify
or affect any Party’s water rights or any Party’s obligations under any agreement, contract or
memorandum of understanding/agreement entered into prior to the effective date of this MOU.
Nothing in this MOU shall operate to convey any new right to groundwater to either Party. Each
Party to this MOU reserves any and all claims and causes of action respecting its water rights
and/or any agreement, contract or memorandum of understanding/agreement; any and all
defenses against any water rights claims or claims under any agreement, contract or
memorandum of understanding/agreement. Further, nothing in this MOU is intended to interfere
with any county’s exercise of its land-use authority under its police power or to interfere with the
operation of any county’s existing groundwater ordinance, as of the date of this MOU.

8. Authority. Each signatory of this MOU represents that s/he is authorized to
execute this MOU on behalf of the Party for which s/he signs. Each Party represents that it has
legal authority to enter into this MOU and to perform all obligations under this MOU.

9. Amendment. This MOU may be amended or modified only by a written
instrument executed by each of the Parties to this MOU.

10.  Jurisdiction. This MOU shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws of the State of California, except for its conflicts of law rules.

11.  Headings. The paragraph headings used in this MOU are intended for
convenience only and shall not be used in interpreting this MOU or in determining any of the
rights or obligations of the Parties to this MOU.

12. Construction and Interpretation. This MOU has been arrived at through
negotiations and each Party has had a full and fair opportunity to revise the terms of this MOU.
As a result, the normal rule of construction that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the
drafting Party shall not apply in the construction or interpretation of this MOU.

13. Entire Agreement. This MOU constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties
with respect to the subject matter of this MOU and supersedes any prior oral or written
agreement, understanding, or representation relating to the subject matter of this MOU.

14.  Partial Invalidity. If, after the date of execution of this MOU, any provision of
this MOU is held to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable under present or future laws effective
during the term of this MOU, such provision shall be fully severable. However, in lieu thereof,
there shall be added a provision as similar in terms to such illegal, invalid or unenforceable
provision as may be possible and be legal, valid and enforceable.

15. Successors and Assigns. This MOU shall be binding on and inure to the benefit
of the successors and assigns of the respective Parties to this MOU. No Party may assign its
interests in or obligations under this MOU without the written consent of the other Parties, which
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

1491142.1



16. Waivers. Waiver of any breach or default hereunder shall not constitute a
continuing waiver or a waiver of any subsequent breach either of the same or of another
provision of this MOU and forbearance to enforce one or more of the remedies provided in this
MOU shall not be deemed to be a waiver of that remedy.

17.  Attorneys’ Fees and Costs. The prevailing Party in any litigation or other action
to enforce or interpret this MOU shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys® fees, expert witnesses’
fees, costs of suit, and other and necessary disbursements in addition to any other relief deemed
appropriate by a court of competent jurisdiction. '

18.  Necessary Actions. Each Party agrees to execute and deliver additional
documents and instruments and to take any additional actions as may be reasonably required to
carry out the purposes of this MOU.

19.  Compliance with Law. In performing their respective obligations under this
MOU, the Parties shall comply with and conform to all applicable laws, rules, regulations and
ordinances.

20.  Third Party Beneficiaries. This MOU shall not create any right or interest in
any non-Party or in any member of the public as a third party beneficiary.

21. Counterparts. This MOU may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall constitute but one and the
same instrument.

22. Notices. All notices, requests, demands or other communications required or
permitted under this MOU shall be in writing unless provided otherwise in this MOU and shall
be deemed to have been duly given and received on: (i) the date of service if served personally or
served by electronic mail or facsimile transmission on the Party to whom notice is to be given at
the address(es) provided below, (ii) on the first day after mailing, if mailed by Federal Express,
U.S. Express Mail, or other similar overnight courier service, postage prepaid, and addressed as
provided below, or (iii) on the third day after mailing if mailed to the Party to whom notice is to
be given by first class mail, registered or certified, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

County of Stanislaus
Attn: Manager

1010 10th Street
Modesto, CA 95354

Rock Creek Water District
Attn: General Manager
9601 East Highway 4
Farmington, CA 95230

County of Calaveras

Attn: Manager

891 Mountain Ranch Road
San Andreas, CA 95249

1491142.1



Calaveras County Water District
Attn: General Manager

P.O. Box 608

San Andreas, CA 95249

County of Stanislaus

By

Title

County of Calaveras

By

Title

Rock Creek Water District

By

Title

Calaveras County Water District

By

Title

1491142.1



DATE: November 8, 2017
TO: Dave Eggerton, General Manager /%/
FROM: Teresa Tanaka, Director of Operations

SUBJECT: Update on Winter Storm Disasters — FEMA Reimbursement Projects

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

For information only.

SUMMARY:

In early 2017, there were three (3) major storms that Governor Brown declared to be
Severe Winter Storm Disasters. Governor Brown requested and obtained federal
assistance for infrastructure damage caused by the storms, FEMA-4301-DR-CA,
FEMA-4305-DR-CA and FEMA-4308-DR-CA, (January 3-12, January 18-23, and
February 1-23, 2017).

Once the disasters were declared, CCWD staff asked the Board of Directors to adopt
Resolution 2017-13, which provided staff with the proper authority to apply for
reimbursement for costs associated with responding to the damaging effects of the
storms.

All three major storm events caused CCWD to sustain significant infrastructure damage.
Using the authority granted by the CCWD Board, General Manager Dave Eggerton
worked closely with Director of Operations Teresa Tanaka to submit claims to FEMA for
all three storm events.

During storm events, CCWD finance staff set up a special payment code to track storm-
related expenses. Emergency repairs were made to ensure the District's systems
continued to function and provide safe, reliable water and wastewater services to
customers.

After the storms had passed and emergency repairs had been made, staff analyzed all
storm-related infrastructure damage and identified and submitted claims for 12 projects.

FEMA has a very specific and rigorous process that must be followed which begins with
the filing of a Request for Public Assistance Form. Staff involved in the claim application
process attended a webinar in March 2017 that provided information on how to file



claims and receive reimbursement from FEMA. District staff met in May 2017 and
reviewed official FEMA claim categories. Of the possible categories, the District applied
for reimbursement for the following: emergency protective measures, roads and
bridges, water control facilities, and utilities.

Led by the Director of Operations with assistance from staff in Finance, Engineering and
Operations, voluminous, detailed information was compiled to submit claims for the
following projects:
e Blagen Road, Big Trees creek crossing
Blagen Road, Longman Lane emergency tie-in
Lift Station 21, Copperopolis pump failure — emergency pumping
Districtwide power outages/generators (x3)
Middle Fork Mokelumne River Diversion debris removal
Power Outage at Big Trees tanks 4 & 5 due to fallen tree
Copperopolis Wastewater Treatment Plant discharge into Little John -sampling
Vallecito Lift Station — emergency pumping

e © © e @ © o

Through this very time consuming effort performed solely by District staff working
closely with FEMA representatives, the District seeks reimbursement of approximately
$192,000 in storm-related costs.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:
Many hours of staff time were required to prepare and submit the reimbursement

requests. In total, the District is seeking $192,016.55 in storm-related reimbursement
costs from FEMA.

2



DATE: November 8, 2017

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Dave Eggerton, General Manager 2%,,"
SUBJECT: General Manager’'s Report

In accordance with the direction received from the Board at its meeting on October 11,
2017 when staff provided an informational update on planned efforts to better address
waterline breaks and high pressure issues in Rancho Calaveras, work is underway to
address these issues. Immediately following the Board meeting, the Director of
Operations and General Manager met with supervisory staff from Distribution and
Construction to explore all options for allocating additional staff from Operations to
expedite replacement of some of the most problematic waterlines in the Rancho
Calaveras community that are the source of many of the lines breaks affecting the
community. As explained at the Board meeting, the goal is to replace old, failing water
mains and service lines with new, properly engineered and installed materials that will
work without failure for many years to come. Instead of simply chasing leaks and
patching pipe that should be removed, the goal of this effort is, and will continue to be,
properly addressing the underlying problems.

Guided by this directive, Distribution staff from both Jenny Lind/Rancho Calaveras and
Copper Cove/Copperopolis as well as the District's Construction team are working
together through the end of the year to replace as much problematic pipe as possible,
including old, fragile Bluebell pipe that is some of the most prone to failure of any in the
District. High priority projects have been identified and multiple crews of District staff
will be deployed to perform the work. By the end of this year, measureable progress will
be made in addressing the number and frequency of waterline breaks in Rancho
Calaveras.

On a parallel track, District staff from Operations and Engineering, working with General
Counsel, are implementing an expedited bidding and contracting process to retain a
highly qualified outside construction firm to immediately install 3 mainline pressure
reducing valves (PRVs) in Rancho Calaveras. Existing bidding procedures and contract
documentation are tailored for construction projects that are much larger in scope and
budget such as the Reach 3A water main replacement. While it is critical to maintain

lof2



proper procedures and documentation to promote the highest quality work on time and
budget for all construction projects of the District, modifications must be made to
expedite the completion of important but smaller projects such as the PRV installation.
Thus District staff are working to reformat the contract documents and bidding process
to facilitate this project and many others in the future.

The revised contract documents and plans and specifications for the PRV installation
will be issued to prospective bidders the week of November 13 during a site walk of the
locations planned for construction. Bids will be due no later than the first week of
December and a recommendation for award of the construction contract will be brought
to the Board at its meeting of December 13. Thus a firm, likely local, will be under
contract this year to begin construction as soon as possible. While | very much wish we
could award the contract sooner and complete construction before the end of this year
as originally anticipated, it is vitally important the documentation and process
implemented for this project, and again many others in the future including other work in
Rancho Calaveras, protect the District and our ratepayers from exposure to risks of not
realizing the highest quality results or suffering cost overruns that deplete the financial
resources needed to perform additional projects for the community.

Other related efforts are underway to provide better public information regarding these
issues in Rancho Calaveras and actions being taken to address them. Staff are
working to schedule a town hall meeting in December or January to keep the affected
community apprised of these efforts and progress being made.

20f2



